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L241 
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down from 1.82% 
in FY 2016‑17

0.94%  
Net NPA at

GROWTH 
IN RETAIL 
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100 
YEARS OF 
CREATING 
VALUE FOR 
STAKE- 
HOLDERS! 

33%   Profitable since 
inception 

Paid dividends 
consistently to our 
shareholders

During the year

Find more online 
www.saraswatbank.com



Looking back at our 
journey in the last 
100 years, we are �lled 
with a sense of pride 
and accomplishment. 

We have grown manifold 
from our modest beginnings 
back in 1918 and are now 
counted among the 
prominent mid-sized banks 
in India. 

Over these years, we have 
earned the reputation of 
being driven by values and 
integrity in all spheres of our 
operations. 

Our legacy is our strength 
and it has always helped us 
in adopting industry-leading 
practices in our operations. 



Staying rooted. 
Forging ahead...
Our 100 years of rich 
experience provides a large 
canvas to evaluate our 
broad spectrum of strategy 
and operations against the 
backdrop of history, take the 
relevant learnings and then 
progress towards greater 
glories. As we look back 
on our exciting and eventful 
journey, we are filled with a 
sense of achievement and 
at the same time humbled 
by the trust, guidance 
and support that we have 
received from our customers 
and stakeholders in all these 
years.

We have steadily built 
an institution of banking 
excellence, a happy 
confluence of tradition, 
technology, teamwork 
and trust. Our legacy 

is our strength and it 
has empowered us to 
adopt industry‑leading 
practices in our 
operations.

The result is that we are 
now counted among the 
prominent mid-sized banks 
in India. 

We have set benchmarks 
for our peers by integrating 
cutting-edge technology 
at par with the larger 
commercial banks in 
India. We now cater to 
the aspirations of a wide 
spectrum of customers, 
from Senior Citizens, 
Generation X and 
millennials to Generation Z, 
through our unique 
traditional approach and  
modern-day practices. 

At Saraswat Bank, we 
offer our customers 
an interesting and 
comprehensive value 
proposition where 
technology meets tradition. 
A rich legacy does not 
make us complacent; 
rather, it energises us to 
work harder, think smarter, 
while staying true to the 
values that have nurtured 
us.  

We will continue to 
blend the old-world 
allure of a 100-year-old 
Bank with the Flexibility, 
Focus and Foresight of a 
contemporary institution, 
as we look forward to 
the next 100 years of 
banking for the nation.
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Registered Office & Corporate Center : Ekanath Thakur Bhavan,

953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025

Phone No.: (022) 6600 5555  Website: www.saraswatbank.com

Date of Establishment : 14th September, 1918

No. and date of RBI licence : ACD-MH-220-P dated 27-08-1980

Area of operation : ALL INDIA

Audit classification : ‘A’ (Since 1933, i.e. the year in which we were registered as a Bank)

Senior Management
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Dy. MD  
Audit & Recovery Dept. 
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Chartered Accountants B.A., LL.B.

M/s. Little and Company
Bankers
Dena Bank 
Axis Bank 
Bank of India 
HDFC Bank Ltd. 
Canara Bank 
Wells Fargo Bank N.A. 
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. 
ICICI Bank Ltd.

Shri S. N. Inamdar
B.Com., LL.B. 
Gokhale & Sathe 
Chartered Accountants

Shri A. S. Jain 
CGM & Nodal Officer



Building on a 
tradition of trust...

KNOW US BETTER

We have correspondent banking 
relationships with over 125 banks, 
spread across 45 countries and nine 
currencies. In the last two decades, we 
have demonstrated our ability to tap 
into attractive inorganic opportunities 
by acquiring and successfully turning 
around seven co‑operative banks. 

Our Bank has been at the vanguard of 
embracing leading-edge technology 
that has driven our efficiency in the 
way we acquire, service and retain 
our customers. Going forward, we 
are committed to taking our legacy 
forward and have set an ambitious 
target to accomplish a total business 
of `1,00,000 crore through strategic 
expansion of our presence across 
India’s major cities.

We are India’s largest Urban Co-operative Bank and have come a long way 
from our modest beginnings as a co-operative credit society in 1918. Our 
experience and expertise have received the trust and support of our customers 
and the growing fraternity of stakeholders. Our philosophy of serving people and 
hand‑holding them towards a prosperous future has been the primary catalyst 
behind our evolution as a customer-centric Bank.

TOTAL 
BUSINESS

L58,525.77 
crore

TOTAL 
BRANCHES

281  

TOTAL  
ATMs

260 

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)4
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To receive a 
permanent Foreign 
Exchange Dealer’s 

Licence

To offer  
pre-paid cards

To rope in fair 
price shops 
as Business 

Correspondents

To offer RTGS 
and NEFT 
facilities

To offer an 
enterprise 

wide loyalty 
programme

To find a place 
in India’s 

Fortune 500 list

To collaborate 
with VISA 

International for 
debit cards

Mission

“To emerge as one of the premier and 
most preferred banks in the country 
by adopting the highest standards of 
professionalism and excellence in all 
the areas of working.”

To cross `50,000 crore  
total business

1st
CO-OPERATIVE BANK
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KNOW US BETTER

Our offerings

PERSONAL BUSINESS BANKING

Savings
•	 Regular Savings Account
•	 Elite Savings Account
•	 Elite Silver Savings Account
•	 Elite Gold Savings Account
•	 Cubs Account
•	 Akshay Salary Account
•	 Suvidha Savings Account
•	 Janhit Account
•	 Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana

Term Deposits
•	� Fixed Deposits (Cumulative and  

Non-cumulative)
•	 Recurring Deposits
•	 Madhukar Tax Saving Deposits

Retail Loans
•	 Car/Two-wheeler Loan
•	 Education Loan
•	 Vastu Siddhi Home Loan
•	 Kwik LAP
•	 Doctor Delite
•	 Multipurpose Loan
•	� Multipurpose Loan – Group Loan 

Scheme
•	 E-stock Advance
•	 Gold Loan Yojana
•	� Advance against Government/RBI 

Bonds
•	 Advance against Tangible Security
•	 Pravasi – Travel Loan
•	 Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana

Insurance
•	 Life Insurance
•	 General Insurance
•	 Health Insurance

Demat Accounts
•	 3-in-1 Account

Mutual Funds
Remittance Services

•	 Travel Related
•	 Other Remittances

Current Account
•	 Regular Current Account
•	 Elite Current Account
•	 Premium Current Account
•	 Platinum Current Account

Business Loans
•	 Corporate Loan
•	 Term Loan
•	 Lease Rent Discounting Loan
•	 Commercial Automobile Loan
•	 Udyogini
•	 Working Capital
•	 Unnati Loan

Corporate Services
•	 Bank Guarantee
•	 Bill Discounting
•	 Buyers Credit
•	 Letters of Credit (Inland & Foreign)

Trade Finance
•	 Export Finance
•	 Import Finance

Mudra Loans under Pradhan Mantri 
Mudra Yojana (PMMY)
•	 Shishu
•	 Kishore
•	 Tarun

NRI BANKING

NRI Deposits
•	 Foreign Currency Non-resident 

(Bank) Deposit – FCNR (B) Deposit
•	 Non-resident External (NRE) Account
•	 Non-resident Ordinary (NRO) Account
•	 Resident Foreign Currency Account

NRI Loans
•	 Personal Loan
•	 Vastu Siddhi Home Loan

DIGITAL BANKING

Cards
•	 RuPay Platinum International  

Credit Card
•	 RuPay Classic International  

Debit Card
•	 RuPay Platinum International  

Debit Card
•	 Visa Classic International  

Debit Card
•	 Visa Platinum International  

Debit Card
•	 Gift Card
•	 Prepaid Card
•	 Travel Currency Cards

Other Services
One-Page Internet Banking

Corporate Internet Banking

GoMo – Mobile Banking

Saraswat UPI on BHIM

mPassbook

24/7 Phone Banking Service

Missed Call Service

SMS Banking

Saraswat Bank Connect

InstaPay

National Electronic Toll  
Collection – NETC (FAST-TAG)

Overseas (NOSTRO)  
Account Forex Centres

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)6
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Growing our 
reach and recall
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Note: Map not to scale

1 Mumbai
2 Thane District
3 Palghar District
4 Navi Mumbai
5 Pune
6 Ahmednagar
7 Nagpur
8 Akola
9 Aurangabad

10 Solapur
11 Raigad
12 Jalgaon
13 Satara
14 Nashik
15 Ratnagiri
16 Sindhudurg
17 Sangli
18 Kolhapur

19 Ahmedabad
20 Vadodara
21 Surat
22 Vapi
23 Belgaum
24 Hubli
25 Bengaluru
26 Davangere
27 Dharwad

28 Mangalore
29 Mysore
30 Tumkur
31 Udupi
32 Panjim
33 Vasco
34 Margaon
35 Indore
36 Delhi
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years of 
service

MILESTONES

Established the Saraswat  
Co-operative Credit Society 
on 14th September, 1918 to 
provide financial assistance 
to its members for weddings, 
emergencies, repayment of 
debt, medical treatment and 
others

1918

Converted the Society 
into a full-fledged  
Urban Co-operative Bank (UCB)

Developed a strong foundation 
in terms of membership, 
resources, assets and profits by 
fulfilling all banking requirements 
of our customers

1933

Inaugurated our Corporate 
Center ‘Saraswat Bank 
Bhavan’ in Mumbai

Our Bank achieved a total 
business of `25,000 crore

Launched a branding initiative to 
reinforce focus on core values, which 
can be summed up as ‘Sense of 
Belonging’

Bank formed its new logo, representing 
two hands in the shape of a hexagon, 
depicting care and encouraging growth

Total business reached  
`10,000 crore.

Process of seven Urban 
Co‑operative Banks merging 
into Saraswat Bank was initiated

20102008

2006
Migrated to the Core 
Banking System (CBS)

Integrated Treasury was 
formed by our Bank

Achieved total business 
of `4,000 crore

2002 2000

Granted permission for  
pan-India operations  
by RBI

2011

8
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Celebrated Silver Jubilee 
year (25 years of 
operations) with total 
business of `26 lakh

1943
Celebrated Golden 
Jubilee year (50 years 
of operations) with total 
business of `8 crore

1968
Selected a bee motif to symbolise our 
Bank’s emblem; the logo celebrated 
our belief in hard work, team spirit 
and commitment to enrich customer 
experience, every step of the way 

1977 

Received permanent licence to 
deal in foreign exchange 

1979
Completed 75 years of 
operations with a total 
business of `900 crore

Conferred with ‘Scheduled’ 
status by the Reserve Bank 
of India (RBI)

1993 1988 

Launched our new tag line 
‘Mile Yahan, Dono Jahan’, 
which reflects the confluence 
of technology and tradition

Crossed the milestone of  
`50,000 crore total business

The Bank completed 100 years 
of operations

2014 2016 2018
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Staying true 
to our values...

CHAIRMAN’S INSIGHT

Dear Shareholders,

I am delighted to present to you our Annual Report 
for the financial year 2017-18. It is a landmark year 
for us, as we look back on an exciting and eventful 
hundred years of banking excellence, empowering 
the underserved sections of society. The Bank has 
witnessed the broad canvas of history unfold before it. 
From the two World Wars to the freedom struggle to 
the raising of the Tricolour and the Economic Reforms, 
we have a rich legacy that we have witnessed.

On this occasion, I must commemorate the 
contribution of visionary leaders such as late 
Shri J. K. Parulkar, late Shri N. B. Thakur, 
late Shri P. N. Warde and late Shri S. G. 
Rajadhyaksha, who had laid a firm foundation for the 
Bank. They had steadfast ideals, vision, optimism 
and entrepreneurial skills. They believed in serving 
the nation and we, at Saraswat Bank, continue to be 
inspired by these values.

Over the decades, our Bank has grown from 
strength to strength and today it is India’s largest  

“ A well made Century...

Looking forward to an equally 
strong Double Hundred....”

We are well poised 
to DOUBLE our 
total business over 
the next few years.

10
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Urban Co-operative Bank (UCB). Owing 
to the vision and guidance of our able 
management team, we have played a 
pioneering role in the co-operative banking 
segment. We have steadily evolved from a 
community bank to India’s largest Urban 
Co-operative Bank with a pan-India 
footprint.

We have proactively embraced best-
in-class technology and industry-best 
practices in our business, while staying true 
to our values. Our Bank has an enduring 
heritage of blending the agility of a small 
bank with the ability of a large bank.

Leadership, over the years...
The transition from a credit society to a 
Multi-State Co-operative Bank with over 
`55,000 crore of business could not have 
been possible without strong leadership at 
the helm of the Bank, throughout its history.

I really admire the foresight and vision of 
our past leaders who with their insightful 
thoughts and ideas steered the course 
of your Bank from a co-operative credit  
society to India’s Largest Urban Co-
operative Bank. Throughout this journey, 
they did not lose the core focus of staying 
with the co‑operative sector, the common 
man and the upcoming entrepreneur.

The past 10 decades saw their fair 
share of ups and downs viz. from 
operating in a pre‑independence era to 
post‑independence, from operating in 
a closed environment to operating in a 
post-liberalization era to the present day 
of operating in an era of globalization. In 
spite of all these external factors, your 
Bank moved from strength to strength 
and carved a unique position for itself in 
the co-operative banking sector. Today, 
we are one of the most well-managed and 
professional names in the UCB sector. 
We moved on from being a Bank primarily 
located in Maharashtra to expanding to 

newer geographical areas of Karnataka, 
Goa, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh and even 
New Delhi. Taking pride in its co-operative 
culture, your Bank also took over few 
of the weaker banks in the co-operative 
segment, and turned their branches into 
profitable ones. This was done while 
retaining their human resources and 
merging them perfectly into our culture.

As we look back, we realise that all of 
this was possible only because of the 
thoughts and ideas of our past leadership, 
the strategies employed as well as the 
swift execution of the strategies by our 
management. Throughout its 100 year 
history, the Bank has been blessed with 
Thought Leaders, Strategic Leaders and 
Implementation Leaders, at all levels.

We are indeed proud of our past 
leadership; however, we cannot bask 
in our past glory. To change with the 
times, we have in recent times become 
more inclusive, less hierarchical and less 
judgmental. Opportunities have been given 
to younger leaders and new ideas are 
being encouraged.

Thus, going forward also, your Bank 
will continue to have the perfect blend 
of leadership whereby our collective 
thoughts, strategies and implementation 
will lead us to greater heights of glory.

Momentous year for Saraswat Bank
Saraswat Bank reported the highest 
profit of I 241 crore in its history owing 
to healthy growth in advances, reduction 
in Non‑Performing Assets (NPAs) and 
increase in low-cost Current Account and 
Savings Account (CASA) deposits. We 
believe our performance during the year 
was commendable, given the challenges 
faced by India’s banking sector. During 
the year, we grew encouragingly owing to 
our strong risk governance framework and 
prudent approach towards lending.

During the year, our Bank launched 
exciting new products like Credit Card 
and Gift Card, among others. We also 
introduced the business correspondent 
facility through the Aadhaar Enabled 
Payment Services (AEPS) and provided 
banking to the last mile by tying up 
with fair price shops. We believe these 
initiatives will help us enrich the customer 
experience further and drive our objective 
of financial inclusion.

In step with changing times
We are well poised to double our total 
business to `1,00,000 crore over the next 
few years. We will achieve this through 
the happy convergence of technology 
and teamwork. We are part of a rapidly 
changing business ecosystem that 
demands that we evolve constantly to 
serve our clients better. Leveraging our 
talent pool and technology investments, 
we are transforming ourselves every day 
to provide more customer-centric services 
every time.  

Overall, our customer-centric approach, 
cutting-edge digital initiatives and prudent 
risk management will act as key catalysts 
for our future growth. Our focus is to 
become a stronger, more robust bank and 
not just a bigger bank. 

Going forward, we will continue to 
create value for all our stakeholders in a 
responsible and sustainable manner. At 
the same time, we will stay true to the 
legacy and the values that have nurtured 
us. On behalf of the Board of Directors 
and the entire leadership team, I solicit 
your continued support for our present 
and future endeavours.

Best Regards,  
Gautam E. Thakur
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Numbers speak 
volumes...

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Deposits
(I in crore)

13-14

23,940
27,171

31,496
33,737 35,057

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Working Funds
(I in crore)

13-14

28,133
31,371

35,942
38,442

40,520

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Advances
(I in crore)

13-14

15,470
17,798

20,366 21,536
23,469

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Own Funds
(I in crore)

13-14

2,142 2,247 2,371
2,685

2,869

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Total Business
(I in crore)

13-14

39,410
44,969

51,862
55,273

58,526

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Net Profit
(I in crore)

13-14

147

190
211

234 241

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)12
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CRAR
(%)

13-14

12.11 12.57 12.15

14.00 13.60

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Loan Mix
(%)

CASA as a % of total deposits
(%)

Net NPA
(%)

13-14

0.00

0.67

1.83 1.82

0.94

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Return on  
Average Assets
(%)

13-14

0.55
0.61 0.62 0.62 0.60

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Segment-wise 
break-up of loans

Rising share of  
low-cost CASA deposits

FY17 FY18

Retail Wholesale

36

61.60

38.40

64

28.01
30.79

16-17 17-18
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MACRO REALITY AND OUR RESPONSE

Big opportunity 
landscape...
India’s financial services industry is evolving at a rapid pace, leveraging a flourishing 
economy, a predominantly young population, rising adoption of digital banking and 
easy credit access for all sections of society.

We, at Saraswat Bank, have kept a close tab on these developments and are well 
poised to leverage the opportunities that unfold before us.

Financial inclusion 
gathers momentum1

The Government of India (GoI) has implemented 
multiple schemes to drive India’s financial inclusion. 
The prominent ones among them being Pradhan 
Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY) and Pradhan 
Mantri Mudra Yojna (PMMY), which allow business 
correspondents to provide banking services and 
simplified Know Your Customer (KYC) norms. 
At Saraswat Bank, we continue to cater to the 
underserved sections of society proactively. 
Going forward, we will continue to expand our 
offerings and our geographic reach further to 
be a key participant in enhancing the cause of 
financial inclusion. 

•	 Launched three schemes under PMMY — 
Shishu, Kishore and Tarun 

•	 4,000+ urban beneficiaries have been 
financed under our Microfinance Loan 
Scheme

•	 Our product ‘Unnati Business Loans’ caters 
specifically to the priority sector

•	 We have tied up with fair price shops to 
provide business correspondent services in 
Maharashtra

•	 Fostered business correspondent tie-ups in 
Aurangabad

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)14
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The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is 
enhancing transparency and drawing 
informal activity into the formal sector. It 
is further intensifying scrutiny around the 
flow of black money in real estate and gold 
assets to bring the parallel economy into the 
fold of the country’s mainstream economy. 
Besides, with the rise in disposable income, 
there has been a remarkable surge in the 
financial savings of households. This is 
further fuelling growth of deposits and third 
party investment products of our Bank. 

We distribute the following insurance 
products:
1. 	�Life 

Insurance
– �HDFC Life & Future 

Generali
2. 	�General 

Insurance
– HDFC ERGO
– Bajaj Allianz

3. 	�Health 
Insurance

– �Religare Health & 
Cigna TTK

Economy runs 
on formal tracks 2

Under the Digital India drive, the GoI has launched several initiatives to promote 
a ‘less cash’ economy. These include Unified Payments Interface (UPI), Jan 
Aadhaar Mobile, linking of Aadhaar number with Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) and availability of free Wi-Fi at public places, among others. Such initiatives 
will widen and deepen the penetration of internet in India and facilitate the growth 
of banking services across India’s remote locations. At Saraswat Bank, we will 
continue to elevate our digital capabilities to offer our customers new and exciting 
products through digital platforms.

•	 We offer more than 33 digital products/services to our customers

•	 Serving over 2.19 lakh customers on our UPI platform

Digitisation remains a force 
multiplier4

India’s credit growth recovered 
to pre-demonetisation levels on 
the back of continued traction in 
retail borrowings. While corporate 
borrowings were largely working 
capital loans during the year, they 
are likely to improve gradually in line 
with improving corporate capital 
expenditure (capex). At Saraswat 
Bank, we are confident that the 
improving credit demand from both 
retail and corporate segments will 
augur well for India’s banking and 
financial services industry.

Our retail credit grew 33% 
during the year to `7,602 crore

Credit 
growth pace 
accelerates

3

India is characterised by favourable 
demographics as the working age 
group is estimated to account for 
more than 60% of the population by 
2020. In fact, India’s middle-class 
population is likely to double between 
FY 2016 and FY 2026. A flourishing 
economy is leading to higher 
disposable incomes, which is further 
bolstering demand in the industry. 
We are offering diversified products 
and services to cater to the financial 
aspirations of a growing middle-class 
population across the nation.

We are official distributors of:
1. 	 HDFC Mutual Fund
2. 	 Reliance Mutual Fund
3. 	 LIC Mutual Fund
4. 	 L&T Mutual Fund

Middle-class 
matters5
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We will continue to focus on financing the 
disadvantaged sections of society and enable 
them to achieve more prosperity in their lives. 
Supporting women entrepreneurs at every stage 
of the business is another priority area for us.

Supporting the 
disadvantaged and 
women entrepreneurs

1

MACRO REALITY AND OUR RESPONSE

Setting the right priorities 
and forging ahead...

We are responding to our operating environment  
by identifying key strategic priorities for us.  
These are explained below:

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)16
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Our Bank has put in place a robust and resilient 
digital ecosystem to drive efficiencies across all 
our functions. Going forward, we will continue 
to leverage on the strength of this ecosystem on 
the one hand; and make requisite investments 
to further enhance our digital capabilities on 
the other. Digitisation will play a crucial role in 
enabling us to boost customer convenience, while 
simultaneously making us a more agile, lean and 
efficient organisation. 

We have adopted prudent risk management 
practices to mitigate potential risks arising in our 
operating environment.

It is our constant endeavour to be cognisant of 
the fast-evolving world around us and identify 
and respond swiftly to any emerging risks. We 
also are looking to adopt the industry-best risk 
management practices in the next couple of years.

Pushing the digital 
envelope further 

Reinforcing risk 
governance

2

3
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STAYING ROOTED TO OUR VALUES. 
FORGING AHEAD WITH RENEWED VIGOUR.

Making the most of 
inorganic opportunities...

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)18
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We, at Saraswat Bank, are seeking new harbours of growth and inorganic 
opportunities continue to be one of our focus areas. 

We have demonstrated capabilities to 
acquire and turnaround the banks that we 
took over. Since 2006, we acquired seven 
stressed Urban Co-operative Banks with 
the primary objective of safeguarding the 
interest of over 7,70,000 depositors of 
these banks.

We also strived to make the most of 
multiple synergies emerging from this 
initiative. These included creating a cluster 
of branches, enhancing our geographic 
reach, ramping up our customer base, 
bolstering our Bank’s growth and 
profitability. Through these mergers, we 
also shouldered our responsibilities in the 
Urban Co-operative Banking sector and 
reinstated customer confidence in the 
co‑operative movement. 

Our efforts started yielding results quickly 
and all these banks turned profitable within 
a short span of their merger with us. The 
combined business of these banks surged 
from `1,900 crore to `9,200 crore in the 
initial five years following the merger.

Banks Acquisition Date

Maratha Mandir Co-operative Bank Ltd. 20/03/2006

Mandvi Co-operative Bank Ltd. 30/03/2007

Annasaheb Karale Janata Sahakari 
Bank Ltd.

30/06/2007

Murgha Rajendra Sahakari Bank Ltd. 30/06/2007

Nashik People’s Co-operative Bank Ltd. 21/12/2007

South Indian Co-operative Bank Ltd. 01/09/2008

Kolhapur Maratha Co-operative Bank Ltd. 06/03/2009
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STAYING ROOTED TO OUR VALUES. 
FORGING AHEAD WITH RENEWED VIGOUR.

Navigating the 
next with digital... 

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)20
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Digitisation is no longer the new normal for India; it is already the accepted reality 
that continues to gather momentum with each passing day. 

In April 2017, we set up our Digital 
Banking Department (DBD) to increase 
our digital offerings and enrich the overall 
customer experience. This initiative is 
aimed at accomplishing three major 
purposes. First, provide convenience, 
access and speed to our customers; 
second help the Bank in identifying branch 
processes that can be digitised to drive 
higher operational and cost efficiencies 
across the board. Finally, to leverage 
analytics for gaining a better insight 
into customer behaviour and thereby 
providing them customised financial 

solutions for their specific requirements. 
Thus, digitisation provides a win-win value 
proposition for all stakeholders.

We now offer over 33 digital products/
services that are customer-centric to the 
core and encompass most of the offerings 
extended by leading private sector 
banks. During the year, we undertook the 
following initiatives:

1.	 Launched Gift Card in collaboration 
with NPCI’s RuPay Card scheme, a 
perfect instrument for individual and 
corporate gifting, which can be used 

by customers for purchase at Point Of 
Sale (POS) and online transactions.

2.	 Launched RuPay Platinum International 
Credit Card in association with the 
National Payments Corporation of India 
(NPCI). 

3.	 Launched our UPI platform for funds 
transfer and bill payments; we have 
registered 2.19 lakh customers on this 
platform during the year under review.

4.	 Offered one-page internet banking to 
our corporate customers during the 
year; it includes facilities like multiple 
level authentication, varied transaction 
limits, cheque book request, among 
others.

5.	 Working on various projects like 
Bank-On-Tab, Contactless Cards, 
among others. We are on the verge 
of implementing the Aadhaar‑based 
instant account opening and 
comprehensive mobile banking through 
a single smartphone application for 
customers.

Internet banking 
transactions grew 216% 
y-o-y to 4.29 lakh

Strong response to our 
UPI offerings with 3.43 
lakh transactions

Total digital transactions 
grew 36% y-o-y to  
58.58 lakh and 
formed 62.8% of total 
transactions of our Bank

In the year 2017-18

21Annual Report 2017-18

B
ank O

verview
 1-29

S
tatutory R

ep
orts 30-63

Financial S
tatem

ents and
 O

thers  64-99



STAYING ROOTED TO OUR VALUES. 
FORGING AHEAD WITH RENEWED VIGOUR.

Fostering rewarding 
customer relationships...

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)22
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We are progressing in step with changing aspirations of customers, growing our 
outreach and preparing a robust platform for sustainable growth. 

We are shaping our strategies in line 
with changing profile of our customers 
in terms of age, income groups and 
other dynamics. We set up a dedicated 
Customer Relations and Experience 
(CRE) department during the year. The 
primary objective of this department 
is to strengthen our direct connect 
with customers through multiple 
communication channels. The department 
also identifies and addresses customer 
concerns with speed and precision. 

During the year, we introduced the 
Saraswat Bank Rewardz Programme. 
Below are its key highlights: 

	 Customers receive attractive rewards, 
while transacting with us digitally.

	 These rewards include discounts 
and cashbacks through coupons on 
purchases from leading e-commerce 
portals like Amazon, Flipkart and 
others.

Going forward, we will continue to launch 
similar initiatives to engage closely with our 
customers. Our constant endeavour is to 
meet and exceed customer expectations 
and reinforce our reputation and recall.
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COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Inherent strengths of UCBs

UCBs

1,562 

BRANCHES

10,211 

ADVANCES

L2.6 
lakh crore

DEPOSITS

L4.4 
lakh crore

GROSS NPA 
RATIO

7.13%

PROFIT 
AFTER TAX

L3,920 
crore

Source: RBI Statistical Tables

Taking a closer 
look at UCBs...

India’s banking landscape comprises 
different types of banking entities like 
Government-owned banks, private 
banks, small finance banks, payments 
banks, universal banks and niche 
focussed Non-Banking Financial 
Services Companies (NBFCs). However, 
the Urban Co‑operative Banks (UCBs) 
have always played a pivotal role in 
catering to the financial aspirations of 
those who are underserved and at the 
bottom of the social pyramid.

•	 UCBs played a significant role in furthering the cause of 
India’s financial inclusion.

•	 They have managed a commendable asset quality; and  
their gross NPA ratio is 7.13%. Thus, these banks carry 
much less systemic risks.

Going forward, we believe that there will be potential for 
significant consolidation among smaller Urban Co-operative 
Banks (UCBs) in India. Additionally, there is greater scope to 
improve governance across these banks and make them more 
efficient.

All data is as of March 2017
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Staying rooted. Forging ahead...



Reached out 
to over 12 lakh 
customers 
through various 
communication 
channels

Customer 
interactions 
occurred in 211 
branches

126 branches 
celebrated the 
‘Establishment 
Day’ during this 
financial year

STAYING ROOTED TO OUR VALUES.  
FORGING AHEAD WITH RENEWED VIGOUR.

Revamping brand ‘Saraswat’ 
– “Mile Yahan, Dono Jahan”
We are a 100-year young Bank; and our revamped 
brand communication underscores our commitment 
to walk the distance that blends contemporary 
technology with time-tested tradition, for our 
customers to get the best of both worlds. 

Celebrated 1,000 followers on Instagram within  
a month. 

Recorded Facebook followers at over 1,30,000.

Our social media platforms like Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram and our YouTube channel are gaining 
encouraging fan following.

We launched the Saraswat Bank 
Discount Carnival, where we formed 
unique alliances with our corporate 
customers who provided exclusive 
offers to our retail customers. 
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Encouraging talent 
and teamwork...

STAYING ROOTED TO OUR VALUES. 
FORGING AHEAD WITH RENEWED VIGOUR.
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We believe our internal culture – shaped by our teams – is as essential to our 
purpose as our external reputation – and that the two are inextricably linked. 

Our people and their dedication to the 
Bank are the driving force behind our 
success. Our ability to grow further rests 
on the diverse and versatile talent of our 
4,000+ strong workforce that contributes 
enthusiastically towards our progress. 
We promote a culture of meritocracy and 
provide equal opportunities to our people 
to flourish and accomplish their vision.

We consistently engage with our teams 
through various initiatives, including those 
enumerated below:

1.	 We conducted the Saraswat Talent 
Acknowledgement & Reward (STAR) 
exercise during FY 2016-17; and the 
inputs were used in selecting and 
providing the right talent to new units 
started during FY 2017-18.

2.	 During the reporting period, 120 training 
programmes were conducted by the Staff 
Learning Centre, which covered 2,813 
employees from both Management and 
Non-Management cadre.

3.	 During FY 2017-18, 40 employees 
were deputed for various external 
training programmes conducted by 
prestigious institutes like CAFRAL, 
NIBM, IDRBT, FEDAI, FICCI, IBA, 
NAFCUB, IIBF, IIM-Indore, among 
others. 

4.	 We partnered with HDFC Life for 
conducting a special training for 
35 management staff at HDFC Life 
Training Institute, Lonavala named 
RISE (Responsibility, Innovation, 
Strategic Excellence). 

Employee metrics FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

Business per 
Employee  
(` in crore)

8.18 9.12 9.26 9.06 10.60 12.39 13.41 14.41

27Annual Report 2017-18

B
ank O

verview
 1-29

S
tatutory R

ep
orts 30-63

Financial S
tatem

ents and
 O

thers  64-99



Moments we treasured 
during the year...

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

1.	 Bagged the Best Bank award in the category of the 
Technology Bank of the Year among co-operative 
banks at the IBA Banking Technology Awards 
2017-18.

2.	 Won the Wells Fargo Operational Excellence Award 
from Wells Fargo Bank NA, our major NOSTRO  
accounts correspondent. 

3.	 Featured in the special edition of Mint Lounge’s 
‘Brands to Look Out for in 2017’, which included 
our Bank’s 100-year journey and our new tagline 
– “Mile Yahan, Dono Jahan” – best of both worlds – 
Where Technology meets Tradition.

4.	 Winner of the NPCI Excellence Award in 
recognition of our performance in various products 
viz. NFS ATM Network, RuPay, CTS, among 
others. 

Bank was honoured with the IBA Banking Technology Award. The award was 
received by Shri M. R. Varerkar – Head, IT Dept. and Shri Kunal Karkhanis – Head, 
Digital Banking Dept on behalf of the Bank at the hands of Dr. R. Gandhi, Former 
Deputy Governor of RBI; Smt. Usha Ananthasubramanian, Chairman, Indian Banks’ 
Association; Shri Ajay Sahani, IAS Secretary, Ministry of Electronics and IT; Shri V. G. 
Kannan, CEO, Indian Banks’ Association and Shri Meetul Patel, COO, Microsoft India

Saraswat Bank’s CRICKET FEVER

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)28
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Credit Card and Gift Card unveiling by Hon’ble CM, Shri Devendra 
Fadnavis; Hon’ble Union Minister, Shri Nitin Gadkari; Executive Director of 
RBI, Shri Sudarshan Sen and Saraswat Bank Chairman, Shri Gautam E. 
Thakur at the Centenary Inaugural Event

The inaugural Centenary Celebration with our estemeed guests Hon’ble CM, Shri Devendra Fadnavis; Hon’ble Union Ministers – Shri Nitin Gadkari and 
Shri Suresh Prabhu; Executive Director of RBI, Shri Sudarshan Sen and eminent Social Worker, Dr. Prakash Amte with Chairman, Shri Gautam E. Thakur 
and MD, Mrs. Smita Sandhane

Ekanath Thakur Memorial Lecture: Former Chairperson, SBI, 
Smt Arundhati Bhattacharya being felicitated by Chairman,  
Shri Gautam E. Thakur; Vice Chairman, Shri S. K. Sakhalkar and MD,  
Mrs. Smita Sandhane

NPCI Excellence Award received by MD, Mrs. Smita Sandhane, Shri M. R. 
Varerkar – Head, IT Dept. and Shri Kunal Karkhanis – Head, Digital Banking 
Dept. at the hands of RBI Dy. Governor, Shri B. P. Kanungo along with 
NPCI Non-Executive Chairman, Shri Biswamohan Mahapatra; IBA CEO, 
Shri V. G. Kannan and IDRBT Director, Shri A. S. Ramshastri

Wells Fargo Operational Excellence Award received by our Vice Chairman, 
Shri S. K. Sakhalkar and MD, Mrs. Smita Sandhane, along with Jt. MD,  
Shri L. R. Samant and GM International Banking Division, Shri M. A. 
Tayshete at the hands of Head, Global Financial Institutions, Wells Fargo,  
Mr S. Sengupta along with Vice President, Wells Fargo, Mr V. Mandloi
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Staying rooted. Forging ahead...
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Notice is hereby given that the 100th Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Wednesday, 26th September, 2018 at 4.00 p.m.  
at Ravindra Natya Mandir, Near Siddhivinayak Temple, Sayani Road, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025, to transact the following business 
concerning the Bank:

1.	� To consider and approve the Annual Accounts which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory 
Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account, for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

2.	� To appropriate net profit and declare Dividend on Equity Shares and Dividend on Preference Shares as recommended by the Board 
of Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

3.	� To approve amendments to Bank’s Bye-law Nos.1A, 6D, 10(a), 42, 52 & 70.

4.	� To appoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2018-19 and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.  
The Board of Directors recommends M/s G. D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountants, GDA House, Plot No.85, Right Bhusari 
Colony, Paud Road, Pune-411 038, for appointment as Statutory Auditors.

5.	� To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank other than those whose names appear in the Attendance Register of this  
100th Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

sd/-

Smita Sandhane
Mumbai, 20th July, 2018 	 Managing Director

Note:
	� The printed Annual Report of the Bank consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory Auditors, the 

Balance Sheet and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is enclosed with this Notice.

	� If there is no quorum for the Meeting at the appointed time, in terms of Bye-law No. 48, the Meeting shall stand adjourned to 5.00 p.m. 
on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue irrespective of the Rule of Quorum.

	� Dividend, when declared, will be paid on or after 20th October, 2018, to those shareholders whose shares are fully paid as on  
31st March, 2018 and whose names are on the record of the Bank as on 20th July, 2018.

	� If any member desires to have information in connection with the Accounts, he/she is requested to address a letter to the Managing 
Director of the Bank, to reach her office at Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, Plot No. 953, Appasaheb 
Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025, not later than 21st September, 2018, so that the required information may be made 
available at the Annual General Meeting.

Notice of Annual General Meeting

TO SERVE YOU BETTER:
1. 	� Shareholders are hereby requested to kindly verify their names and addresses on the Annual Report sent to them. Change in 

address, if any, may kindly be intimated by post to the Share Department along with a copy of proof of new residence at Madhushree,  
5th Floor, Plot No. 85, District Business Centre, Sector 17, Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703 Phone No.: (022) 2789 2947 or by e-mail to 
govardhan.patki@saraswatbank.com for updating the Bank’s records. 

2.	� Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form, as required under Section 36 of 
the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19.

3.	� Shareholders having Current/ Savings Bank/ Cash Credit accounts with the Bank and desirous of crediting their dividends to their 
accounts are once again requested to record their standing instructions with the Share Department.

4.	 Kindly dispatch Form-A, on page number 103, requesting to send Annual Report electronically to our Share Department.

------------ Unclaimed Dividend------------
Notice is hereby given that Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2015 (94th Dividend) if not drawn on or before  
26th October, 2018, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No. 68A.
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Performance Highlights
(` in crore)

Particulars FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31-03-18 31-03-17 % change

Total Income 3,376.02 3,498.32 -3.50
Total Expenditure 2,847.51 2,920.82 -2.51
Gross Profit 528.51 577.50 -8.48
Less: Provisions 190.74 254.62 -25.09
Profit Before Tax 337.77 322.88 4.61
Less: Income Tax 97.09 88.83 9.30
Profit after Tax carried to Balance Sheet 240.68 234.05 2.83

AT THE YEAR END

Own Funds 2,869.03 2,684.93 6.86
Share Capital 236.75 215.23 10.00
Reserves and Surplus 2,632.28 2,469.70 6.58

Deposits 35,056.66 33,737.42 3.91
Current 2,703.06 1,753.57 54.15
Savings 8,090.82 7,695.55 5.14
Term 24,262.78 24,288.30 -0.11

Advances 23,469.11 21,536.07 8.98
Secured 23,328.06 21,402.63 9.00
Unsecured 141.05 133.44 5.70
Total Business 58,525.77 55,273.49 5.88

Priority Sector 5,910.72 5,079.22 16.37
% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC) 27.45 24.94 -
Small Scale Industries 430.04 362.54 18.62
Small Businessmen and Traders 2,864.71 2,303.10 24.38
Other Priority Sectors 2,615.97 2,413.58 8.39

Working Capital 40,520.30 38,442.22 5.41

Investments 9,567.97 8,872.79 7.83

Borrowings and Refinance 1,231.67 792.95 55.33

Net NPAs (%) 0.94 1.82
Capital Adequacy (%) 13.60 14.00

Number of Members
Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above) 1,99,616 1,88,249
Nominal 39,972 53,100

Number of Branches 281 282
Number of Employees 4,061 4,122

Productivity per Employee 14.41 13.41
Profit per Employee (` in lakh) 5.93 5.68
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.60 0.62
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Report of the Board of Directors

Dear Members,

Your Directors are delighted to present the Hundredth Annual 
Report that celebrates your Bank’s business and operations, 
together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2018.

1.	 The global economy and India
	� 2017 saw global economies well on their way towards broad-

based recovery. The growth rate touched 3.8% – a significant 
acceleration vis-à-vis 3.2% the preceding year, according to 
the International Monetary Fund (IMF). If we look at all major 
developed economies, the picture that emerges is one of 
optimism.

	� The US economy gained momentum at the beginning of the 
year and registered 2.3% growth for 2017. This has been 
supported by an improvement in the business environment. 
Core inflation averaged about 1.6% in 2017, vis-à-vis the US 
Federal Reserve target of 2%.

	� The Fed has charted a feasible roadmap to normalise the 
size of its balance sheet; and is inching towards interest rate 
normalisation. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) estimates are 
likely to accelerate during 2018 as stimulus from a $1.5 trillion 
tax cut package and enhanced Government spending kicks in.

	� The message from Europe during the year was also one of 
hope and resilience against headwinds. Europe’s economic 
activity remained robust, with GDP growing at 2.7% during 
2017, propelled by encouraging private consumption, stronger 
growth around the world and declining unemployment. The 
economy of member nations expanded, and their labour 
markets showed marked improvements.

	� The start to 2018 has, however, been disappointing for the 
eurozone economy. The European Central Bank (ECB) has 
tapered the pace of asset purchases; and may stop expanding 
its balance sheet by the end of 2018.

	� On the Asian front, China with 6.9% growth outpaced India 
marginally in 2017. However, US protectionist trade policies 
are threatening to bring about retaliatory measures from other 
countries. This may jeopardise global economic growth. 
Spiralling global crude oil prices may also pose a challenge for 
economies already coping with high inflation.

	 Indian Economy
	� Macroeconomic developments during FY 2017-18 were 

marked by swings amid subdued credit growth, low capacity 
utilisation in some industrial sectors, along with asset quality 
and balance sheet challenges in the banking and corporate 
sectors. Owing to the lingering effects of demonetisation 
looming over the economy, India’s GDP growth declined to 

5.6% in Q1, but slowly picked up to 6.3% and 7% in Q2 
and Q3 respectively. The last quarter saw a stellar outcome 
of 7.7% growth, the fastest in seven quarters, bolstered by 
strong performance in construction, manufacturing and public 
services. This is pointing to a persistent revival trend.

	� On an annual basis, India’s GDP growth plummeted from 7.1% 
in FY 2016-17 to 6.7% in FY 2017-18, with the deceleration 
being broad based. The growth in agriculture was lower at 
3.4%; slower than 6.3% in the preceding year. The performance 
of the manufacturing sector also decelerated sharply at 5.7%, 
compared with 7.9% growth for the preceding year.

	� Overall, while demonetisation disrupted supply chains in the 
informal economy, the complex filing procedures of Goods and 
Services Tax (GST) and delay in refund of input credits may 
have impacted exporters and Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs), forcing companies to pare production and stocks. 
Such a scenario led to a decline in manufacturing activity. 
Services is the only sector that grew at a faster pace at 7.9%.

	� The year was marked by some major reforms. The 
transformational Goods and Services Tax (GST) was launched 
in July 2017 and encountered initial challenges of policy, law, 
and information technology systems, which especially affected 
the informal sector.

	� Inflation: Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation stood at 
2.99% at the start of year. After bottoming out in July 2017, 
CPI witnessed an upward spike to 5.2% by December 2017, 
reflecting an unseasonal escalation in vegetable prices and 
the full impact of the Central Pay Commission’s (CPC)  House 
Rent Allowance (HRA)  award. By the end of the year, however, 
the delayed setting in of the seasonal food price moderation 
took the inflation down to 4.28%.

	� Overall, CPI inflation during 2017-18 averaged 3.53% vis-à-vis 
4.54% during FY 2016-17 (April to March).

	� Fiscal scenario: The Government of India’s gross fiscal deficit 
target for FY 2017-18 was revised from 3.2% of GDP to 3.5% 
of GDP. A similar scenario was observed for states. Both gross 
and net tax collections were higher than their budgeted levels. 
Non-tax revenues also fell short of the Budget target due to 
lower receipts from dividends and profits as well as deferment 
of spectrum auctions. Going forward, the Government intends 
to accomplish an inflation target of 3.3% for FY 2018-19; and 
reach the 3% milestone by FY 2020-21.

	� Current Account Deficit: The Current Account Deficit to 
GDP ratio, which was less than 1% in the preceding year 
increased to 2% towards the end of FY 2017-18. The widening 
of Current Account Deficit was primarily on account of higher 
trade deficit.
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	� After bringing in robust inflows for the greater part of the 
year, foreign portfolio investors turned net sellers towards 
the end of the fiscal, responding to global sell-offs on fears 
of trade protectionism and faster pace of normalisation of 
the US monetary policy. The country’s healthy level of foreign 
exchange reserves at $422.5 billion by March-end however, 
may provide cushion against global pressures.

	� Monetary Policy Stance: The benchmark repo rate was 
reduced by 25 bps from 6.25% to 6% by the Reserve Bank 
of India (RBI) during August 2017. In spite of slowdown in 
economic growth in the first quarter due to rising inflation, a 
further rate cut from RBI looked difficult. RBI also cut the SLR 
ratio in the October Policy by 50 bps to 19.5%, a move aimed 
at unlocking more funds for banks to lend.

	 Financial Markets
	� Equity: Equity markets scaled new highs during the year, riding 

on aggressive buying by domestic mutual funds and foreign 
portfolio investors. Towards the end of the year, however, 
sentiments turned bearish with the imposition of Long‑Term 
Capital Gains (LTCG), announcement of protectionist tariffs by 
the US and revelations of frauds in some domestic banks. The 
BSE Sensex closed for the year ended 31st March, 2018 at 
32,968, while Nifty closed at 10,113. Overall, for the financial 
year 2017-18, the Sensex and the Nifty rallied by 11.3% and 
10%, respectively.

	� Debt: The fiscal year 2017-18 has been challenging for the 
Indian debt market. It was characterised by a declining trend 
of yields in the first half, followed by a sharp rise in yields in the 
second half.

	� The escalation happened owing to concerns arising over 
fear of fiscal slippage, spiralling international crude oil prices, 
higher US bond yields and Open Market Operation (OMO)
sales by RBI. The yield on 10-year benchmark G-sec paper 
ended at 7.40% by 31st March, 2018.

	� Forex: The Indian Rupee marginally depreciated by 0.51% 
during the year to close at `65.18 vis-à-vis the US Dollar in 
March 2018 against ̀ 64.85 in March 2017. Foreign Institutional 
Investors (FIIs) have purchased close to $22.5  billion in the 
Indian debt and equity markets, compared to the inflow of 
$7.60 billion during FY 2016-17.

	� Overall, India’s Rupee demonstrated significant strength over 
the better part of 2017, on the back of robust foreign inflows, 
proactive policy measures and relative weakness of the US 
Dollar.

	� Liquidity: The huge surplus liquidity, built up post 
demonetisation reduced substantially during FY 2017-18. 
Against `3,13,000 crore of surplus liquidity absorbed by RBI 
at the beginning of the year, about `60,000 crore of liquidity 
was injected by the regulator at the end of FY 2017-18.

	 Overall Assessment
	� The outlook for Indian economic growth  remains largely 

positive, underpinned by robust private consumption and 
public investment as well as the ongoing structural reforms. 
Macroeconomic parameters like fiscal deficit, current account 
deficit, Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and inflation are 
healthy. RBI has estimated a GDP growth of 7.4% and 7.7% 
in FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, respectively, vis-à-vis 6.6% in 
FY 2016-17.

	� On the flip side, there exists a measure of uncertainty over the 
Monetary Policy stance. Several concerns surround inflation 
path, viz. revised formula for Minimum Support Prices (MSP) 
as announced in the Budget for kharif crops, staggered impact 
of HRA revisions by various state governments, further fiscal 
slippage considering that it is an election year, spatial/temporal 
distribution of monsoon and volatility in crude oil prices. In the 
recent Monetary Policy, RBI has hiked the benchmark repo 
rate by 25 bps, albeit with a neutral stance.

	� Globally, geopolitical tensions, political instability and oil market 
developments persist as the primary risk for the economy. 
The monetary normalisation process in advanced economies 
poses risks to financial stability across geographies. Tighter 
global liquidity may significantly impact capital flows, leading 
to a spike in financing costs, depreciation in exchange rates 
and a decline in equity prices. Growth may also be impacted 
by protectionist tendencies in some countries.

2.	� Major developments in the banking and financial 
sector in India

	� The year was another challenging one for banks with 
subdued credit growth, continued stress on asset quality, high 
provisioning costs, resulting in declining profits and compliance 
with stringent regulatory requirements. The key events during 
FY 2017-18 in the banking and financial sector are as below:

	 	� Bank recapitalisation scheme: The Government 
announced a large recapitalisation package of 
`2,11,000 crore to strengthen the balance sheets 
of Public Sector Banks (PSBs). The measure 
entailed `76,000 crore of budgetary allocation 
by the Government and the remaining amount of  
`1,35,000 crore through the sale of recapitalisation 
bonds. The scheme helped Public Sector Banks meet 
Basel II norms, stimulate credit growth and mitigate risks 
associated with high Non-Performing Assets (NPAs).

	 	� Imposition of PCA: In April 2017, RBI tightened the 
rules under the ‘Prompt Corrective Action’ framework. 
The objective was to rein in banks whose operational and 
financial metrics were looking weak. Since then, nearly 
half of the Public Sector Undertaking (PSU) banks have 
been put under the prompt corrective action framework. 
The Government and the regulator are being tougher, 
with a clear message that infusion of growth capital will 
be linked to performance. 
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	 	� Measures on the NPA front: Banks are saddled with 
bad loans and the Government made it a priority to lift 
banks out of the Non-Performing Asset  (NPA) crisis and 
revive lending growth. RBI withdrew extant instructions 
on the resolution of stressed assets such as framework 
for Revitalising Distressed Assets, Corporate Debt 
Restructuring (CDR) Scheme, Flexible Structuring of 
Existing Long-Term Project Loans, Strategic Debt 
Restructuring (SDR), change in ownership outside SDR, 
Scheme for Sustainable Structuring of Stressed Assets 
(S4A) and Joint Lenders’ Forum. As part of the resolve 
to reduce the level of NPAs, the Government issued 
two ordinances – Banking Regulation (Amendment) 
Ordinance, 2017, and Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2017, during the year.

		�  The new Indian Bankruptcy Code (IBC) provided a 
resolution framework to help corporates clean up their 
balance sheets and reduce debt. RBI also advised banks 
to set aside 50% provisioning against secured exposure 
and 100% against unsecured exposure in all cases 
referred to bankruptcy. Progress on cases referred to 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)  also remained 
on track. Steel sector that accounts for 20-25% of gross 
NPAs has seen high interest from bidders under NCLT 
process.

	 	� Goods and Services Tax: The Goods and Services 
Tax (GST), launched in July 2017, promises to deliver 
positive outcomes, as India becomes a uniform, more 
competitive market. It is expected to benefit economic 
activity and fiscal sustainability by eliminating multiple 
and often confusing state tax systems. At the same 
time, it will draw informal activity into the formal sector 
and expand the tax base.

		�  India is now entering a new era of harmonised tax 
structure and uniform compliance practices both by 
regulators and businesses. Under this regime, various 
goods and services are now being taxed as per five 
slabs, i.e. zero tax, 5%, 12%, 18% and 28%. Post GST 
implementation, the country’s tax net expanded. To 
reduce the short-term inflationary effect of GST, the GST 
Council cut tax rates on several goods and services by 
moving them to lower tax slabs.

	 	� Improvement in Business Ecosystem: India’s rank 
surged 30 notches to 100 in the World Bank’s ease of 
doing business survey for FY 2017-18. The significant 
elevation was a result of the Government’s pro-reform 
agenda comprising measures such as the passing 

of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), simplifying 
tax computation and merging application for PAN and 
Tax Deduction Account Number (TAN). Moody’s also 
upgraded India’s sovereign rating from Baa3 to Baa2.

	 	� Implementation of Legal Identity Identifier (LEI) 
Code: RBI mandated the implementation of the LEI 
system for all participants in the Over The Counter 
(OTC) markets for rupee interest rate derivatives, foreign 
currency derivatives and credit derivatives as well as 
for large corporate borrowers in India. LEI is a 20-digit 
unique code to identify parties to financial transactions 
worldwide.

3.	� Major development in the Urban Co-operative 
Banking sector

	� A measure taken by RBI in regard to Urban Co-operative 
Banks (UCBs) during FY 2017-18 is:

	 	 �RBI permitted all co-operative banks with ATMs to 
issue semi-closed prepaid cards: RBI permitted co-
operative banks with their own ATM network to issue 
semi-closed prepaid payment instruments, provided 
there are no curbs on acceptance or withdrawal of 
deposits from these banks. Semi-closed prepaid 
payment instruments allow the purchase of goods and 
services at certain merchant locations as per a contract 
with the issuer. These instruments can’t be used for cash 
withdrawal or redemption by the holder.

4.	 Segment-wise performance
(i) 	 Retail Banking
	� Retail advances 
	� Change in focus towards increasing retail lending and 

measures initiated in this direction, resulted in a sharp rise of 
33% in retail advances portfolio. The retail advances have risen 
from `5,709 crore as on 31st March, 2017 to `7,602.36 crore 
as on 31st March, 2018. The share of retail advances to total 
advances increased from 36% to 38.40%.

	� With these encouraging results, your Bank is aiming at raising 
share of retail advances to total advances to 50% in next couple 
of years.

33% Growth
in Retail Advances during FY 2017-18
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	� Priority sector 
	� Your Bank continues to pursue priority sector advances 

including those related to Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises (weaker sections). There has been a rise in your 
Bank’s priority sector advances in FY 2017-18 by `831 crore 
i.e. 27.45% of Adjusted Net Bank Credit compared to 24.95% 
in the last financial year. The retail advances out of total 
priority sector advances saw `772 crore escalation. Unnati, a 
scheme devised for catering to the financial requirements of 
Professionals and Small Business Enterprise, has been one of 
the contributing factors for the enhancement in priority sector 
portfolio. Your Bank has disbursed an amount of `148.39 
crore of Unnati loans against the target of `100 crore in  
FY 2017-18.

	

`148.39 crore
of Unnati loans disbursed during the year 
as against the target of `100 crore

	 Retail Deposits Portfolio
	� The Current and Savings Accounts (CASA) constitute a critical 

ingredient of your Bank’s deposit mix. Your Bank provides a 
wide range of products under CASA to cater to all segments.

	� Overall, 1,63,939 new CASA accounts were opened during 
FY 2017-18, of which 1,48,950 are Savings Accounts and 
14,989 are Current Accounts. The CASA balances increased 
to `10,793.88 crore as on 31st March, 2018, an escalation of 
1,344.76 crore in absolute terms with an increase in CASA 
percentage from 28.01 to 30.79.

	 Position of CASA Deposits

	 Table No. 2					     (` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Total Deposits 35,056.66 33,737.42

CASA Deposits 10,793.88 9,449.12

Increase in CASA 1,344.76 2,038.26

% of CASA to total 
deposits

30.79% 28.01%

Table No. 1 (` in crore)

31/03/2017 31/03/2018

Advances Amount NPA % Advances Amount NPA % Rise

Retail Schematic 4,874.00 35.77 0.73 Retail Schematic 5,723.70 48.29 0.84 849.70

Retail Commercial 835.00 73.12 8.76 Retail Commercial 1,878.66 74.70 3.98 1,043.66

Total 5,709.00 108.89  1.90 Total 7,602.36 122.99 1.62 1,893.36

	 Mudra Yojana
	� Your Bank launched the Pradhan Mantri  Mudra Yojana 

(PMMY) for encouraging micro enterprises. These enterprises 
are engaged in manufacturing, trading, services and other 
income generating activity. Loans of up to `10 lakh for 
non‑farm income generating activity will be branded as PMMY 
loans.  Under PMMY, three schemes (‘Shishu’, ‘Kishore’ 
and ‘Tarun’) are promoted to signify the stage of growth/
development and funding requirements of the beneficiary 
micro unit/entrepreneur.

	� Implementation of Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) 
– Credit linked subsidy scheme

	� Your Bank has entered into an agreement with National 
Housing Bank (NHB), the nodal agency established for the 
implementation of PMAY, a credit-linked subsidy scheme. 
It was launched by the Central Government for Economically 
Weaker Sections (EWS) and Lower Income Groups (LIG) to 
provide affordable housing through credit linked subsidy. The 
scheme was later extended for middle-income groups (MIG I 
and MIG II). The details of applications received, and subsidy 
benefit given by NHB during FY 2017-18 is stated below:

Table No. 3 

Scheme  
Types

Applications received 
and sent to NHB 

Claims settled  
by NHB

EWS / LIG old 39 15

EWS / LIG new 75 23

MIG I 29 29

MIG II 2 2

Total 145 69

	� The remaining 76 subsidy claims have been settled by NHB in 
the current financial year 2018-19.
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	 Distribution of insurance products:
	 During FY 2017-18, your Bank earned revenue of `7.37 crore from the sale of third party insurance products as under:

	 Table No. 4										           (` in crore)
Segments Name of the Partner Products 2017-18

Actual No. of 
Policies

Premium 
Mobilised

Revenue 
Generated

Life HDFC Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (HDFC LI) Individual Life Insurance  
& Group Business

3,679 23.17 2.92

Future Generali Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Individual Life Insurance 3,196 12.96 1.77

General Bajaj Allianz General Insurance  
Co. Ltd. (BAGIC)

General Insurance 30,573 8.82 1.21

HDFC General Insurance Ltd. General Insurance 4,324 2.11 0.23

Health Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd. Health Insurance 3,126 4.24 0.66

CIGNA TTK Health Insurance Co. Ltd. Health Insurance 3,731 4.15 0.54

Others Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana PMJJBY/PMSBY 29,198 0.30 0.04

Total 77,827 55.75 7.37

	 Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana
	� Your Bank has extended Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana facility to 

its customers through tie-up with M/s. HDFC Life Insurance Co. 
Ltd. for Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana (PMJJBY). 
We have also tied up with M/s. Bajaj Allianz General Insurance 
Company Ltd. & M/s. New India Assurance Company Ltd. 
for providing services under Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima 
Yojana (PMSBY). Your Bank has earned an income of `0.04 
crore from this activity towards reimbursement of expenses.

 	 Mutual Fund
	� Your Bank launched its mutual fund distribution activity in 

January 2018; and is initially empanelled with HDFC, LIC, L&T 
and Reliance Mutual Fund Companies.

	� During the three-month span, your Bank achieved business of 
`43.58 crore.

	 Demat
	� Your Bank provides depository services through NSDL and 

CDSL. More than 3,000 new Demat accounts were opened 
during the year. As applying for IPO (Initial Public Offer) through 
ASBA (Application Supported by Blocked Amount) has been 
made compulsory by SEBI, there is a sharp rise in ASBA 
applications during this period.

	� Your Bank supported IPOs through ASBA for 107 equity/
rights and four debt market issues. Your Bank has 
received/processed more than 85,000 IPO applications 
during the year. The total revenue earned from Demat 
services during the year was `3.36 crore. This includes 
income of `1.36 crore through the tie-up arrangement with  
M/s. Religare Securities Ltd., for providing online broking 
facility. More than 1,000 accounts have been opened during  
FY 2017-18.

	� Credit Card
	� Your Bank announced the launch of Credit Card at its 

Centenary Year function held on 14th September, 2017. It 
launched its RuPay Platinum International Credit Card in 
association with National Payments Corporation of India 
(NPCI). Credit Cards represent another value addition to your 
Bank’s bouquet of products and services. Credit Cards were 
introduced with dedicated Loyalty programme and exclusive 
offers. This programme will help customers derive more value 
from the Credit Cards.

	� Microfinance
	� Your Bank decided to venture into the microfinance business 

from 2008-09 to help uplift the rural poor and empower 
women. Accordingly, your Bank approved the granting of 
microfinance loans for rural artisans, small traders, and micro 
enterprises, who hail from the bottom of the social pyramid; 
and need capital to fulfil their financial aspirations.

	� Clean Loan Scheme was implemented initially in the branches 
of Sindhudurg and Ratnagiri districts on a pilot basis for a  
six-month period; and was extended for a further period of a 
year up to 31st March, 2018.

	� Your Bank financed 222 loans amounting to `55 lakh during 
the year. More than 4,000 urban beneficiaries were financed 
under this micro-finance loan scheme.

(ii)	 SBU – Wholesale Banking
	� In FY 2017-18, the overall sentiment in the credit market 

remained subdued owing to elevating bad loans and 
infrastructure projects.

	� Under such circumstances, your Bank focussed on quality 
advances, keeping growth at a steady level and concentrating 
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on small and medium ticket size advances. There are several 
new initiatives taken by the Government and RBI; and  
FY 2018-19 is expected to be a year of encouraging credit 
growth.

	� Your Bank’s wholesale advances stood at `14,469.37 crore 
as on 31st March, 2018, registering a growth of 5.10% over 
the previous year of `13,767.25 crore. The contribution of 
wholesale advances to total advances as on 31st March, 2018 
was 61.60%.

(iii)	 Forex Business
	� Your Bank has a RBI licence for Foreign Exchange Business 

since 1979. Your Bank caters to the foreign exchange 
requirements of its customers through well-established 
Forex Centres.

	� During the year under review, the Foreign Exchange 
Merchant turnover of your Bank stood at `23,888.64 crore 
against `19,312.06 crore in the previous year. Export finance 
outstanding as on 31st March, 2018 was `1,118.59 crore.

	� During the year, your Bank was awarded ‘Wells Fargo 
Operational Excellence Award’, by Wells Fargo Bank NA USA, 
our major NOSTRO correspondent bank. The award recognises 
improvement in the quality of operational service levels in the 
global payments community, reflecting superior transaction 
processing quality. This results in higher efficiencies and cost 
reductions. The award process follows a method of rigorous 
objective assessment by Wells Fargo and is audited by KPMG, 
based on global standards.

	� Your Bank has arranged foreign currency funds from its major 
correspondent banks under lines of credit sanctioned to your 
Bank to make available foreign currency funds to its exporter 
customers at competitive interest rates. Your Bank has 
accounts in nine major currencies with leading international 
banks and correspondent relations with banks globally. This 
facilitates smooth trade operations of exporter/importer 
customers of your Bank.

	� Your Bank offers travel-related services to customers travelling 
abroad. It provides foreign currencies and travel cards at 
competitive exchange rates. It also handles the foreign 
exchange business of customers of select co-operative banks 
which do not have RBI licence to deal in foreign exchange, 
under lines of credit sanctioned to them. During the review 
year, your Bank extended and renewed lines of credit for 
foreign exchange business for 14 co-operative banks, which 
stood at an aggregate level of `161 crore.

(iv)	 SBU – Treasury Operations
	� The year 2017-18 was once again a challenging one for 

Treasury operations. A sharp rise in yields was witnessed in 
the second half of the year on account of inflationary pressures 
and concerns on the fiscal front. The Treasury Team managed 
to adopt a balanced approach, on the one hand churning the 

investment portfolio to generate substantial trading profits and 
at the same time deploying your Bank’s liquidity in suitable 
investment assets to generate interest income. Besides, the 
core role of day-to-day funds management and compliance 
with Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR)/Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)  
requirements of RBI was carried out effectively.

	� The market cycle has now turned and yields are witnessing 
an upward trend. With this reversal in interest rate cycle, the 
Treasury profitability in the coming year may be relatively 
subdued.

5.	 Human Resources
	� People are your Bank’s crucial assets to attain organisational 

objectives. The key to long-term success is talent management. 
It also involves building and sustaining a supportive, people-
oriented culture within the organisation, as ‘quality human 
resources’ is a distinct competitive advantage.

	� The recruitment of employees, extensive training and 
developing of existing employees, devising new Human 
Resources (HR) policies and processes, devising egalitarian 
pay packages, motivation and retention of skilled employees 
through job rotation, job enrichment and empowerment, open 
communication, employee counselling are regularly undertaken 
by the Human Resource Development (HRD) Department.

	� Some of the major initiatives taken by the HRD Department 
during FY 2017-18 are as under:

	 1.	� Wage Revision of Executives, Management and  
Non-Management employees

		�  The Agreement dated 7th May, 2015 and the Settlement 
dated 19th May, 2015 were applicable for the period up to 
31st March, 2017. In view of your Bank’s Centenary Year, the 
Officers’ Association and the Employees’ Union interacted 
with the Management for wage revision to address the 
aspirations of the employees and submitted their charters of 
demand. Your Bank signed a Memorandum of Agreement 
and Memorandum of Settlement dated 22nd  January, 
2018 with Saraswat Bank Officers’ Association and 
Saraswat Bank Employees’ Union, respectively, granting 
upward revision in salary/wages, allowances and other 
service conditions for all employees in Management and  
Non-Management cadres. The increase in remuneration 
was also accorded to Executives.

	 2.	 Recruitment
		�  During FY 2017-18, your Bank recruited 122 employees 

of which 45 were in Management cadre and 77 were in 
Non-Management cadre. Of the 122 candidates recruited, 
eight are lateral recruits with rich and varied experience 
in reputed nationalised, private and co-operative banks, 
which will strengthen your Bank’s operations in the long 
run. Seven lateral recruits are appointed in Management 
and one joined in Non-Management cadre. The new 
recruits include 18 in Grade A and 104 in Grade B.
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	 3.	 Formation of New Departments
		�  It is essential to find the right fit for every role at an 

organisation. Your Bank’s HRD department helps your 
Bank to identify suitable candidates for roles within your 
Bank and trains and grooms them to deliver its services 
seamlessly. Your Bank conducted the STAR exercise 
during the previous year and its inputs were used in 
selecting the most suitable candidates and providing the 
right talent for the new units such as Advertising Alliances 
and Corporate Communications (AACC), Customer 
Relations and Experience (CRE), Digital Banking 
Department (DBD), Credit Card Cell (CCC) and Mutual 
Funds Department, which have contributed significantly 
to the business of your Bank.

	 4.	 Promotions
		�  During FY2017-18, there were 348 promotions to various 

positions in the Executive and Management cadres 
according to business exigencies. In the Executive 
cadre, 30 Executives were promoted to various positions 
and designated as Managing Director; Joint Managing 
Director; two Deputy Managing Directors; three Chief 
General Managers; two Dy. Chief General Managers; 
three General Managers; four Deputy General Managers; 
and 14 Assistant General Managers and critical portfolios.

		�  In the Management cadre, 318 promotions were made 
to various positions i.e. 18 Chief Managers, 46 Senior 
Managers, 94 Managers and 160 Deputy Managers.

	 5.	 Employee Strength
		�  Overall, your Bank’s employee strength reduced by 

61  during FY 2017-18 due to reasons like death, 
retirement, resignation and dismissal.

	 Table No. 5

Summary of Employees Recruited/Exited 
During FY 2017-18

Nos.

Number of Employees as on  
31st March, 2017

4,122

Number of Employees recruited during  
FY 2017-18

122

Sub-Total 4,244

Less: Employees who exited/left

1. Natural Death 3

2. Accidental Death 2

3. Normal Retirement 65

4. Resignation 113

Total Employees exiting your Bank 183

Number of Employees as on  
31st March, 2018

4,061

	 6.	 Learning & Development
	 a)	 Training Programmes at Staff Learning Centre
		�  During FY 2017-18, your Bank conducted 

120  programmes through its Staff Learning Centre, 
which included training programme for new recruits; 
orientation programme for promoted Deputy Managers; 
Management Development Programme (MDP) for Branch 
Managers; programmes on digital banking; priority sector 
lending; retail lending; Know Your Customer (KYC)/ 
Anti-Money Laundering (AML)/ Banking Codes and 
Standards Board of India (BCSBI); negotiation skills; 
covering various banking operations like credit appraisal; 
monitoring/follow up; retail marketing; marketing of third 
party products;  ATM functionality; cash management; 
customer service; foreign exchange and others. 
Apart from these, special training programmes were 
conducted on Trade Based Money Laundering (TBML), 
IT security, prevention of cyber crimes, motivation for staff 
deployed in non-performing branches, happy retirement 
and so on. The training programmes  covered 2,813 
employees comprising 1,318  from Management cadre 
and 1,495 from Non-Management cadre.

	 b)	 External Training Programmes
		�  During the reporting period, 40 employees were deputed 

for various external training programmes conducted 
by prestigious  institutes/organisations, like Centre for 
Advanced Financial Research and Learning  (CAFRAL); 
National Institute of Bank Management (NIBM); 
Institute for Development and Research in Banking 
Technology (IDRBT);  Foreign Exchange Dealers 
Association of India  (FEDAI), Federation of Indian 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI); Indian 
Banks’ Association (IBA); National Federation of  
Urban Co-operative Banks (NAFCUB), Indian Institute 
of Banking and Finance (IIBF), Indian Institute 
of Management-Indore (IIM-Indore)  and others. 
Besides, with an objective to offer motivation to managers, 
your Bank partnered with HDFC Life for conducting a 
special training for 35 of its management staff at HDFC 
Life Training Institute,  Lonavala. Christened as RISE—
Responsibility, Innovation, Strategic  Excellence – the 
programme was designed in consultation with the top 
management to ensure that it was relevant to the needs 
of your Bank and imparted new skills to the participants 
to enhance their performance. The programme covered 
emotional intelligence, conflict management, decision-
making, problem-solving attitude, change management, 
out-of-the-box thinking and more.



39Annual Report 2017-18

B
ank O

verview
 1-29

S
tatutory R

ep
orts 30-63

Financial S
tatem

ents and
 O

thers  64-99

	� Moreover, the Credit Risk Management function, Market 
Risk Management function, Operational Risk Management 
Committee (ORMC) and all other senior management 
committees are mainly responsible for ensuring the compliance 
of the BOD approved risk management policy and for monitoring 
and managing risk levels in relevant areas of your Bank.

	� Your Bank’s risk management policy, formulated on regulatory 
guidelines, covers all major types of risk that your Bank is 
exposed to. The policy is laid down on key risk management 
principles which includes management oversight and control 
culture, risk recognition and assessment, control activities and 
segregation of duties, information and communication and 
monitoring activities and correcting deficiencies.

	� Your Bank is undertaking several initiatives in the areas of 
assessment, measurement and monitoring of credit risk, 
market risk, funding liquidity risk and operational risk. These 
measures are providing competitive advantage to your Bank 
besides preparing it to move towards the full implementation 
of Basel norms. Basel norms are currently not applicable to 
UCBs but are necessary in line with best prudent banking 
practices in order to improve risk governance and control.

	 Credit Risk
	� Credit risk is a risk arising from the potential that an obligor 

is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to 
perform is impaired, resulting in financial loss to your Bank. 
Credit risk mainly arises from all placement of deposits, lending 
and investment activities i.e. transactions that give rise to 
actual, contingent or potential claims against any counterparty, 
borrower or obligor. Lending of money is the core business 
activity, a major source of revenue and a significant exposure 
for your Bank. Loans are mainly funded from depositors’ 
money. In order to protect the stakeholders’ wealth, your Bank 
has deployed considerable resources and adequate controls 
to manage, monitor and control credit risk throughout your 
Bank. The main objective of the credit risk management 
process is to identify, assess, measure and monitor credit risk 
in all the financial exposures of your Bank. 

	� Your Bank is in the process of establishing a rigorous credit 
risk management framework to timely and effectively manage 
credit risk at transaction as well as at portfolio level. 

	� Your Bank is in the process of enhancing the organisational 
structure for managing credit risk, established on internal 
control environment and will be equipped with adequate level 
of expertise and resources.

	 Market Risk
	� Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet 

positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by 
movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and/or commodity 
prices, resulting in a loss to earnings and capital.

6. 	�RECOGNITION OF 
STAKEHOLDERS IN THE 
CENTENARY YEAR

�	� The Bank has achieved a position of eminence in 
the Co‑operative Banking Sector because of the 
persistent efforts of the employees both retired 
and present and the unflinching support of the 
shareholders.

�In this Centenary Year, it would be befitting to 
recognize and acknowledge their contribution by 
forming five trusts i.e. For Non-Management Staff, 
Management Staff, Executives, Retired Employees 
and Shareholders Benefit Trust which will each own 
not more than 5 % of the Bank’s paid-up capital 
and the said trusts would act for the beneficiaries 
from the dividend income derived from respective 
shareholding.

7.	 Risk Management
	� The primary goal of risk management is to identify, assess 

and monitor risks inherent in the activities of your Bank and 
take adequate measures to manage and control these risks 
on a timely basis. This will help in achieving sustainable 
business growth, financial and non-financial targets with 
better protection and soundness. Your Bank’s aim is to 
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and 
to minimise potential adverse effects on your Bank’s financial 
performance.

	� Your Bank’s risk management framework encompasses the 
culture, processes and structure and is directed towards 
the effective management of potential opportunities and 
threats to your Bank. The prime objective of your Bank’s risk 
management strategy is to move from the traditional approach 
of ‘managing risk by silos’ and to put in place integrated risk 
and economic capital management capabilities that will enable 
your Bank to achieve integrated view of risks across its various 
business operations and to gain strategic advantage from its 
risk management capabilities. 

	� The Board of Directors keeps an overview on your Bank-
wide risk management framework and approves the risk 
management strategy and policies of your Bank.

	� The Board has constituted Central Management Committee 
(CENMAC) of Senior Executives, which helps the Board to 
ensure that your Bank maintains a complete and prudent 
integrated risk management framework at all times and 
ensures that the risk exposures are maintained within 
acceptable levels.
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	 Market Risk Management Objective and Organisation
	� The Risk Management Framework requires that strong risk 

management practices are integrated in key strategic, capital 
and financial planning processes and day-to-day business 
processes across your Bank.

	� Your Bank has established a rigorous market risk management 
framework to efficiently and effectively monitor and manage 
market risk in every transaction as well as at portfolio level. 
CENMAC is primarily responsible to monitor and manage 
market risk in all the financial exposures of your Bank, 
supported by Asset and Liability Management Committee 
(ALCO).

	 Liquidity Risk
	� Liquidity risk is the potential inability to meet contractual and 

contingent financial obligations, either on or off-balance sheet, 
as they become due. Primary liquidity objective of your Bank 
is to provide adequate funding for businesses throughout 
market cycles, including periods of financial stress. Liquidity 
Management day to day funding is managed by the Treasury 
Division through net cash flows from payment systems, fresh 
deposits mobilised by branches, maturing money market 
deposits, etc.

	� Your Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable assets, 
viz., Govt. Securities and Treasury Bills, that can either 
be sold in the open market or against which funds can be 
arranged under repo arrangements. This is further supported 
by investments in short-term securities viz. Certificate of 
Deposits, etc. In line with its liquidity risk management policy, 
your Bank maintains a cushion over and above the minimum 
statutory liquidity requirement of the RBI, for maintaining 
liquidity reserves, to ensure continuity of cash flows.

	� Liquidity Risk Monitoring
	� Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), a senior 

management committee, reviews the liquidity position of your 
Bank on a regular basis and takes appropriate measures 
where required.

	 Operational Risk
	� Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from 

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems 
or external events. This includes legal risk as well as the 
reputational consequences of failures in operational risk 
management. Your Bank is in the process of implementing 
Basel’s Basic Indicator Approach for assessing capital 
charge for operational risk as a prudent practice, although 
not applicable currently to UCBs as per RBI guidelines.

	� The main objective of the operational risk management is 
to minimise expected and unexpected losses arising out 
of the operational activities of your Bank. Your Bank has 
initiated a rigorous operational risk management framework 
to efficiently and effectively monitor and manage operational 

risk in each business and support activity of your Bank as 
well as those arising from external events like from natural 
disasters, etc.

	� Your Bank is setting up a strong organisation structure for 
managing operational risk, established on strong internal 
control environment and equipped with adequate level of 
expertise and resources.

	� Your Bank has also formed an Operational Risk Management 
Committee (ORMC), a management committee to assist 
the CENMAC, to ensure the compliance of BOD-approved 
operational risk management framework, supported by the 
Risk Management Division (RMD).

	� Operational Risk Assessment
	� Your Bank has initiated Risk and Control Self-Assessment 

(RCSA) exercise for each business and support function 
of your Bank in order to identify and assess operational 
risks inherent in existing activities, processes and systems. 
Through the RCSA exercise, your Bank will be able to 
develop inventory of risks, controls and Key Risk Indicators 
(KRI) and has identified gaps in its operating activities that 
can be rectified on a priority basis.

	� Operational Risk Monitoring
	� Operational risk monitoring will be conducted through 

KRIs, identified in the RCSA exercise for each process. All 
branches, offices, divisions/departments would need to 
furnish KRI reports on a periodical basis to the Operational 
Risk Management Department (within the Risk Management 
Division).

	� Operational Risk Measurement
	� Your Bank has implemented a process of ‘Unusual Event’ 

(UE) reporting-a detailed track of its operational loss events 
and also a loss database to maintain history of events as per 
the classifications of Basel and RBI. This helps your Bank to 
step towards approach of Basel II accord and also allows 
your Bank to formulate strategy to prevent recurrence of the 
incident.

	� Your Bank has, in compliance of RBI guidelines on 
Management of Operational Risks, created separate 
Operational Loss general ledgers in your Bank’s system, 
which are being used for reporting of operational losses 
and are bifurcated into 7 operational loss categories as per 
the requirement of Basel II accord. Your Bank also gathers 
external loss events occurring in the banking industry and 
designs strategies to prevent occurrence of similar incidents 
in your Bank.

8.	 Audit and Inspection
	� Your Bank has a robust and risk-focussed audit mechanism 

for its operations. Its audit process is automated and your 
Bank has switched to the web-based online audit model 
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for better operational efficiency and standardisation of audit 
processes across all branches.

	� Your Bank employs various controls like Information Systems 
(IS) audit mechanism to mitigate risks adequately. Various 
IS audit policies are prepared according to RBI guidelines 
and International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) 
standards and their proper implementation is ensured across 
all segments of your Bank. Your Bank has a dedicated team 
to oversee and ensure information security audit.

9.	 Vigilance
	� The advent of the digital era and new technologies in banking 

have brought with them increased risks of banking frauds. 
This has led to an industry-wide movement for better vigilance 
and adoption of proactive measures that help in avoiding 
such incidents. Your Bank believes in a pre-emptive approach 
towards vigilance. To ensure the same, transactions are 
scrutinised and reported when necessary to the concerned 
authorities. Major vigilance activities at department levels 
include reporting of detection of counterfeit currency notes 
and fraud cases to RBI, investigation of frauds/attempted 
frauds, preventive vigilance by way of scrutiny of various 
types of transactions and so on.

	� Your Bank has a Vigilance Department that primarily 
focusses on four functions relating to frauds, viz. detection, 
investigation, correction and prevention. The department 
circulates modus operandi of frauds that have occurred in your 
Bank, along with the precautions to be taken. It also provides 
details of fraud cases in the banking industry compiled by 
Indian Banks’ Association (IBA), which are uploaded on the 
employee portal for information of your Bank’s staff members 
so as to avoid recurrence of such frauds.

	� Your Bank further undertook the analysis of frauds at your 
Bank, as well as in other banks to identify gaps/loopholes 
in its systems and procedures, if any, and select suitable 
corrective measures to prevent probable frauds. All frauds 
and actions taken thereupon are reported to the CENMAC, 
the Board of Directors and Audit Committee of the Board. 
The incidents of frauds are also circulated in your Bank’s 
newsletter ‘Madhusattva’. Circulars are issued for educating 
the staff and reiterating the procedures to be followed to 
prevent instances of fraud.

10.	 Formation of New Departments
10.1	Digital Banking Department
	� One of the most transformative events of recent years has been 

the quick adoption of emerging technologies and digitalisation 
by the banking sector. The outcome: a) superlative customer 
experience and b) efficient and agile operating models for banks.

	� Your Bank has been at the vanguard of digitalisation since 
the last couple of years. It has a dedicated ‘Digital Banking 
Department’ to facilitate the adoption of digital technology and 

newer business models. The emphasis is towards enriching 
the customer experience, while using your Bank’s products 
and services by leveraging digital technology.

	 	� Mobile Banking: Your Bank has implemented various 
functionalities on its mobile banking app ‘GOMO’ for its 
customers across multiple operating systems. With the 
GOMO app, customers can now register themselves for 
mobile banking, create fixed deposits, register beneficiary, 
transact via NEFT, manage Debit Cards and make 
payments through Bharat Quick Response (QR), among 
others. Your Bank’s mobile banking has truly empowered 
customers to transact on the go. Customer registration for 
mobile banking increased to 5.50 lakh as on 31st March, 
2018 vis-à-vis 3.83 lakh as on 31st March, 2017.

	 	 ��Unified Payment Interface (UPI): Your Bank 
implemented the UPI, an interoperable platform, 
developed by the National Payments Corporation of India 
(NPCI) for 24x7 funds transfer and bill payments. Through 
UPI, customers can create their Virtual Payment Address 
(VPA), akin to an email id, for seamless fund transfer 
and receipt. During FY 2017-18, your Bank was able to 
register 2.19 lakh customers for the UPI platform.

	 	� Bharat QR: Your Bank enabled customers to scan the 
Quick Response (QR) code displayed at the merchant’s 
shop/website through the GOMO app to make payments 
for the purchase of commodities, availing service, bill 
payments and e-commerce, among others.

	 	 �One-Page Internet Banking: Your Bank launched 
the revamped version of internet banking, termed as 
One‑Page Internet banking. Customers can self-onboard 
through his/her Debit Card, transfer funds, create fixed 
deposits and bill payments, among others. Customer 
registration for One-Page Internet Banking touched 5.51 
lakh as on 31st March, 2018 vis-à-vis 3.87 lakh as on 
31st March, 2017.

	 	� Corporate Internet Banking: Your Bank extended 
internet banking services to corporate customers such 
as entities, partnership firms and companies, among 
others. For Corporate Internet Banking, multiple level 
authentication and varied transaction limits were 
incorporated from the perspective of convenience and 
usability. Corporates can now manage cheque book 
requests, salary uploads and funds transfer, among 
others through corporate internet banking.

	 	� Bharat Bill Payment System (BBPS): Your Bank 
participated in the National Payments Corporation 
of India’s initiative of enabling utility bill payments for 
customers as well as for non-customers at your Bank’s 
branches. The module for bill payments and recharges 
was made available to customers at your Bank’s website.
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	 	� Prepaid Card: Your Bank announced the launch 
of Prepaid Payment Instruments (PPIs) in the form 
of Gift Card at the Centenary Year function held on  
14th September, 2017. We are happy to inform you that 
your Bank is the first among the co-operative banking 
sector to receive RBI’s permission for launching PPIs.

		�  Prepaid Payment Instruments represent an innovative form 
of payment instrument to fulfil customer requirements for 
everyday purchases, travelling overseas, gifting, charitable 
donations, studying abroad and prevention of over-
spending; and can be issued in the form of card or mobile 
wallet. PPIs in the form of cards can be used at ATMs, POS 
and for online transactions, based on the type of PPI.

	 	� Gift Card: Your Bank has launched a Gift Card in 
collaboration with NPCI’s RuPay Card scheme, a perfect 
instrument for individual and corporate gifting. Gift Card 
can be used by customers for their purchase at POS and 
online transactions.

	 	� Payment Gateways: Your Bank is now available 
across 10 payment gateways through which customers 
can transact at various e-commerce websites for the 
purchase of merchandise, commodities and services, 
among others through their internet banking credentials.

	 	� Saraswat Quick Pay (Referral model): Your Bank 
offers an online collection feature for entities, partnership 
firms, companies, societies, schools and trusts, among 
others, to receive payments through Saraswat Bank’s 
website or their existing website, if available. Accordingly, 
the debtor/payer of our customer can choose to make 
online payment through his/her Debit Card, Credit Card, 
wallet or via internet banking.

	 	� Saraswat Bank Connect: Your Bank has made 
available an Android app by which various missed 
call and SMS services are offered to customers in an 
integrated way. Missed call services, viz. balance enquiry, 
blocking cards and SMS services such as applying for 
loan, stop payment of cheque, among others can be 
availed through the app.

	 	� SMS Banking: Your Bank has undertaken various 
initiatives for creating customer awareness as well as 
promoting your Bank’s products/services through the 
SMS banking facility. Your Bank has registered over 23 
lakh customers for the SMS banking facility.

	 	� Debit Cards: Your Bank has always strived to offer 
convenience banking to the customers and Debit Cards 
have emerged as the most suitable instrument to transact 
digitally. Accordingly, your Bank issued 2.10 lakh Debit 
Cards (RuPay/VISA) for the financial year 2017-18. Your 
Bank has also launched the Digital Debit Card through 
which customers can instantly generate virtual card for 
online transactions.

	 	� ATMs: During the year under review, your Bank opened 
3 new ATMs taking the total count of our ATMs to 
260. Further, we have implemented various options at 
our ATMs, viz. Green PIN, Cardless Cash withdrawal, 
mobile banking registrations, mobile number update, 
among others. Our ATMs are also equipped to process 
International Debit Cards through NPCI’s network.

	 	� Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS): Your 
Bank has an ambitious business expansion plan to mark 
its presence in all major Indian cities through a network of 
business correspondents. Your Bank was one of the four 
banks in Maharashtra to provide Business Correspondent 
and Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS) at Ration 
Shops or Fair Price Shops (FPS) in 10  districts in the 
State, where there are more than 51,000 FPS. These 
districts include Sangli, Pune, Sindhudurg, Kolhapur, 
Akola, Nagpur, Jalgaon, Solapur, Ratnagiri and Nashik.

		�  Your Bank has enabled customers to use Aadhaar as his/
her identity to access his/her respective bank account 
and perform basic banking transactions such as balance 
enquiry, cash deposit, cash withdrawal, remittances that 
are intrabank or interbank in nature, through a business 
correspondent.

	 	� National Electronic Toll Collection (NETC): Your Bank 
also participates in National Electronic Toll Collection 
with a reloadable fast tag for automatic deduction of toll 
charges at toll plazas and Bharat QR, a scan and pay 
facility using Debit Cards.

10.2	Customer Relations and Experience Department (CRE)
	� Customers remain at the heart of your Bank and delivering 

exceptional customer experience continues to be your Bank’s 
objective. At Saraswat Bank, customers are delighted by 
the best of both worlds, as your Bank provides traditional 
relationship-based and contemporary technology-based 
banking services. The confluence of modernity and tradition is 
encapsulated in your Bank’s tagline ‘Mile Yahan, Dono Jahan’.

	� Your Bank is recognised for its customer-centric services for 
over a century. In its Centenary Year, it undertook several new 
measures to enrich its special relationship with customers and 
improve customer experience. During the year under review, 
your Bank set up a Customer Relations and Experience 
Department (CRE) to develop a focussed approach towards 
delighting customers, primarily through direct connect using 
multiple communication channels.

	 Initiatives:
	� The initial objective of CRE was to connect with 10 lakh customers 

during FY 2017-18 using various channels of communication. 
Additionally, in the reporting period, the CRE rolled out various 
initiatives to strengthen customer connect, such as:
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	 	� Celebrating Establishment Day of respective branches of 
the Bank to have one-on-one interaction with customers.

	 	� Thanking customers for their patronage by sending 
Relationship Anniversary messages.

	 	� Reactivating dormant accounts with messages to remind 
customers of the merits of dealing with Saraswat Bank.

	 	� Seeking feedback through SMS link to help improve 
products and services.

	 	� Organising customer relationship meetings at nine 
locations (Mumbai, Delhi, Indore, Nashik, Nagpur, 
Aurangabad, Goa, Kudal and Belgaum) where your 
Bank’s leadership, including Chairman, Directors, 
Managing Director and other senior Executives, 
personally interacted with customers.

	 	� Implementing favourable suggestions based on valuable 
customer feedbacks.

	 	� Incorporating suggestions for improving work conditions 
at branches, with a view to enhance customer experience.

	 Response from customers:
	� Your Bank’s customers overwhelmingly supported the CRE 

initiatives, as indicated in the inputs received from their 
feedback forms, as well as in face-to-face interactions and 
customer calls.

	� Face-to-face interactions with customers also indicated their 
very high level of satisfaction with your Bank’s services. Over 
98% of the customers met during branch visits rated your 
Bank’s services as ‘Very Good or Good’, as indicated in the 
chart below:

Customer Feedback on the Bank’s Services

Very Good Satisfactory Good

81%

18%

1%

CRE’s inputs based on the feedback from customers also helped 
your Bank improve its various services and infrastructure.

10.3	�Advertising, Alliances and Corporate Communications
	�� Your Bank set up the Advertising, Alliances and Corporate 

Communications (AACC) Department in April 2017. Its 
objective is to have a dedicated marketing team that will 
propagate and promote your Bank’s brand and its services 
meaningfully and effectively.

	� During FY 2017-18, the AACC was involved in the following 
activities:

	 Advertisements:
	 Traditional Advertisement:
	 Television
	 	� Your Bank developed a new television commercial/

one‑minute-video film on its Unnati business loan, as in 
FY 2017-18, your Bank’s focus was on priority sector lending.

		�  This film depicted three stories of small business owners, 
who believed in hard work to grow their business. The 
commercial was supported with punchy and energised 
soundtrack and an inspiring tagline, Yashasvi Bhava. The 
Unnati TV commercial was released on leading General 
Entertainment Channels (GECs), regional news channels 
and business news channels across India. It helped grow 
your Bank’s commercial loans business.

	 	� Your Bank was associated with Majha Maharashtra Digital 
Maharashtra, a special show on ABP Majha, to provide 
impetus to its digital products. This sponsorship provided 
a large platform on mainstream media to showcase your 
Bank’s digital banking services. Shri Milind Varerkar, Head, 
IT Department, was one of the panellists in the show. 
Shri Kunal Karkhanis, Head – Digital Banking Department, 
gave a live demo of online account opening, Bharat QR 
in Mobile Banking and Bharat Interface for Money (BHIM) 
UPI App during the show.

	 Outdoor
	 	� As a part of innovative outdoor advertising, for the first 

time, the entire Konkan Kanya/Mandovi Express train 
was branded with your Bank’s Centenary Year theme 
for a period of six months from September 2017 to  
February 2018.

	 	� Your Bank further continued with outdoor advertisements 
for the entire year at the Mumbai International Airport.

	 Radio and Cinema
	 	� During FY 2017-18, your Bank also pursued radio 

and cinema advertisements to complement its other 
promotional efforts. The Saraswat Bank brand and 
its Unnati business loan advertisements were played 
for a week each between select top grossing movies.  
The advertisements reached 147 screens (single-screen 
and multiplex) throughout the cities where your Bank 
has branches. According to location-wise ratings and 
listenership across your Bank’s area of operation, leading 
radio stations were selected for advertisements.
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	 Digital Advertisement:
	� Saraswat Bank connected with people through social media 

during FY 2017-18. With the help of informative and engaging 
posts, videos, GIFs, fresh content and other innovative formats, 
your Bank reached a younger audience. Along with Facebook 
and Twitter handle, Saraswat Bank also launched its own 
YouTube channel and Instagram handle. Within a month of its 
launch, your Bank gained an encouraging Instagram following 
(1,000 followers) and during the reporting year, its Facebook 
followers reached 1.30 lakh.

	 Alliances:
	� During 2017-18, your Bank developed partnerships that went 

beyond banking. Your Bank exclusively associated with its 
existing corporate customers in retail businesses like jewellery, 
dining and garment, among others. Your Bank collaborated 
with its corporate customers to provide its retail customers 
with exclusive offers. This association helped both retail and 
corporate customers in deriving maximum value from this 
association.

	� Your Bank further launched a special title ‘Saraswat Bank 
Discount Carnival’ for all exclusive tie-ups and campaigns and 
included offers like Saraswat Bank Discount Carnival – Food 
Festival, Saraswat Bank Discount Carnival – Diwali Offers and 
others. Your Bank collaborated with various renowned brands.

	 Saraswat Bank Rewardz:
	� Your Bank also launched an enterprise-wide loyalty 

programme, Saraswat Bank Rewardz, as a part of its 
Centenary celebrations to add value to its customers’ banking 
experience. The programme allows customers to collect 
reward points for their credit card, debit card, internet banking 
and mobile banking transactions, including for in-store buys, 
online purchases and utility bill payments. They can also 
earn extra points for transacting at partner stores like Kalyan 
Jewellers, Reliance Trends, United Colours of Benetton and 
PNG Jewellers, among others. Customers can redeem their 
points on your Bank’s website or at any of its 8,000+ Max Get 
More partner stores. They can also redeem points for utility 
purposes like Mobile/DTH recharge, flight, hotel and movie 
tickets; vouchers and a wide range of merchandise.

	 Events:
	� Your Bank celebrated its 100th anniversary by inviting 

its top customers at an event at Sri Shanmukhananda 
Chandrasekarendra Saraswathi Auditorium, Matunga. This 
event was graced by eminent personalities from socio-
political backgrounds and regulation agencies.  Subsequently, 
various events were organised at your Bank’s prime locations 
in Nashik, Nagpur, Aurangabad, Ahmedabad, Goa, Delhi 
and other cities. The objective behind these events was 
to continue the Centenary celebrations and connect with 
customers to extend our gratitude.

11.	 Movement of NPAs
	� Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) refer to those loans or 

advances that are in default or are in arrears on scheduled 
payments of principal or interest. In the last couple of years, 
India’s banking sector remained beleaguered with persistent 
deterioration in its asset quality. The rise in NPAs dented 
the profitability of the sector and constrained financial 
intermediation of the banking ecosystem.

	

0.94% Net NPAs
�The net NPAs also reduced from 1.82% in 
2017 to 0.94% in 2018.

	 a)	 Non-Performing Assets
		�  Your Bank’s performance in this scenario remains 

commendable in terms of managing its NPAs. With close 
monitoring, vigorous follow-ups and prompt recovery 
actions, your Bank has been able to reduce NPAs and 
control the growth of new ones during the reporting 
period. Your Bank was able to limit the rise in its NPAs 
to 50% of the previous year through these rigorous 
measures. These processes further helped your Bank 
reduce its Gross NPAs substantially by `125.50 crore 
below the previous year’s level. The Gross NPA ratio to 
Advances improved from 4.63% to 3.72% in FY 2017-18.

	 �Movement of NPAs and provisions during the year was 
as under:

	 Table No. 6						      (` in crore)

Summary of Amount

Gross NPAs

As on 31st March, 2017 997.77

(+) Additions during the year 222.00

(-) Reduction during the year 347.50

As on 31st March, 2018 872.27

Provisions

As on 31st March, 2017 617.74

(+) Additions during the year. 194.27

(-) Reduction during the year. 153.64

As on 31st March, 2018 658.37

Net NPAs

31st March, 2017 1.82%

31st March, 2018 0.94%
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	 b)	 Recovery in written-off accounts
		�  Your Bank has recovered ̀ 11.85 crore from NPA accounts 

written off during earlier years. Despite weak or no 
security and bleak prospects of recovery, your Bank has 
recovered this amount with concerted recovery efforts. 
Recovery in written-off accounts is a direct accretion to 
the bottom line.

	 c)	 Provision Coverage Ratio
		�  Provision Coverage Ratio indicates provision made by 

your Bank against NPAs. Higher Provision Coverage 
Ratio reflects adequate provision made against NPAs 
of your Bank. Your Bank increased Provision Coverage 
Ratio from 61.91% as on 31st March, 2017 to 75.48% as 
on 31st March, 2018. Consequently, the Net NPAs to Net 
Advances ratio improved from 1.82% to 0.94%, which is 
a significant achievement.

12.	 Capital Adequacy Ratio – CRAR
	� Capital Adequacy Ratio as on 31st March, 2018 stood at 

13.60% as against 14% as on 31st March, 2017. This is 
primarily attributable to an increase in advances by `1,933 
crore over the previous year.

Capital Adequacy Ratio – CRAR

Table No. 7 (` in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Capital – Tier I

a)	 Share Capital 235.97 214.45

b)	 Reserves and Surplus

	 Statutory Reserve 695.05 631.03

	 Other Reserves 945.88 875.27

	 Profit and Loss Account 155.19 148.52

Sub-Total 1,796.12 1,654.82

Gross Tier I Capital (a+b) 2,032.09 1,869.27

Less: Intangible Assets & Losses 241.89 238.49

Net Tier I Capital (A) 1,790.20 1,630.78

Capital – Tier II

Revaluation Reserve 298.77 307.32

General Provisions 133.13 133.78

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 168.35 185.35

Subordinated Debts 516.69 545.01

Tier II Capital (B) 1,116.94 1,171.46

Total Capital Funds (A+B) 2,907.14 2,802.24

Table No. 7 (` in crore)
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Risk Assets

i.	 Funded Risk Assets 19,713.52 18,551.11

ii.	 Non-funded Risk Assets 714.39 631.98

iii.	� Risk Weighted Assets for 
market risk

940.39 837.49

Total Risk Weighted  
Assets (i+ii+iii)

21,368.30 20,020.58

Capital Adequacy Ratio % 13.60 14.00

13.	 Appropriations

We propose the following appropriations from the Net Profit for 
the Financial Year 2017-18:

Table No. 8 (` in lakh)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Transfer to Reserve Fund (25%) 6,016.88 5,851.33

Contingency Reserve (10%) 2,406.75 2,340.53

Provision for Education Fund of 
N.C.U.I. (1%)

240.68 234.05

Dividend on PNCPS @10.50% 571.67 571.67

Dividend on equity shares @17.50% 
(earlier year 15%)

2,972.70 2,286.65

Special Centenary Dividend 0.00 2,286.65

Provision for Ex-gratia to Employees 
@ 17.50% (earlier year 15%)

3,524.00 2,768.43

Members' Welfare Fund 100.00 100.00

Provision for Staff Welfare 1,335.00 10.00

Provision for Public, Charitable &  
Co-operative Purposes (1%)

240.68 234.05

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 4,000.00 1,500.00

Special Reserve 1,700.00 1,700.00

General Reserve 956.21 3,020.00

Centenary Fund 0.00 500.00

Balance to be c/f to the next year 98.56 95.60

Total 24,163.13 23,498.96

17.50% Dividend
is recommended by your Board of Directors 
on equity shares for FY 2017-18 
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
	 �The total business of your Bank increased from 

`55,273.49 crore as on 31st March, 2017 to 
`58,525.77 crore as on 31st March, 2018, a rise of 
`3,252.28 crore, i.e. a rise of 5.88%.

	� The deposit figures increased from `33,737.42 
crore as on 31st March, 2017 to `35,056.66 crore 
as on 31st March, 2018, a 3.91% rise. CASA 
deposits increased from `9,449.12 crore to 
`10,793.88 crore, a rise of 14.23%.

	� Advances rose from `21,536.07 crore as on  
31st March, 2017 to `23,469.11 crore as on  
31st March, 2018, a rise of 8.98%.

	� Your Bank’s net profit after tax increased from 
`234.05 crore in FY 2016-17 to `240.68 crore in  
FY 2017-18, a 2.83% rise.

	� Own funds of your Bank rose from ̀ 2,684.93 crore 
as on 31st March, 2017 to `2,869.03 crore as on 
31st March, 2018, a rise of 6.86%. The Capital 
to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood at 
13.60% as on 31st March, 2018, against 14% as on  
31st March, 2017.

	� The ratio of gross NPA to net advances of your 
Bank, which stood at 4.63% as on 31st March, 
2017, declined significantly to 3.72% as on  
31st March, 2018.

	� The net NPAs also reduced from 1.82% as on  
31st March, 2017 to 0.94% as on 31st March, 2018.

Members Welfare Fund
�Your Board of Directors recommends contribution of `100 lakh 
towards Members Welfare Fund. After this accretion, the total 
amount in this fund will be `1,173.50 lakh. During the reporting 
period, 982 members availed reimbursement of expenses 
towards medical treatment and medical check-up. Further, 
27 awards were granted to meritorious children of members.

�Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative Purposes
�As permitted in RBI Circular No. UBD(PCB)/BPD/Cir/43 dated 
11th  April, 2005, your Board recommends an appropriation of 
1% of the net profit – `240.68 lakh – for public, charitable and 
co‑operative purposes.

Special Reserve
�In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs)  are entitled to a deduction in 
respect of profits earned from eligible business i.e. profits earned 
from loans and advances granted to industries, infrastructure, 
agriculture and housing; 20% of such profits transferred to a   
Special Reserve are eligible for deduction from taxable income. 
Your Board, therefore, recommends an amount of `1,700 lakh to 
be appropriated out of profits derived from the said eligible business 
towards Special Reserve.

10.50% Dividend
is proposed by your Board of Directors 
on Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference 
Shares for FY 2017-18 

17.50% Ex-gratia
will be granted to our employees for 
FY 2017-18
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14.	 Amendments to Bank’s Bye-laws
	 The proposed amendments during this year are:

	 1.	� Amendment to Bye-law No. 1A:
		�  Bye-law No. 1A states that ‘The area of operation of 

your Bank will be the entire Union of India, with the prior 
approval of the Reserve Bank of India. For any revision 
in this regard, prior approval in writing of Reserve Bank 
of India as also of the Registering Authority shall be 
necessary’. 

		�  Deletion of the words ‘with the prior approval of the 
Reserve Bank of India. For any revision in this regard, prior 
approval in writing of Reserve Bank of India as also of the 
Registering Authority shall be necessary’ from the existing 
text of the Bye-law.

		�  Since RBI has granted its permission for extension 
of area of operation to the entire Union of India, 
amendment to the Bye-law is sought. The exact text of 
amendment of Bye- Law No. 1A will be circulated in the  
Annual General Meeting.

	 2. 	 Amendments to Byelaw No. 6D: 
		�  Existing Byelaw No. 6D provides issue of shares of the 

Society to a duly registered trust formed by the Society or 
employees for the benefit of the employees. 

		  Replacement of the existing Byelaw by a new Byelaw.

		�  In the Centenary Year, to recognize and acknowledge the 
contribution of the existing and retired employees and 
the members, bank propose to form five trusts i.e. For 
Non-Management Staff, Management Staff, Executives, 
Retired Employees and Shareholders Benefit Trust which 
will each own not more than 5 % of the bank’s paid up 
capital and the said trusts would work for the benefit of 
the beneficiaries from the dividend income derived from 
respective shareholding. The exact text of amendment 
of Byelaw No.6D will be circulated in the Annual General 
Meeting.

	 3.	 Amendment to Bye-law No. 10a:
		�  Replacement of the word “three” by the word “five” 

in the existing text of the Bye-law No. 10a regarding 
‘Registration of more than three persons as the holders 
of any share’.

		�  We receive requests from individuals to apply for loans in 
joint names. Hence, it is necessary to amend the Bye‑laws 
to increase joint applicants from existing 3 persons to  
5 persons. The exact text of amendment of Bye-Law No. 
10a will be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

	 4.	 Amendment to Byelaw No.42:
		�  Existing Byelaw No. 42 refers to utilization of Reserve 

fund. 

		�  Amendment proposed for inserting the word “statutory” 
prior to the words “reserve fund” wherever it occurs in this 
byelaw.

		�  This amendment is being proposed to clarify that the 
compulsory appropriation from net profit under section 63 
of Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 to reserve 
fund should be designated as statutory reserve fund and 
can be utilized only as provided in law.

		�  The other resources of the society being free reserves, 
the Board may decide the utilization in furtherance of the 
objectives of the society. The exact text of amendment 
of Byelaw No.42 will be circulated in the Annual General 
Meeting.

	 5.	 Amendment to Bye-law No. 52 and Bye-law No.70:
		�  Replacement of the text of existing Bye-laws, so as to 

provide for sending of the Annual Report as well as Notice 
in electronic form to the members.

		�  As part of the Go Green Initiative of the Government of 
India, it is proposed to give notice of the Annual General 
Meeting/Special General Meeting to the members in 
electronic form by email. A link will also be provided in the 
Notice to access the website of your Bank, wherein the 
Annual Report of your Bank will be published. The exact 
text of amendment of Bye-law No. 52 and Bye-Law No. 
70 will be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

15.	 Ideal Shareholder

Dr. Ajit Gunjikar 

The Ideal Shareholder, i.e. Adarsh 
Sabhasad Award for FY 2017-18 
was bestowed on Dr. Ajit Gunjikar of  
Ar-Ex Laboratories. Dr. Gunjikar has 
completed his doctorate in 
Reproductive Biology from the 
National Institute for Research in 
Reproductive Health under the aegis 
of the Indian Council of Medical 
Research. With his vision, he enabled  
Ar-Ex Laboratories, a professional, 

research-based pharmaceutical company established by his 
father, to successfully spread its wings and consolidate its 
position. The Company has pan-India presence with a 
comprehensive setup of 20 distribution outlets and 1,200 
stockists spread across India. With a strong product portfolio 
and a manufacturing facility with World Health Organisation 
(WHO) - Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) approval, it has 
been in operation for over five decades in India and has 
gathered vast experience in providing healthcare solutions.
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	� Ar-Ex Laboratories has built its strength in the development 
and optimisation of formulations, especially in women’s health 
therapy. It aims to alleviate human suffering and make a 
tangible difference to the quality of human life by contributing 
to prophylaxis and treatment of diseases.

	� Dr. Gunjikar has added new products and augmented the 
Company’s product list through painstaking research in the 
pharmaceutical sector. With his visionary ways, he successfully 
steered the business and took the group companies to new 
pinnacles. His sagacious leadership and business acumen 
enabled Ar-Ex Laboratories to grow manifold. He also has 
several scientific publications in international journals to  
his name.

	� Dr. Gunjikar is the President of All India Saraswat Cultural 
Organisation (AISCO), Chairman of Rao Bahadur Rajadhyaksha 
G.S.B. Foreign Education Society, Managing Committee 
Member of Mumbai Chapter of Deendayal Research Institute 
and Executive Committee Member of the GSBS Medical Trust.

	� Your Bank is proud to be associated with Dr. Gunjikar and his 
family over the last five decades.

16.	� Awards
	� It is gratifying to see that our hard work throughout the year 

was acknowledged by the awards we received.

	 IBA Technology Awards
	� The IBA Technology Awards are one of the largest and most 

renowned banking technology and innovation excellence 
awards in India. Your Bank bagged the Best Bank award 
in the category of ‘Technology Bank of the Year’ among  
co-operative banks at the IBA Banking Technology Awards 
2016-17. The award was based on several parameters that 
included technology initiatives, IT strategy, IT organisational 
framework, strategy for cloud adoption, implementation of 
green technology, strategy on big data, social media, predictive 
analytics and strategy on digital adoption.

	 Wells Fargo Operational Excellence Award
	� Wells Fargo Bank NA, your Bank’s major NOSTRO accounts 

correspondent, conferred the Wells Fargo Operational 
Excellence Award on your bank. The award recognises your 
Bank’s consistent improvement in the quality of operational 
services in the global payment community, reflecting superior 
transaction processing that results in higher efficiencies and 
cost reductions.

	 National Payments Excellence Award
	� National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI) has  honoured 

your Bank with National Payments Excellence Award in 
recognition of its excellent performance in various products, 
namely NFS ATM Network, RuPay, CTS, Instant Payment 
Products (IMPS+UPI+BHIM+USSD), NACH and AEPS. 
Saraswat Bank has been chosen as the Winner across the 

entire product range this year. The criteria for recognising 
banks was based on increase in volume, efficiency ratio, 
contribution towards ecosystem, reduction at business and 
technical decline, net chargeback ratio, bank’s participation 
across NPCI’s varied products, innovations at payment 
systems, etc.

17.	� Opening of first Business Correspondent Centre
	� On the birth anniversary of our former Chairman late  

Shri Ekanath Thakur, your Bank opened its first ‘Customer 
Service Centre’ under the Business Correspondent 
arrangement at Aurangabad.

	� The following banking activities are conducted at the Business 
Correspondent Centre of Aurangabad:

	 	� Opening of individual savings account

	 	� Cash withdrawal/deposit through Aadhaar Enabled 
Payment System (AEPS)

	 	� Creation of Fixed Deposits

	 	� Funds Transfer through IMPS and other platforms

18.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
	� Your Bank has always followed the principle of giving back 

to society a part of what it has received; it firmly believes that 
an essential component of its Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) is to care for society at large and demonstrate it in terms 
of constructive philanthropy.

	� Your Bank has donated `9,92,000/- (Rupees Nine lakh ninety-
two thousand only) to the Lokanayak Jayaprakash Narayan 
Leprosy Eradication Trust, Vasai, as financial assistance for 
its Integrated Village Development Programme of Adivasi 
settlements. Late Dr. J.D. Samant founded the Lokanayak 
Jayaprakash Narayan Leprosy Eradication Center in Vasai in 
1974, a charitable institution that serves as a haven for the 
sick and downtrodden. The Trust’s focus is a programme on 
Integrated Village Development of Adivasi settlements, and 
towards this, it has taken up the development of the acutely 
backward Adivasi community hamlet of Machupada as a 
module. 

	� Machupada is far away from developmental benefits of 
welfare schemes. It is situated at the foothills of the hillocks 
of the forest in Vasai taluka, district Palghar. Though only 
70 kilometres away from Mumbai and adjacent to National 
Highway No. 8, the hamlet is bereft of basic development 
or Government beneficiary schemes. There is hardly 
any electricity due to 10/12 hours of load-shedding, no 
constructed roads, no transport/drinking water/education 
facilities. 

	�� The focus areas of the development programme will be:

	 �Water: To implement water conservation/rain harvesting 
programmes and to clean and repair the existing well.
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	 �Street Lights: Installation of 4 solar lights as the hamlet is in 
complete darkness after 7 p.m.

	 �Sanitation: Construction of basic toilets.

	 �Health: Mobile health centre, mass inoculations against 
infectious diseases.

	 �Education: Pre-primary and primary schools and adult 
education classes.

	� In addition to these, the other focus areas will be vocational 
training, tree plantation and family planning. 

	� The donation will be a small step by your Bank towards 
rehabilitating those from the poorest strata of society. 

	� As a part of social commitment, every year, your Bank 
donates a part of its profits to public and charitable institutions 
pursuing worthy causes in the fields of education, medicine 
and other social activities. In FY 2017-18, the Bank released 
` 16,66,000/- by way of donation to 267 worthy institutions in 
a function “Runanubandh Sohala” held on 28th February, 2018 
at Ekanath Thakur Bhavan.

19.	 Composition of Your Bank’s Board
	� The composition of your Bank’s Board is governed by 

the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and the 
Bye‑laws of your Bank. Currently, there are sixteen Directors 
on the Board in addition to the Managing Director. The Board 
includes eminent persons with professional expertise and 
experience in banking, finance and other fields. 

	� During the reporting period, 27 (twenty seven) Board meetings 
were held.

	 Loans to Directors:
	� No Director has borrowed any money from your Bank. This has 

been a healthy tradition in your Bank and has been enshrined 
in Bye-law No. 55 and Bye-law No. 63 (c).

	 Working of Committees
	� The Board has constituted Committees, which help its 

Directors and higher Management Executives in informed 
decision-making.

	� As on 31st March, 2018, the following Committees of the 
Board are in place:

	 	 Executive and HRD Committee;

	 	 Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee;

	 	 Credit Committee of the Board;

	 	 Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring Frauds.

	 The scope of the various Committees are as follows:

	 Executive and HRD Committee:
	� The Executive and HRD Committee looks into the human 

resource and training issues, formulation and implementation 
of action plan for sustaining/improving the quality of your Bank’s 
human resources and welfare measures for employees at all 
levels. It is also involved in decision-making on all operational 
matters, except sanction of loans/advances. It further decides 
upon branch expansion, acquisition of premises on purchase 
or lease for branches/offices; approves expenditure and costs 
in relation thereto and also considers any other matter which 
requires urgent attention.

	� Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the Executive and HRD 
Committee of the Board. During FY 2017-18, 10 (ten) meetings of 
the Committee were held.

	 Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee:
	� This Committee provides direction, oversees the total audit 

function of your Bank, follows up on its statutory/ external/ 
concurrent audit and ensures strict adherence of RBI’s 
guidelines and directives from time to time. It deliberates on 
the progress of recoveries of overdues and NPAs and decides 
on issuing of securitisation notices and possessions of 
properties charged to your Bank to expedite recoveries. During 
FY 2017-18, the Committee held 13 (thirteen) meetings.

	� Shri S. K. Sakhalkar is the Chairman of the Audit, Accounts 
and NPA Management Committee.

	 Credit Committee of the Board:
	� The Credit Committee of the Board considers all Board-

level proposals involving renewal/review at the existing 
level and/or various requests. The Committee comprises 
the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, two Board Members (by 
rotation) and the Managing Director, apart from invitees that 
include your Bank’s top Executives and CENMAC members. 
The Committee considers renewal/review/request proposals 
related to individual credit exposure above `20 crore and 
group credit exposure above `40 crore. 

	� Shri S. N. Sawaikar is the Chairman of the Credit Committee 
of the Board.

	� Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring Frauds:
	� The Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring Frauds, 

as the name suggests, is a Committee to monitor any fraud 
that may occur in your Bank. The Committee meets as per 
exigencies. 

	� Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the Special 
Committee of the Board for Monitoring Frauds.
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20.	 Membership
	� There are 1,99,616 members who individually hold fifty 

and above fully paid shares of your Bank. The number of 
nominal members of your Bank stood at 39,972 as on  
31st March, 2018.

21.	 Appointment of Statutory Auditors
	� Your Board of Directors recommends the appointment of  

M/s. G. D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountants, GDA 
House, Plot No.85, Right Bhusari Colony, Paud Road,  
Pune – 411038, as the Statutory Auditors of your Bank for  
FY 2018-19.

22.	 Disclosures
	� According to the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we 

hereby declare that insurance premium to Deposit Insurance 
and Credit Guarantee Corporation (DICGC) has been paid 
up to 31st March, 2018 and there are no arrears payable to 
DICGC.

23.	 Obituary
	� We deeply mourn the passing away of some of our 

shareholders, former employees and employees of your Bank 
during FY 2017-18.

	� We pray that the departed souls rest in peace and that the 
Almighty grants fortitude and strength to their family members 
to bear the irreparable loss.

24.	 Gratitude
	� Your Board wishes to place on record the appreciation of 

the support which the Board of Directors and your Bank has 

received from all its shareholders and other stakeholders, and 
thanks them profusely for the confidence and trust that they 
have reposed in the Board and your Bank.

	� Your Board would also like to place on record the deep sense 
of gratitude to the authorities of the Reserve Bank of India, 
the Office of the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies 
– New Delhi, the Office of the Commissioner for Co-operation 
and Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Maharashtra State, 
Pune and our bankers for their valuable guidance, support 
and co-operation. The Board is also grateful to the Registrars 
of Co-operative Societies of the states of Madhya Pradesh, 
Karnataka, Goa, Delhi and Gujarat.

	� The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation for 
all sections of employees for their loyalty, dedication and 
wholehearted involvement in achieving the goals and missions 
of your Bank, including providing excellent service to all 
customers.

	� Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders that it will 
continue to strive towards attaining new heights in coming 
years through continued commitment and sustained efforts.

For and on behalf of the Board,

Gautam E. Thakur
Chairman

	 Mumbai: 20th July, 2018
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100J³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeuee®ee iees<eJeeje

ceeveveer³e meYeemeo,

DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18®ee 100Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ 
DenJeeue meeoj keÀjleevee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee Deevebo nesle Deens.

1.	 peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee Je Yeejle
	� Deeblejjeä^er³e veeCesefveOeerves peenerj kesÀu³eevegmeej DeeefLe&keÀ  

Je<e& 2017 ceO³es peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLesle ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee 
3.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 3.8 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Je=Ooer 
Peeueer. efJekeÀefmele osMeebceO³es nesCeeN³ee mekeÀejelcekeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ 
megOeejCeeb®es ns ÐeeslekeÀ Deens. 

	� DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017 ceO³es 
2.3 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. GÐeesieOebÐeebmeeþer Hees<ekeÀ JeeleeJejCe, 
DecesefjkeÀve HesÀ[jue efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves ìHH³eeìHH³eeves J³eepeojele 
kesÀuesueer Jee{, 1.5 efì^efue³eve DecesefjkeÀve [e@ueme&d®³ee 
keÀjkeÀHeeleer®ee ÒemleeJe DeeefCe mejkeÀejer Ke®ee&le nesle Demeuesu³ee 
Jee{ercegUs DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLesme ieefleceevelee ueeYesue DeMeer 
DeHes#ee Deens.

	� ³egjesefHe³eve DeLe&J³eJemLee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017 ceO³es 
2.7 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. ¿ee®es cegK³e keÀejCe Keemeieer iegbleJeCegkeÀerme 
efceUeuesueer ®eeuevee, Flej peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLeebveer HekeÀ[uesuee 
Jesie lemes®e yesjespeieejer®es keÀceer nesle Demeuesues ÒeceeCe ns Deens. 
³egjesefHe³eve mebIeeceOeerue meJe& meom³e osMeeb®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es 
Je jespeieeje®³ee ÒeceeCeelener megOeejCee efometve Deeueer. 

	� DeeefMe³ee Keb[eceO³es ®eerve®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLesle 6.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer 
Jee{ Peeueer. 

	� Hejbleg ³esl³ee keÀeUele DecesefjkesÀ®es mebj#eCeJeeoer J³eeHeej-OeesjCe Je 
Flej osMeebkeÀ[tvener l³eeme efceUCeejs ®eesKe Òel³egÊej, peeieeflekeÀ 
DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee Jee{erme ieeflejesOekeÀ þjC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens.

	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceOeerue Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLee:

	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesle DeveskeÀ 
®e{‑Gleej Heene³euee efceUeues. keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeleerue ceeHeÀkeÀ 
Jee{, keÀener GÐeesie#es$eeb®eer #ecelesHes#ee keÀceer nesle Demeuesueer 

GlHeeokeÀlee DeeefCe yeBefkebÀie #es$ee®es Iemejuesues leeUsyebo ³ee®ee 
efJeHejerle HeefjCeece Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesJej efometve Deeuee. 
ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee efve½eueveerkeÀjCe Òeef¬eÀ³escegUs DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2017-18®³ee Heefnu³ee efleceenerle DeeefLe&keÀ efJekeÀemeoj 
ne 5.6 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe keÀceer jeefnuee. ogmeN³ee Je eflemeN³ee 
efleceenerle l³eele megOeejCee nesTve DeLe&J³eJemLee Deveg¬eÀces 6.3 
ìkeÌkesÀ Je 7 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Peeueer. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee MesJeì®³ee 
efleceenerle cee$e yeebOekeÀece #es$e, GlHeeove #es$e Je meeJe&peefvekeÀ 
mesJee#es$eeb®³ee GÊece keÀeceefiejer®³ee peesjeJej Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLesves 7.7  ìkeÌkesÀ Demee iesu³ee meele efleceeneRleerue 
meJee&efOekeÀ Jee{er®ee oj veeWoefJeuee. mebHetCe& Je<ee&ceO³es Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLee ner ieleJe<eea®³ee 7.1   ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 
6.7 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer jenerueer. ke=À<eer#es$ee®eer Jee{ ner ceeieerue 
Je<eea®³ee 6.3 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 3.4 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer®e 
Peeueer. lej GlHeeove #es$eelener IemejCe nesTve ieleJe<eea®³ee 
7.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle les 5.7   ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jenerues. 
mesJee#es$e cee$e Jesieeves Jee{tve l³eeceO³es 7.9 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Jee{ 
veeWoefJeueer iesueer. SketÀCe®e, efve½eueveerkeÀjCeecegUs DeLe&J³eJemLee 
keÀenerMeer efJemkeÀUerle Peeueer. lemes®e peguew 2017 ceO³es meg© 
Peeuesu³ee Jemlet Je mesJee keÀje®³ee DebceueyepeeJeCeerleerue ÒeejbefYekeÀ 
De[®eCeeRcegUs DeveskeÀ GÐeesie#es$eeb®³ee GlHeeokeÀlesJejner 
HeefjCeece efometve Deeuee.

	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee ÒeejbYeer efkeÀjkeÀesU ceneieeF& oj ne 2.99 
ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe neslee. peguew 2017 ceO³es efvecve mlej ieeþu³eeJej 
l³eele GÊejesÊej Jee{®e nesle iesueer. HeÀUs Je Yeep³eeb®³ee 
Jee{l³ee efkeÀbceleer lemes®e IejYee[s YeÊee Fl³eeoeR®ee HeefjCeece 
ceneieeF& ojeJej efometve Deeuee Je ef[meWyej 2017 ceO³es lees 
5.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®euee. Je<e&DeKesjerme efkeÀjkeÀesU ceneieeF& 
ojele Lees[er vejceeF& efometve Deeueer Je lees 4.28 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 
efmLejeJeuee.

	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es efJeÊeer³e letì ner Deboeefpele 
kesÀuesu³ee DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee 3.2  ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 
3.5 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer jenerueer. Deeieeceer Je<ee&le keWÀê mejkeÀejves 
efJeÊeer³e letì DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee 3.3 ìkeÌkesÀ lej Je<e& 2020-21 
DeKesjerme 3  ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le efve³eb$eCeele jeKeC³ee®es þjefJeues 
Deens. 
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	� DeLe&J³eJemLesme ieleer efceUeJeer ³ee nslegves Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves  
Dee@iemì 2017 ceO³es jsHees ojele 0.25 ìkeÌkeÌ³ee®eer keÀHeele 
keÀ©ve jsHees oj 6.25 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 6 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeuee. 
ceneieeF& ojele nesCeejer Jee{ ue#eele Ieslee jsHees ojele Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve keÀHeele nesC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Oegmej Demetve 
yeBkeÀeb®es keÀpe&efJelejCe Jee{eJes cnCetve Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
Dee@keÌìesyej®³ee HeleOeesjCeele JewOeeefvekeÀ lejuelee ÒeceeCeele 
(Statutory Liquidity Ratio) 0.50 ìkeÌkeÌ³ee®eer keÀHeele 
keÀ©ve les 19.50 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeues.

	 efJeÊeer³e yeepeej efJeMues<eCe:
	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ Je efJeosMeer 

efJeÊemebmLeeb®³ee iegbleJeCegkeÀer®³ee HeeþyeUeJej Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer 
yeepeejeves veJeerve G®®eebkeÀ ieeþues. Hejbleg Je<e&DeKesjerme oerIe& 
cegoleer®³ee Yeeb[Jeueer iegbleJeCegkeÀerJej DeekeÀejC³eele Deeuesuee 
keÀj, DecesefjkesÀ®es mebkegÀef®ele J³eeHeej efJe<e³ekeÀ OeesjCe DeeefCe 
keÀener yeBkeÀebceOes Dee{Utve Deeuesues DeeefLe&keÀ iewjJ³eJenej ¿ee®ee 
ÒeefleketÀue HeefjCeece Yeeb[Jeueer yeepeejeJej efometve Deeuee. 
31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer cegbyeF& MesDej yeepeej efveoxMeebkeÀ 
(BSE Sensex) 32,968 lej efveHeÌìer (Nifty) efveoxMeebkeÀ 
10,113 DebkeÀebJej Heesnes®eues. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017‑18®³ee 
Heefnu³ee meneceenerle J³eepeoj Keeueer ³esle nesles, Hejbleg Jee{leer 
efJeÊeer³e letì, Deeblejjeä^er³e yeepeejele Jee{le peeCeejs keÀ®®³ee 
lesuee®es oj, DecesefjkeÀve J³eepeojele nesle Demeuesueer Jee{ lemes®e 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeesHeve ceekexÀì Dee@HejsMevmedÜejs (OMO) 
yeepeejele DeeCeuesues keÀpe&jesKes, ³ee®³ee HeefjCeeceer ogmeN³ee 
meneceenerle J³eepeojele Jee{ nesTve one Je<eea³e keÀpe&jesK³eeb®ee 
oj 31  cee®e&, 2018 DeKesjerme 7.40 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 
Heesnes®euee. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017‑18 ceO³es ©He³ee®ee efJeefvece³e 
oj DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle 0.51 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Ieìtve 
31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee `64.85 Jeªve 31 cee®e&, 2018 
jespeer `65.18 Jej efmLejeJeuee. Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer Je jesKes 
yeepeejele efJeosMeer efJeÊemebmLeebveer kesÀuesueer iegbleJeCetkeÀ lemes®e 
efJeÊeer³e OeesjCeebleerue ueJeef®ekeÀlescegUs ©He³ee mebHetCe& DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<ee&le cepeyetle jeefnuee. efve½eueveerkeÀjCeeveblej DeLe&J³eJemLesle 
Demeuesueer DeefleefjkeÌle lejuelee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es 

Ieìueer. Je<ee&®³ee DeejbYeer `3.13 ueeKe keÀesìeR®eer DeefleefjkeÌle 
lejuelee DeLe&J³eJemLesle nesleer ³eeGueì Je<e&DeKesjerme cee$e 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀme `60,000 keÀesìeR®eer DeefleefjkeÌle 
lejuelee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve ÐeeJeer ueeieueer.

	 meJe¥keÀ<e cetu³eceeHeve:
	� Keemeieer Je mejkeÀejer iegbleJeCegkeÀerle Peeuesueer Jee{, DeeefLe&keÀ 

OeesjCeele efometve ³esle Demeuesueer ueJeef®ekeÀlee, efJeefJeOe DeeefLe&keÀ 
efvekeÀ<eeb®eer meg¢{lee ³eecegUs Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesyeÎue®ee 
¢äerkeÀesve ne mekeÀejelcekeÀ Deens. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀvesner 
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018‑19 Je 2019ö20 keÀefjlee 
DeLe&J³eJemLee Jee{er®ee oj ne Deveg¬eÀces 7.4 ìkeÌkesÀ Je 7.7 
ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe jenerue, Demee Deboepe J³ekeÌle kesÀuee Deens.

	� Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer Jeeì®eeue pejer DeeéeemekeÀefjl³ee megª 
Demeueer lejerner DeveskeÀ DeeJneveeb®ee meeceveener DeLe&J³eJemLesme 
keÀjeJee ueeiesue. keWÀê mejkeÀejves peenerj kesÀuesu³ee DeVeOeev³eeb®³ee 
efkeÀceeve DeeOeejYetle efkebÀceleerleerue Jee{, JesieJesieÈ³ee jep³e 
mejkeÀejebveer IejYee[s YeÊ³eeble kesÀuesueer Jee{, Deeieeceer 
efveJe[CetkeÀ Je<e&, HeeJemee®eer keÀeceefiejer DeeefCe keÀ®®³ee lesuee®³ee 
Jee{CeeN³ee efkeÀceleer, ³ee meJe& yeeyeeR®ee ®eueveJee{erJej nesCeeje 
HeefjCeece HeeneJee ueeiesue. l³ee®eÒeceeCes yeoueleer peeieeflekeÀ 
jepekeÀer³e HeefjefmLeleer, efJekeÀefmele osMeeb®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es 
³esle Demeuesueer meg¢{lee HeefjCeeceer l³ee DeLe&J³eJemLeebkeÀ[s 
JeUuesuee Yeeb[Jeuee®ee DeesIe, ³ee®eer®e HeefjCeerleer cnCetve keÀpee¥®es 
Jee{le peeCeejs oj Je efJeosMeer ®eueve-efJeefvece³e oje®eer IemejCe 
¿eecegUsner DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer ieleer ceboeJet MekeÀles. lemes®e keÀener 
osMeebveer peenerj kesÀuesu³ee mebkegÀef®ele J³eeHeejOeesjCee®ee HeÀìkeÀener 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesme yemet MekeÀlees.

2.	 efJeYeeieJeej keÀeceefiejer
	 (i) 	 efjìsue yeBefkebÀie:
	��  	 efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex: 
		�  DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeJej 

ue#e keWÀêerle keÀjC³ee®es þjefJeues nesles. l³ee Deveg<ebieeves 
IesC³eele Deeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe efveCe&³eeb®ee ®eebieuee HeefjCeece 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeJej efometve Deeuee. yeBkesÀ®ee 
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SketÀCe efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e 33 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 
31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee ̀ 5,709 keÀesìeRJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 
2018 jespeer `7,602.36 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®es SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeMeer 
Demeuesues ÒeceeCe ns 36 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve DenJeeueJe<eea 
38.40  ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®eues. Deeieeceer keÀeUele 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee  
50 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le vesC³ee®es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es O³es³e Deens. 

33% G®®eebkeÀ
yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e 
33 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee 
`5,709 keÀesìeRJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer 
`7,602.36 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee.

	��  	 ÒeeOeev³e (Priority) #es$eeuee keÀpe&HegjJeþe: 
		�  DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es ÒeeOeev³e (Priority) 

#es$eeuee keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee keÀpe&HegjJeþîeele `831 
keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ Peeueer. SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee 
leguevesle ÒeeOeev³e (Priority) #es$eeuee osC³eele Deeuesu³ee 
keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe DenJeeueJe<eea 27.45 ìkeÌkesÀ Demes 
nesles. ns®e ÒeceeCe ieleJe<eea 24.95 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ nesles. 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpe&oej lemes®e ueIegGÐeespekeÀebmeeþer 
Demeuesu³ee ‘GVeleer’ ³ee keÀpe&³eespeves®ee ÒeeOeev³e 
(Priority) #es$ee®es ÒeceeCe Jee{efJeC³eeme ceesþe neleYeej 
ueeieuee. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `148.39 keÀesìeR®eer keÀpex 
‘GVeleer’ ³eespeves Debleie&le efJelejerle keÀ©ve `100 
keÀesìeR®³ee keÀpe& efJelejCee®es GÎerä ³eMemJeerjerl³ee Heej 
kesÀues.

148.39 keÀesìer
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `148.39 keÀesìeR®eer keÀpex ‘GVeleer’ 
³eespeves Debleie&le efJelejerle keÀ©ve `100 keÀesìeR®³ee  
keÀpe& efJelejCee®es GÎerä ³eMemJeerjerl³ee Heej kesÀues.

	�  	 efkeÀjkeÀesU þsJeer:
		�  DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es SketÀCe 1,63,939 

veJeerve keÀemee Keeleer GIe[C³eele Deeueer. ³eeceO³es 
1,48,950 ner ye®ele Keeleer Je 14,989 ®eeuet 
Keeleer Deensle. 31  cee®e&, 2018 DeKesjerme SketÀCe 
keÀemee þsJeeRceO³es ieleJe<eeA®³ee leguevesle `1,344.76 
keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ nesTve keÀemee þsJeer `10,793.88 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eu³ee. SketÀCe þsJeeR®³ee leguevesle keÀemee 
þsJeeR®es ÒeceeCe 28.01 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 30.79 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®eues.

	�  	 cegêe ³eespevee:
		�  DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efJeefJeOe ueIeg-GÐeesieebkeÀefjlee ‘ÒeOeeveceb$eer 

cegêe ³eespevee’ GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens. efyeiej-
Mesleer J³eJemee³eekeÀefjlee `10 ueeKeebHe³e¥le®eer keÀpex 
³ee ³eespevesDebleie&le osC³eele ³esleele. ueIeg-GÐeesieeb®eer 
Guee{eue Je l³eeb®³ee iejpeebvegmeej ‘efMeMeg’, ‘efkeÀMeesj’ 
Je ‘le©Ce’ ³ee leerve ÒekeÀej®³ee ³eespeveebÜejs keÀpe&efJelejCe 
kesÀues peeles.

	�  	 ÒeOeeveceb$eer DeeJeeme ³eespevee:
		�  ‘ÒeOeeveceb$eer DeeJeeme ³eespevee’ ner keWÀê mejkeÀej®eer 

meceepeeleerue DeeefLe&keÀ¢<ìîee ogye&ue IeìkeÀebkeÀefjlee 
IejyeebOeCeer Devegoeve ³eespevee Deens. ve@Meveue 
neTefmebie yeBkeÀ ner ³ee ³eespeveskeÀefjlee keWÀê mejkeÀejves 
vesceuesueer vees[ue Spevmeer Deens. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves  
ve@Meveue neTefmebie yeBkesÀyejesyej keÀjej keÀ©ve ner ³eespevee 
DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebvee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens. 
DeeleeHe³e¥le yeBkesÀkeÀ[s ¿ee ³eespevesDebleie&le 145 Depe& 
Deeuesues Deensle. l³eeHewkeÀer 69 Depe& ve@Meveue neTefmebie 
yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<eea cebpetj kesÀues Je GJe&jerle 76 Depe& 
®eeuet DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle.

	�  	 efJecee ³eespevee:
		  �DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es yeBkesÀves Flej kebÀHev³eeb®³ee 

efJecee J³eJemee³eeletve ̀ 55.75 keÀesìeR®ee efJecee nHlee pecee 
kesÀuee Je SketÀCe `7.37 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe efceUefJeues.
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		  ÒeOeeveceb$eer efJecee ³eespevee:
		�  DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebmeeþer ces. S®e[erSHeÀmeer ueeF&HeÀ 

FvMegjvme kebÀHeveer efueefceìs[®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves ÒeOeeveceb$eer peerJeve p³eesleer efJecee ³eespevee 
lemes®e ces. yepeepe Deuee³evPe pevejue FvMegjvme 
kebÀHeveer efueefceìs[ Je ces. v³eg Fbef[³ee SM³egjvme kebÀHeveer 
efueefceìs[®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves ÒeOeeveceb$eer megj#ee efJecee 
³eespevee ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele 
Deeuesueer Deens. ³ee efJecee ³eespeveebDebleie&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
`0.04 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe DenJeeueJe<eea efceUefJeues.

	�  	 c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[:
		�  DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves peevesJeejer, 2018 ceO³es c³eg®³egDeue 

HebÀ[ efJeHeCeve meg© kesÀues Je cee®e& DeKesjerme leerve 
ceefnv³eeble®e ̀ 43.58 keÀesìeR®ee J³eJemee³e kesÀuee. meO³ee 
DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ S®e[erSHeÀmeer, SueDee³emeer, Sue De@C[ 
ìer DeeefCe efjuee³evme ³ee ®eej c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[eb®³ee 
³eespeveeb®es efJeHeCeve keÀjles.

	�  	 ef[ce@ì:
		�  DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ner SveSme[erSue Je meer[erSmeSue ³ee 

oesvner mebmLeebMeer ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebkeÀefjlee mebueive 
Deens. DenJeeueJe<eea SketÀCe 3,000 Hes#ee DeefOekeÀ 
veJeerve ef[ce@ì Keeleer GIe[C³eele Deeueer. yeBkesÀves 
ASBAÜejs 107 YeeieefJe¬eÀeR®es (IPO) lej ®eej 
jesKes efJe¬eÀer®es J³eJenej DenJeeueJe<eea neleeUues. 
ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebletve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme SketÀCe 
`3.36 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe DenJeeueJe<eea efceUeues.  
ces. jsefueiesDej meskeÌ³egefjefìpe efueefceìs[ Üejs ûeenkeÀebvee  
Le´er-Fve-Jeve cnCepes®e ye®ele, ef[ce@ì Je Dee@veueeF&ve 
ye´esefkebÀie Keeles ³ee megefJeOee DeeHeCe SkeÀef$eleHeCes GHeueyOe 
keÀ©ve efouesu³ee Deensle. Jej GuuesefKeuesu³ee GlHeVeeHewkeÀer 
`1.36 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe ³ee megefJeOesDebleie&le efceUeues.

	�  	 �¬esÀef[ì keÀe[&:
		�  3 HesÀye´gJeejer, 2017 jespeer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme Yeejleer³e 

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve ¬esÀef[ì keÀe[& efJelejerle keÀjC³eeme 
HejJeeveieer efceUeueer. veJeerve ûeenkeÀebvee DeeHeu³ee 

yeBkesÀkeÀ[s Deeke=Àä keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee ‘¬esÀef[ì keÀe[&’ 
J³eJemee³ee®ee DeeHeu³eeuee ueeYe nesT MekesÀue. Sve.
Heer.meer.Dee³e.®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeCe ‘©Hes Hue@efìvece  
Fbìjve@Meveue ¬esÀef[ì keÀe[&’®es 14 meHìWyej, 2017 
jespeer yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer HeoeHe&CeeefveefceÊe Peeuesu³ee 
meceejbYeele DeveeJejCe kesÀuess. ³ee megefJeOescegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³eele lemes®e GlHeVeelener Yej He[sue.

(ii) 	 IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e efJeYeeie:
	� DenJeeueJe<eea Jemleg Je mesJee keÀje®³ee ©Heele DeÒel³e#e keÀjebceO³es 

ceesþs HeefjJele&ve Ie[tve Deeues. lemes®e Jee{l³ee DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥®³ee Heeée&YetceerJej J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpee¥®eer ceeieCeerner 
keÀceer jenerueer. ³ee keÀeUele DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ueIeg Je ceO³ece 
GÐeesie lemes®e GÊece opee&®eer keÀpe&Keeleer efceUefJeC³eeJej 
Yej efouee. Hejbleg Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ Je keWÀê mejkeÀejves 
DeeKeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe DeeefLe&keÀ OeesjCeebcegUs Deeieeceer DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<ee&le J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpe&efJelejCeele ®eebieueer Jee{ nesC³ee®eer  
MekeÌ³elee Deens.

	� 31 cee®e&, 2018uee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer SketÀCe J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
keÀpex ner ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee `13,767.25 keÀesìeRJe©ve 5.10 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve ̀ 14,469.37 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eueer. SketÀCe 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee leguevesle ns ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer 
61.60 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens.

(iii) 	efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e:
	� DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee ûeenkeÀebMeer keÀjC³eele Deeuesuee 

efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee `19,312.06 
keÀesìeRJe©ve `23,888.64 keÀesìer FlekeÀe Peeuee. 31 cee®e&, 
2018 jespeer efve³ee&leermeeþer efouesueer keÀpex ner `1,118.59 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eueer. ³eeJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer DecesefjkeÀve  
[e@uejceOeerue cenÊJee®eer yeBefkebÀie Heeì&vej Demeuesu³ee Jesume HeÀeieex 
yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve DeeHeu³eeuee ‘Jesume HeÀeieex Dee@HejsMeveue SkeÌmeuevme  
DeJee@[&’ efceUeues. efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJenejeleerue Glke=Àä mesJee 
Òeoeve keÀjC³eeyeÎue peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJej ns DeJee@[& DeesUKeues 
peeles. HejosMe‑ÒeJeeme keÀjCeeN³ee ûeenkeÀebmeeþer efJeosMeer ®eueve Je  
ì^@Jnue keÀe[&dme ³eesi³e efJeefvece³e ojele DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves GHeueyOe 
keÀ©ve efouesues Deens. lemes®e DenJeeueJe<eea `161 keÀesìeR®ee  
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efJeÊe-HegjJeþe 14 menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveener efouesuee Deens. ³ee 
yeBkeÀebkeÀ[s efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³ee®ee HejJeevee vemeu³eecegUs 
l³eeb®³ee meceJesle keÀjej keÀ©ve ner mesJee ³ee yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
ûeenkeÀebmeeþer DeeHeCe GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens.

(iv)	 keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie:
	� keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieemeeþer DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ns 

DeeJneveelcekeÀ nesles. ogmeN³ee meneceenerle ceneieeF& Je efJeÊeer³e 
legìer®³ee Jee{l³ee oyeeJeecegUs J³eepeoj ns ®e{s jeefnues. ³ee 
keÀeUele DeeHeu³ee keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieeves meblegefuele ¢äerkeÀesve 
þsTve iegbleJeCegkeÀerle ³eesi³e les yeoue keÀjle veHeÀe efceUefJeuee. 
lemes®e DeeHeu³eekeÀ[s Demeuesueer DeefleefjkeÌle lejuelee peemleerle 
peemle J³eepeoj efceUJetve osCeeN³ee jesK³eebceO³es iegbleJetve 
J³eepe©Heer efceUCeeN³ee GlHeVeelener Jee{ kesÀueer. ³eeefMeJee³e ‘jesKe 
jeKeerJelee ÒeceeCe’ (Cash Reserve Ratio) Je ‘JewOeeefvekeÀ 
lejuelee ÒeceeCe’ (Statutory Liqidity Ratio) ³eesi³e ÒekeÀejs 
jeKeC³ee®eer cenÊJee®eer peyeeyeoejerner Heej Hee[ueer. Jee{l³ee 
®eueveoje®³ee Heeée&YetceerJej Deelee J³eepeoejele nUtnUt Jee{ 
nesT ueeieueer Demetve ³esl³ee Je<ee&le keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeiee®³ee 
veHeÀe#ecelesJej HeefjCeece nesC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens.

3. 	 veJeerve efJeYeeieeb®eer mLeeHevee
	 ef[efpeìue yeBkeÀeRie efJeYeeie:

	� iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee&le yeBkeÀeRie #es$eele Ie[uesuee cenlJee®ee 
yeoue cnCepes yeBkeÀebveer leb$e%eevee®eer Oejuesueer keÀeme ne nes³e. 
leb$e%eeveecegUs ûeenkeÀebvee G®®e Òeleer®eer Je JesieJeeve mesJee 
yeBkeÀebkeÀ[tve GHeueyOe nesles. DeeHeCe DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle iesu³ee keÀener 
Je<ee&le DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eevee®ee DebefiekeÀej keÀªve ûeenkeÀebvee 
meJeexÊece mesJee Òeoeve keÀjerle  Deenesle. ³ee mesJee efJekeÀefmele 
keÀjC³eemeeþer Je veJeveJeerve megefJeOee ûeenkeÀebvee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve 
osC³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ‘ef[efpeìue yeBkeÀerie efJeYeeiee’®eer 
mLeeHevee kesÀueer.

	 ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀie:
	� ‘GOMO’ ³ee ceesyeeF&ue De@HeÜejs DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee DeveskeÀ 

megefJeOeeb®ee ueeYe DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ keÀesCel³eener #eCeer IesT 
MekeÀleele. cegole þsJe J³eJenej, jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejerle 

keÀjC³eemeeþer ueeYeeLeeA®eer veeWoCeer, SveF&SHeÀìer J³eJenej, 
[sefyeì keÀe[& J³eJenej, Yeejle QR Fl³eeoer megefJeOee ceesyeeF&ue 
yeBefkebÀieÜejs GHeueyOe Deensle. ieleJe<eea®³ee 3.83 ueeKeebJe©ve 
DenJeeueJe<eea ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkeÀieÜejs J³eJenej keÀjCeeN³ee DeeHeu³ee 
ûeenkeÀeb®eer mebK³ee 5.50 ueeKeebJej Heesnes®eueer.

	 ³egefveHeÀeF&[ HesceWì FbìjHesÀme (UPI):
	� ve@Meveue HesceWìme keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eeves efyeue YejCee 

Je jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCe keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee efJekeÀefmele kesÀuesueer 
³egefveHeÀeF&[ HesceWì FbìjHesÀme (UPI) megefJeOee DeeHeCe ûeenkeÀebvee 
GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es 
SketÀCe 2.19 ueeKe ûeenkeÀebveer ³egefveHeÀeF&[ HesceWì FbìjHesÀme 
(UPI) mesJes®ee ueeYe IesC³eekeÀefjlee veeWoCeer kesÀueer.

	 Yeejle keÌ³egDeej (Bharat QR):
	� efJeefJeOe DeemLeeHeveebceOetve efkebÀJee Dee@veueeF&ve Kejsoer®es J³eJenej 

keÀjleevee Quick Response (QR) ¬eÀceebkeÀ mke@Àve keÀjC³ee®eer 
megefJeOee ‘GOMO’ De@HeÜejs keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer 
Deens. ³eeÜejs ûeenkeÀ efJeefJeOe efyeueeb®ee YejCee, F&-keÀe@ceme&d®es 
J³eJenej Fl³eeoer keÀ© MekeÀleele.

�	 Jeve Hespe Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie:
	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀieÜejs efou³ee peeCeeN³ee megefJeOee 

veJ³ee mJe©Heele ûeenkeÀebmeceesj DeeCeu³ee. ³ee ‘Jeve Hespe Fbìjvesì 
yeBefkebÀie’ megefJeOesÜejs jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCe, cegole þsJe, efyeue 
YejCee Fl³eeoer mesJeeb®ee ueeYe DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ IesT MekeÀleele. 
31 cee®e&, 2017 jespeer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee ‘Jeve Hespe Fbìjvesì 
yeBefkebÀie’ megefJeOesDebleie&le SketÀCe 3.87 ueeKe ûeenkeÀebveer veeWoCeer 
keÀsueer nesleer. 31 cee®e&, 2018 DeKesj ³eeble Jee{ nesTve 
5.51 ueeKe ûeenkeÀebveer ³ee mesJesmeeþer veeWoCeer kesÀuesueer Deens.

	 keÀe@Heexjsì Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie:
	� DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ efJeefJeOe kebÀHev³ee, Heeì&vejMeerHe HeÀce& Je Flej 

J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ KeelesOeejkeÀebkeÀefjlee keÀe@Heexjsì Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie 
megefJeOee osles. ³eeÜejs KeelesOeejkeÀ mJele:®³ee keÀe³ee&ue³eeletve®e 
jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCe, OeveeosMe HegefmlekesÀ®eer ceeieCeer, keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es 
Jesleve lemes®e SveF&SHeÀìerÜejs jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCe, Fl³eeoer 
J³eJenej keÀ© MekeÀleele.
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Yeejle efyeue HesceWì efmeefmìce (BBPS):
ve@Meveue HesceWìdmed keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eeves meg© kesÀuesu³ee 
Yeejle efyeue HesceWìdmed efmeefmìce (BBPS)Üejs efJeefJeOe efyeue YejCee 
Je efj®eepe& keÀjC³ee®eer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeuesueer 
Deens.

efÒeHes[ keÀe[&:
14 meHìWyej, 2017 jespeer yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer 
HeoeHe&CeeefveefceÊe Peeuesu³ee meesnÈ³eele DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efÒeHes[ 
keÀe[&®es DeveeJejCe keÀjC³eele Deeues. DeeHeCeeme meebieC³eeme Deevebo 
nesle Deens keÀer, efÒeHes[ keÀe[&®eer megefJeOee ûeenkeÀebvee GHeueyOe 
keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee mebHetCe& menkeÀejer yeBefkebÀie #es$eeletve DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀme Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves meJe&ÒeLece HejJeevee efouee. efÒeHes[ 
keÀe[& ns keÀe[& DeLeJee ceesyeeF&ue Jee@uesì ³ee oesvner ÒekeÀejs osC³eele 
³esles. ûeenkeÀ ³ee®ee JeeHej Kejsoer, HejosMe‑ÒeJeeme, osCeieer osCes, 
HejosMeer Mew#eefCekeÀ keÀpe& lemes®e SKeeÐee J³ekeÌleerme Yesì cnCetve 
osC³eemeeþer keÀ© MekeÀleele. ns keÀe[& SìerSce, POS ceefMeve DeeefCe  
Dee@veueeF&ve Kejsoer J³eJenejebmeeþer JeeHejlee ³esles.

efieHeÌì keÀe[&:
SveHeermeerDee³e®³ee men³eesieeves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ‘meejmJele yeBkeÀ 
efieHeÌì keÀe[&’ efJekeÀefmele kesÀuesues Deens. POS ceefMeve DeeefCe  
Dee@veueeF&ve Kejsoer J³eJenejebkeÀefjlee ns keÀe[& JeeHejlee ³esles.

HesceWì iesìJespe (Payment Gateways):
Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀie®es J³eJenej ns Hescebì iesìJespe Üejs nesleele. 
DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ Deelee DeMee one HesceWì iesìJespeJej GHeueyOe Deens. 
³eecegUs DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebvee Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀieÜejs F&-keÀe@ceme&®³ee 
ceeO³eceeletve nesCeejs J³eJenej megueYeHeCes keÀjlee ³esleerue.

meejmJele Quick Pay (Referral Model):
keÀe@Heexjsì ûeenkeÀ, meesmee³eìerped, MeeUe, ì^mì Fl³eeoeR®³ee 
Keel³eebJej l³eeb®³ee osCeskeÀN³eebkeÀ[tve pecee nesCeejer jkeÌkeÀce 
meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee JesyemeeF&ì DeLeJee ³ee ûeenkeÀeb®eer mJele:®eer 
JesyemeeF&ì Demeu³eeme l³eeÜejs pecee keÀjC³ee®eer megefJeOee meejmJele 
Quick PayÜejs GHeueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeuesueer Deens.

meejmJele yeBkeÀ keÀveskeÌì:
‘meejmJele yeBkeÀ keÀveskeÌì’ ³ee DeB[^e@F[ De@HeÜejs ûeenkeÀebveer efcem[d  
keÀe@ue efou³eeme Keel³eeleerue jkeÌkeÀce leHeemeCes, ¬esÀef[ì-[sefyeì 
keÀe[& yuee@keÀ keÀjCes, Fl³eeoer megefJeOee osC³eele ³esleele. lemes®e 
SmeSceSme megefJeOes Debleie&le keÀpee&yeeyele efJevebleer, OeveeosMe Hegle&lee 
LeebyeefJeCes Fl³eeoer mesJee osC³eele ³esleele.

SmeSceSme yeBefkebÀie:
ûeenkeÀebHe³e¥le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee megefJeOeeb®eer ceeefnleer 
Heesnes®eefJeC³eemeeþer lemes®e ûeenkeÀeb®³ee Keel³eele nesCeeN³ee 
J³eJenejeb®eer ceeefnleer l³eeb®³eeHe³e¥le leelkeÀeU Heesnes®eefJeC³eemeeþer 
SmeSceSme mesJes®ee JeeHej neslees. ûeenkeÀebveer peemleerle peemle 
ÒeceeCeele SmeSceSme megefJeOee JeeHejeJeer ³eekeÀefjlee DenJeeueJe<eea 
Òe³elve keÀjC³eele Deeues. SmeSceSme yeBefkebÀie megefJeOes®ee ueeYe 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es 23 ueeKe ûeenkeÀ Iesle Deensle.

[sefyeì keÀe[&:
DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves SketÀCe 2.10 ueeKe [sefyeì keÀe[&dmed 
(©Hes/eqJnmee) efJelejerle kesÀueer lemes®e yeBkesÀves ef[efpeìue [sefyeì 
keÀe[& ³eespeveener meg© kesÀueer. ³eecegUs DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ Deelee 
Jn®³eg&Deue keÀe[& efvecee&Ce keÀ©ve Dee@veueeF&ve J³eJenejmegOoe keÀ© 
MekeÀleele.

SìerSce:
DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves leerve veJeerve SìerSce keWÀês keÀe³ee&eqvJele 
keÀ©ve SketÀCe SìerSce keWÀêeb®eer mebK³ee 260 Jej vesueer. DeeHeu³ee 
SìerSceÜejs NPCI®³ee ceeO³eceeletve Deeblejjeä^er³e [sefyeì keÀe[& 
megefJeOeemegOoe GHeueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeuesueer Deens.

‘DeeOeej’ Svesyeu[ HesceWì efmeefmìce (AEPS):
‘Business Correspondent’ lemes®e ‘DeeOeej’ Svesyeu[ 
HesceWì efmeefmìce Debleie&le efMeOeeJeeìHe Je mJemle Oeev³e ogkeÀeveeb®³ee 
ceeO³eceeletve ceneje<ì^e®³ee one efpeu¿eebceO³es, efpeLes 51,000 
Hes#ee peemle mJemle Oeev³e ogkeÀeves Deensle, DeMee efþkeÀeCeer ner 
megefJeOee osC³eele Deeueer. cenejeä^ele ner megefJeOee HeÀkeÌle ®eej®e 
yeBkeÀebveer GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens Je DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ner 
l³eeHewkeÀer SkeÀ yeBkeÀ Deens.
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ve@Meveue FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ ìesue keÀueskeÌMeve (NETC):
ceneceeiee¥Jejerue ìesue veekeÌ³eeJej ìesue ieesUe keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee 
JeeHejC³eele ³esCeeN³ee efjuees[syeue ‘HeÀemì ì@ie’ ³eespeveslener  
‘ve@Meveue FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ ìesue keÀueskeÌMeve’®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeuee 
menYeeie Deens.

	 �keÀmìcej efjuesMevme De@C[ SkeÌmeefHeefjDevme efJeYeeie 
(Customer Relations & Experience 

Department):

	� DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ûeenkeÀeuee keWÀêmLeeveer þsJetve GÊece Òeleer®eer mesJee 
l³eeuee osC³eeme keÀìeryeOo Deens. meejmJele yeBkeÀ ner ûeenkeÀebMeer 
¢{ veelesner peHeles Je DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eeveeMeer pegUJetve Iesle G®®e 
Òeleer®eer ef[efpeìue mesJeener HegjefJeles. HejbHeje Je DeeOegefvekeÀlee 
³ee®ee megboj efceueeHeÀ DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es yeesOeJeekeÌ³e ‘efceues ³eneB 
oesvees peneB’ ³eelener efometve ³eslees.

	� yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&le ûeenkeÀebMeer Demeuesues veeles 
Je=efOobiele keÀjC³eemeeþer Je ûeenkeÀebMeer efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceeletve Lesì 
mebJeeo meeOeC³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ‘keÀmìcej efjuesMevme 
De@C[ SkeÌmeefHeefjDevme’ efJeYeeie megª kesÀuee. ³ee efJeYeeieeuee 
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es 10 ueeKe ûeenkeÀebMeer mebJeeo 
meeOeC³ee®es ue#³e efoues nesles. ³eeefMeJee³e DeveskeÀ GHe¬eÀce ³ee 
efJeYeeieeleHexÀ jeyeefJeC³eele Deeues.

	 	 �ûeenkeÀebMeer megmebJeeo meeOeC³eemeeþer MeeKeeb®ee 
JeOee&Heveefove meepeje keÀjCes.

	 	 �ûeenkeÀebveer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJee JeeHeju³eeyeÎue 
Je<e&Hetleeauee DeeYeeje®es SmeSceSme HeeþefJeCes.

	 	 �efveef<¬eÀ³e (Dormant) Peeuesueer Keeleer, l³ee ûeenkeÀebMeer 
mebHekeÀ& meeOegve Hegve©ppeerefJele keÀjCes.

	 	 �SmeSceSme efuebkeÀÜejs ûeenkeÀebkeÀ[tve yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJeebyeÎue 
DeefYeÒee³e efceUefJeCes.

	 	 �efJeefJeOe efþkeÀeCeer ûeenkeÀ cesUeJes Dee³eesefpele keÀjCes. 
³ee cesUeJ³eebme yeBkesÀ®³ee Jeefj<þ J³eJemLeeHeveeyejesyej 
ûeenkeÀeb®ee Lesì megmebJeeo Je yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer 
ÒeJeemeele meeLe efou³eeyeÎue ûeenkeÀeb®es DeeYeej ceeveCes.

	 	 �ûeenkeÀeb®³ee DeefYeÒee³eevegmeej iejpe Demeu³eeme mesJee-
megefJeOeebceO³es yeoue Ie[efJeCes.

	 	 �ûeenkeÀebveer efouesu³ee meg®eveebvegmeej MeeKeebceOeerue 
keÀe³e&HeOoleerle yeoue Ie[efJeCes.

	� ûeenkeÀebveer DeeHeu³ee ³ee GHe¬eÀceeuee GlmHeÀtle& Òeeflemeeo efouee 
Deens. SketÀCe 98 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHes#ee DeefOekeÀ ûeenkeÀebveer DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJeebyeÎue ‘very good’ efkebÀJee ‘good’ Demee 
DeefYeÒee³e osTve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GÊece mesJee-megefJeOeebÒeleer 
efMekeÌkeÀeceesle&ye kesÀues Deens.

	� De@[Jnìe&³eefPebie, Deuee³evmesme De@C[ keÀe@Heexjsì 
keÀc³egefvekesÀMevme ––– 
(Advertising, Alliances and Corporate 

Communications):

	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee ye´B[ melele ueeskeÀeb®³ee vepejsmeceesj jneJee 
lemes®e yeBkesÀves GHeueyOe kesÀuesu³ee mesJee-megefJeOeeb®eer ceeefnleer 
ueeskeÀebHe³e¥le DeLe&HetCe& Je ÒeYeeJeerHeCes Heesnes®eeJeer ³ee GÎsMeeves  
‘De@[Jnìe&³eefPebie, Deuee³evmesme De@C[ keÀe@Heexjsì 
keÀc³egefvekesÀMevme’ efJeYeeiee®eer mLeeHevee SefÒeue 2017 ceO³es 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer. ³ee efJeYeeieeleHexÀ otjef®e$eJeeCeer lemes®e 
Jele&ceeveHe$ee®³ee ceeO³eceeletve yeBkesÀ®³ee ye´B[®eer peeefnjele lemes®e 
efJeefJeOe mesJeeb®³ee peeefnjeleer Òemeeefjle keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee. 
yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer meesnÈ³ee®eer ÒeefmeOoerner DeeIee[er®³ee 
Je=ÊeHe$eebceO³es keÀjC³eele Deeueer. DeveskeÀ MenjebceO³es DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee peeefnjeleer®eer nesef[¥ipe lej meHìWyej 2017 les 
HesÀye´gJeejer 2018ceO³es keÀeskeÀCe jsuJes®³ee keÀeskeÀCe-keÀv³ee Je 
ceeb[Jeer SkeÌmeÒesme ³ee iee[îee lemes®e cegbyeF&®³ee Deeblejje<ì^er³e 
efJeceeveleUeJejner HetCe& Je<e&Yej DeeHeueer peeefnjele PeUkeÀle 
nesleer. ³ee®eÒeceeCes jsef[Dees Je ef®e$eHeìie=nelener DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee peeefnjeleer®es ÒeoMe&ve keÀjC³eele Deeues. HesÀmeyegkeÀ, 
efJììj, ³egìîegye Je Fvmìeûeece ³ee meceepeceeO³eceebJejner leªCe 
ûeenkeÀebvee DeekeÀef<e&le keÀjC³eele yeBkeÀ ³eMemJeer Peeueer.

	� DeveskeÀ ceev³eJej ye´B[dme®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
ûeenkeÀebmeeþer meJeueleerleerue Kejsoer®³ee Dee@HeÀme& GHeueyOe 
kesÀu³ee. MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&efveefceÊe ¬esÀ[erì-[sefyeì keÀe[&, 
Fbìjvesì Je ceesyeeF&ue yeBkeÀeRie mesJee JeeHeju³eeme ûeenkeÀebvee  



Staying rooted. Forging ahead...

58

‘efjJee@[& Hee@F¥ì’ osC³ee®eer ³eespevee ®eeuet keÀjC³eele Deeueer. 
ns ‘efjJee@[& Hee@F¥ì’ DeeHeues ûeenkeÀ yeBkesÀ®³ee JesyemeeF&ìJe©ve 
Jemletb®eer Kejsoer keÀjleevee JeeHe© MekeÀleele.

	� mebHetCe& Je<e&Yej DeveskeÀ MenjebceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer 
Je<ee&efveefceÊeeves efJeefJeOe keÀe³e&¬eÀceeb®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues 
nesles. ³eeceO³es veeefMekeÀ, veeieHetj, Deewjbieeyeeo, Denceoeyeeo, 
ieesJee, efouueer Je Flej Menjeb®ee meceeJesMe neslee. 

	� ³ee meJe& GHe¬eÀceebcegUs  yeBkesÀ®eer Òeeflecee peveceevemeele Gb®eeJeC³eeme 
ceole Peeueer Je DeveskeÀ veJeerve ûeenkeÀebMeer DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ pees[ueer 
iesueer.

4.	�yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&le 
³eesieoeve osCeeN³ee meJee¥®ee mevceeve:

�	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeÐeceeve lemes®e efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eeN³eebveer 
efouesu³ee ³eesieoeveecegUs Je YeeieOeejkeÀeb®³ee meelel³eHetCe& 
YekeÌkeÀce Heeefþby³eecegUs Deepe DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ menkeÀej 
#es$eele Del³eg®®e mLeeve Yet<eefJele Deens.

	� yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&le meJee¥Òeleer Deeoj 
J³ekeÌle keÀjC³ee®³ee YeeJevesletve keÀce&®eejer, DeefOekeÀejer, 
G®®eeefOekeÀejer, efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eejer Je meYeemeo ¿ee 
Jeiee¥keÀefjlee Hee®e ì^mì mLeeHeve keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle. 
yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe YeeieYeeb[Jeuee®³ee (Paid‑up Capital) 
keÀceeue 5 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer jkeÌkeÀce Òel³eskeÀ ì^mìuee 
meceYeeiee®³ee ©Heele osC³eele ³esF&ue. ³ee meceYeeieeletve 
efceUCeeN³ee ueeYeebMeeceOetve mebyebefOele ueeYeeLeeAvee GlHeVe 
efceUsue.

	� 5. 	 DeveglHeeefole keÀpex

	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<eea DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueerle 
®eebieueer keÀeceefiejer kesÀueer Demetve {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex 
`125.50 keÀesìeRveer keÀceer keÀjC³eele ³eMe efceUefJeues. 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueermeeþer melele HeeþHegjeJee, 
Jemegueermeeþer®es DeLekeÀ HeefjÞece Je veJeerve DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpex Jee{t ve³esle ³eekeÀefjlee DeeKeuesu³ee Ghee³e³eespevee 

¿eecegUs DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeCe DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥Jej efve³eb$eCe 
jeKeues. 31 cee®e&, 2018 DeKesj {esyeU DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues ÒeceeCe ns ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee  
4.63 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 3.72 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens.

	 efve<keÀeefmele (Write-off) keÀpee¥®eer Jemegueer:
	� efve<keÀeefmele kesÀuesu³ee keÀpe&-Keel³eebceOetve DenJeeueJe<eea 

`11.85 keÀesìeR®eer Jemegueer keÀjC³eele Deeueer. Jemegueer®eer 
MekeÌ³elee Del³eble keÀceer Demeleeveener DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ Òe³elveHetJe&keÀ 
ner jkeÌkeÀce Jemetue keÀjC³eele ³eMemJeer Peeueer. efve<keÀeefmele 
keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueerle efceUCeejs GlHeVe ns yeBkesÀ®³ee veHeÌ³eele Lesì 
Yej Ieeuele Demeles.

	 Provision Coverage Ratio:

	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es ÒeeseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe ÒeceeCe (Provision 

Coverage Ratio) ns ceeieerue Je<eea®³ee 61.91 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 
31 cee®e&, 2018 DeKesjerme 75.48 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®eues. l³ee 
Deveg<ebieeves efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeMeer 
Demeuesues ÒeceeCe megOee©ve ieleJe<eea®³ee 1.82 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 
0.94 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e&le Keeueer Deeues, peer SkeÀ cenlJeHetCe&  
keÀeceefiejer Deens.

0.94% efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex
efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCener 31 cee®e&, 
2017®³ee 1.82 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 2018 
jespeer 0.94 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeefnues.

6.	 Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee
	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es keÀpe&J³eJemee³eele `1,933 

keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ Peeueer. HeefjCeeceer yeBkesÀ®es Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee 
ÒeceeCe ieleJe<eea®³ee 14 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 31 cee®e&, 
2018 jespeer 13.60 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeefnues.

7.	 veHeÀe-efJelejCe
	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efveJJeU 

veHeÌ³eeceOetve KeeueerueÒeceeCes lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves kesÀuesueer Deens:
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lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 1
 						      (` ueeKeeble)

2017-18 2016-17

jeKeerJe efveOeer (25%) 6,016.88 5,851.33

DeekeÀefmcekeÀlee efveOeer (10%) 2,406.75 2,340.53

Mew#eefCekeÀ efveOeer (1%) 240.68 234.05

ÒemleeefJele ueeYeebMe 10.50%  

(ÒesHeÀjvme meceYeeie) 
571.67 571.67

He´mleeefJele ueeYeebMe 17.50%  

(ieleJe<eea 15%)
2,972.70 2,286.65

efJeMes<e MelekeÀ ceneslmeJeer 
ueeYeebMe

0.00 2,286.65

keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegie´n 
DevegoeveekeÀefjlee kesÀuesueer 
lejleto 17.50%  (ieleJe<eea 
15%)

3,524.00 2,768.43

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 100.00 100.00

keÀce&®eejer keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 1,335.00 10.00

meeJe&peefvekeÀ, Oecee&oe³e Je menkeÀejer 
keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer (1%)

240.68 234.05

iegbleJeCetkeÀefJe<e³ekeÀ peesKeerce 
efveOeer

4,000.00 1,500.00

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer 1,700.00 1,700.00

meJe&meeOeejCe jeKeerJe efveOeer 956.21 3,020.00

MelekeÀ ceneslmeJeer efveOeer 0.00 500.00

Heg{erue Je<ee&keÀjerlee efMeuuekeÀ 98.56 95.60
24,163.13 23,498.96

17.50% FeqkeÌJeìer  
meceYeeie ueeYeebMe
31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee Je<ee&keÀefjlee FeqkeÌJeìer 
YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 17.50 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer 
efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

10.50% ÒesHeÀjvme  
meceYeeie ueeYeebMe
31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&keÀefjlee 
ÒesHeÀjvme YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 10.50 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer 
efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer:
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeerkeÀefjlee 
`100.00 ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens. ne efveOeer 
Oeªve SketÀCe meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer `1,173.50 ueeKe FlekeÀe 
Demesue. DenJeeueJe<eea SketÀCe 982 meYeemeoebveer JewÐekeÀer³e ceoleer®ee 
ueeYe Iesleuee lemes®e meYeemeoeb®³ee 27 iegCeJeble Heeu³eebvee Heeefjleesef<ekesÀ 
osTve ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues.

17.50% keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer 
meevegûen Devegoeve
31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&keÀefjlee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee 17.50 ìkeÌkesÀ meevegûen Devegoeve 
osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

�meeJe&peefvekeÀ Oecee&oe³e DeeefCe menkeÀej #es$ee®³ee keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer:
�Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee HeefjHe$ekeÀ ¬eÀ. UBD/(PCB)/BPD/

Cir./43 efo. 11 SefÒeue, 2005 vegmeej HejJeeveieer efou³eeÒeceeCes 
meeceeefpekeÀ Je Oecee&oe³e keÀe³ee&keÀefjlee `240.68 ueeKe FlekeÀer 
lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer:
ÒeeHleerkeÀj Keel³ee®³ee lejlegoervegmeej efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeerle ̀ 1,700 
ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deensle.
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 �DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2017-18 ceOeerue DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³e&efme×er®eer þUkeÀ JewefMe<þîes

�SketÀCe J³eJemee³eJee{ ner 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee 
`55,273.49 keÀesìeR®³ee leguevesle 5.88 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer 
cnCepes®e `3,252.28 keÀesìeRveer Jee{tve 31 cee®e&, 
2018 jespeer `58,525.77 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eueer.

�SketÀCe þsJeer 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee `33,737.42 
keÀesìeRJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer `35,056.66 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eu³ee. ner Jee{ 3.91 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Deens. 
SketÀCe þsJeeRceOeerue keÀemee þsJeer `9,449.12 keÀesìeRJe©ve 
14.23 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve `10,793.88 keÀesìeRJej 
iesu³ee.

�SketÀCe keÀpex 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee `21,536.07 
keÀesìeRJe©ve 8.98 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 31 cee®e&, 2018 
DeKesjerme `23,469.11 keÀesìeRJej iesueer.

�keÀjesÊej efveJJeU veHeÀe ne ceeieerue DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee 
`234.05 keÀesìeRJe©ve 2.83 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<e& 2017-18 ceO³es `240.68 keÀesìeRJej iesuee.

�yeBkesÀ®ee mJeefveOeer 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee `2,684.93 
keÀesìeRJe©ve 6.86 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 31 cee®e&, 2018 
jespeer `2,869.03 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee lemes®e yeBkesÀ®es 
Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee 
14  ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer 
13.60 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeefnues.

�yeBkesÀ®es {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeMeer Demeuesues ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e&, 2017®³ee 
4.63  ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer 
3.72 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeC³eele DeeHeCe ³eMemJeer Peeuees.

�efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCener 31 cee®e&, 
2017®³ee 1.82 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 31 cee®e&, 2018 
jespeer 0.94 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeefnues.

8.	 yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeerceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³ee
	� ³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeerceO³es Keeueerue og©ml³ee 

meg®eefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle.

	 De) 	 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 1De:
		�  GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 1De ÒeceeCes ‘Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 

HetJe&HejJeeveieerves yeBkesÀ®es keÀe³e&#es$e ns mebHetCe& YeejleYej 
Demesue. ³eeceO³es keÀener yeoue keÀjeJe³ee®ee Demeu³eeme 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ Je efveyebOekeÀeb®eer efueefKele HejJeeveieer 
I³eeJeer ueeiesue’ Demes veceto kesÀuesues Deens. 

		�  Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme Deelee mebHetCe& 
Yeejle ns yeBkesÀ®es keÀe³e&#es$e Demesue ner HejJeeveieer 
efou³eecegUs Jejerue GHeefJeOeerceO³es og©mleer meg®eefJeC³ee®ee 
ÒemleeJe meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens. 

	 ye)	 yeBkesÀ®ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6[:
		�  yeBkesÀ®ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6[ ne keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee efnleemeeþer 

mebmLesves efkebÀJee keÀce&®eeN³eebveer mLeeHeve kesÀuesu³ee 
veeWoCeerke=Àle ì^mìuee mebmLes®es meceYeeie efJelejerle 
keÀjC³eemeboYee&le Deens.

		�  ³ee GHeefJeOeerleerue cepeketÀj yeouetve KeeueerueÒeceeCes veJeerve 
yeoue meg®eefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle:

		�  yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&efveefceÊe yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efJeÐeceeve lemes®e efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eeN³eebveer efouesu³ee Decetu³e 
³eesieoeveeyeÎue Je meYeemeoebveer kesÀuesu³ee menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue 
yeBkeÀ Hee®e ì^mì mLeeHeve keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle 
Deens. ns ì^mì keÀce&®eejer Jeie&, DeefOekeÀejer Jeie&, 
G®®eeefOekeÀejer, efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eejer Je meYeemeoebmeeþer 
Demeleerue. yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe YeeieYeeb[Jeuee®³ee keÀceeue 
5 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer jkeÌkeÀce Òel³eskeÀ ì^mìuee meceYeeiee®³ee 
©Heele osC³eele ³esF&ue. ³ee meceYeeieeletve efceUCeeN³ee 
ueeYeebMeeceOetve mebyebefOele ueeYeeLeeAvee GlHevve efceUsue.

	 keÀ) 	 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 10De:
		�  keÀpe& Iesleevee keÀpe&oejebleHexÀ meb³egkeÌleHeCes Depe& kesÀuee 

peelees. keÀpe&oejeb®eer meYeemeo cnCetve veeWoCeer keÀjleevee 
GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ.  10De vegmeej keÀceeue ‘leerve’ veeJeeb®eer 
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veeWoCeer keÀjC³ee®eer lejleto Deens. DeveskeÀ JesUsuee keÀpe& 
ns l³eeHes#eener DeefOekeÀ J³eefkeÌble®³ee  meb³egkeÌle veeJeebJej 
IesC³eele ³esles. ³eecegUs GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 10De ceOeerue 
‘leerve’ ³ee MeyoeSsJepeer ‘Hee®e’ ne Meyo yeoueC³eemeeþer 
GHeefJeOeerceO³es og©mleer meg®eefJeC³ee®ee ÒemleeJe meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U keÀjerle Deens. 

	 [) 	 yeBkesÀ®ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 42:
		�  yeBkesÀ®ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 42 jeKeerJe efveOeer®³ee (Reserve 

Fund) efJeefve³eesieemeboYee&le Deens. ³ee GHeefJeOeerle 
pesLes pesLes jeKeerJe efveOeer (Reserve Fund) ne Meyo 
Deens, l³eeDeeOeer ‘Statutory’ ne Meyo meceeefJeä 
keÀjC³eemebyebOeer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U og©mleer meg®eefJele 
Deens.

		�  ceuìer-mìsì keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn meesmee³eìerped De@keÌì, 
2002®³ee keÀuece 63 vegmeej yeBkesÀ®³ee efveJJeU 
veHeÌ³eeletve ‘JewOeeefvekeÀ jeKeerJe efveOeerle’ (Statutory 

Reserve Fund) keÀener efveOeer JeUlee keÀjCes DeefveJee³e& 
Deens DeeefCe l³ee®ee efJeefve³eesiener keÀe³eÐeevegmeej®e keÀjCes 
iejpes®es Deens. mebmLes®³ee Flej meJe& efveOeeR®ee efJeefve³eesie 
mebmLes®eer GÎeräs meeO³e keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ueme osC³eele Deeuee Deens.

	 F)	 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 52 Je 70:
		�  yeBkesÀ®ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue Je Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe 

meYes®eer met®evee FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ ceeO³eceeletve osC³eekeÀjerlee 
GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 52 Je 70 ceO³es og©ml³ee meg®eefJeC³eele 
³esle Deensle. 

		�  He³ee&JejCee®es j#eCe keÀjC³ee®³ee GÎsMeeves Jeeef<e&keÀ 
meJe&meeOeejCe meYee Je efJeMes<e meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®³ee 
meg®evee meYeemeoebvee F&-cesue®³ee ceeO³eceeletve HeeþefJeC³eele 
³esleerue. ³ee meg®evesceO³es efouesu³ee efuebkeÀceOetve yeBkesÀ®³ee 
JesyemeeF&ìJejerue Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeuener Heenlee ³esF&ue. 

	� Jejerue meJe& GHeefJeOeer og©ml³eeb®ee De®etkeÀ cepeketÀj Jeeef<e&keÀ 
meJe&meeOeeCe meYesle meYeemeoebvee osC³eele ³esF&ue.

9. 	 DeeoMe& meYeemeo
	�  DenJeeueJe<eea ‘Deej-SkeÌme  

ue@yee@jsìjerpe’ ³ee HeÀecee&m³egefìkeÀue 
kebÀHeveer®es [e@. Deefpele iegbpeerkeÀj ³eebvee 
‘DeeoMe& meYeemeo’ HegjmkeÀej osTve 
ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues. [e@. Deefpele 
iegbpeerkeÀj ³eebveer ‘Reproductive 
Biology’ ³ee efJe<e³eele ‘ve@Meveue 
Feqvmììîegì HeÀe@j efjme®e& Fve  

efjÒee@[keÌìerJn nsuLe’ ³ee Fbef[³eve keÀeTbefmeue HeÀe@j cesef[keÀue 
efjme®e&®³ee DeefOeHel³eeKeeueerue mebmLeskeÀ[tve [e@keÌìjsì efceUefJeueer 
Deens. l³eeb®³ee Jeef[ueebveer mLeeHeve kesÀuesu³ee ‘Deej-SkeÌme  
ue@yee@jsìjerpe’ ³ee Deew<eOeer kebÀHeveer®es ©Heeblej [e@. Deefpele 
iegbpeerkeÀj ³eebveer l³eeb®³ee DevegYeJee®³ee Je otj¢äer®³ee peesjeJej 
SkeÀe ceesþîee J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ kebÀHeveerle kesÀues. ‘Deej-SkeÌme  
ue@yee@jsìjerpe’®ee HetCe& YeejleYej J³eJemee³e Hemejuee Demetve 
20 efJelejCe-keWÀês lej 1,200 efJelejkeÀ Deensle. iesu³ee Hee®e 
oMekeÀebHeemetve ‘Deej-SkeÌme ue@yee@jsìjerpe’ JewÐekeÀer³e mebMeesOeve 
#es$eele Je efJeefJeOe J³eeOeeRJejerue Deew<eOeeb®eer efveefce&leer keÀjC³eele 
Deûesmej Deens.

10. 	yeBkesÀuee efceUeuesues HegjmkeÀej
	� DeeHeCe Je<e&Yej kesÀuesu³ee DeLekeÀ HeefjÞeceeb®es ®eerpe yeBkesÀme ÒeeHle 

Peeuesu³ee HegjmkeÀejebletve ¢M³e©He Peeues Deens. DenJeeueJe<eea 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme Keeueerue HegjmkeÀejebveer mevceeefvele keÀjC³eele 
Deeues.

	 	� Fbef[³eve yeBkeÌme DemeesefmeSMeveleHexÀ DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme 
menkeÀejer yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue meJeexlke=Àä leb$e%eeveeOeejerle 
yeBkeÀ cnCetve ‘Dee³eyeerS yeBefkebÀie ìskeÌvee@uee@peer 2016-17’ 
HegjmkeÀej efceUeuee.

	 	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer cenÊJee®eer yeBefkebÀie Heeì&vej Demeuesu³ee 
DecesefjkesÀleerue Jesume HeÀeieex yeBkeÀ Sve. S. keÀ[tve efJeosMe 
efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³eeleerue Glke=Àä mesJesyeÎue®ee ‘Jesume 
HeÀeieex Dee@HejsMeveue SkeÌmeuevme’ HegjmkeÀej DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀme Òeoeve keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

[e@. Deefpele iegbpeerkeÀj
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	 	� ve@Meveue HesceWìdme keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eekeÀ[tve (NPCI) 
®eskeÀ ì^bkesÀMeve efmeefmìce (CTS), ve@Meveue HeÀe³eveeeqvMe³eue 
eqmJe®e (NFS) SìerSce vesìJeke&À, ©Hes, Fvmìbì HesceWì  
Òee@[JeÌì  ‘DeeOeej’ Svesyeu[ HesceWì efmeefmìce Je ve@Meveue  
Dee@ìescesìs[ eqkeÌueDeefjbie neTme (NACH) ¿ee 
ÒeCeeueeRmeeþer ‘ve@Meveue HesceWì SkeÌmeuevme De@Jee@[&’ 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀuee efceUeues.

11.	 �J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ ÒeefleefveOeer keWÀê  
(Business Correspondent Centre)

	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es ceepeer DeO³e#e kewÀ. Þeer. SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj ³eeb®³ee 
pevceefovee®es Deewef®el³e meeOetve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
ÒeefleefveOeer (Business Correspondent)®³ee ceeO³eceeletve 
efJeefJeOe yeBefkebÀie mesJee ûeenkeÀebvee HegjefJeC³eemeeþer Heefnues ûeenkeÀ 
mesJee keWÀê Deewjbieeyeeo ³esLes ®eeuet kesÀues. ³ee J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
ÒeefleefveOeer keWÀêebceeHe&Àle veJeerve ye®ele Keeles GIe[Ces, DeeOeej 
(AEPS)®³ee ceeO³eceeletve jkeÌkeÀce Keel³eele pecee keÀjCes Je 
keÀe{Ces, cegole þsJe lemes®e jkeÌkeÀce nmleeblejCe, Fl³eeoer mesJee 
ûeenkeÀebkeÀefjlee meg© keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

12. 	meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer®es GHe¬eÀce
	� DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer keÀe³ece peHele Deeuesueer 

Deens. meceepeeuee DeeHeCe keÀenerlejer osCes ueeielees, ³ee HejesHekeÀejer 
YeeJevesletve ÒeefleJe<eea DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ DeveskeÀ meeceeefpekeÀ GHe¬eÀceebvee 
me{U nmles ceole keÀjerle Demeles.

	� DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ‘ueeskeÀvee³ekeÀ pe³eÒekeÀeMe 
veeje³eCe kegÀÿjesie efveJeejCe ì^mì, JemeF&’ ³ee DeeefoJeemeer Je 
kegÀÿjesi³eebmeeþer keÀe³e& keÀjCeeN³ee mebmLesme `9,92,000/-
®eer DeeefLe&keÀ ceole kesÀueer. 1974 meeueer kewÀ. [e@. peieoerMe 
meeceble ³eebveer ¿ee ì^mì®eer mLeeHeve kesÀueer. ³ee ì^mìÜejs JemeF& 
³esLeerue Deefleogie&ce Yeeieebleerue SkeÀ DeeefoJeemeerHee[e efJekeÀefmele 
keÀjC³eemeeþer oÊekeÀ IesC³eele Deeuee Deens. cegbyeF&Heemetve 
kesÀJeU 70 efkeÀueesceerìjJej Demetvener ne Yeeie DeveskeÀ cetueYetle 
iejpeebHeemetve Jebef®ele Deens. ‘ueeskeÀvee³ekeÀ pe³eÒekeÀeMe veeje³eCe 
kegÀÿjesie ì^mì’Üejs ³esLes DeveskeÀ ®eebieues GHe¬eÀce ®eeuet 

Deensle. ³eeceO³es mJe®í HeeCeerHegjJeþe, jml³eebJej je$eer®³ee 
JesUer meewj efoJ³eeb®eer J³eJemLee, mJe®íleeie=neb®eer GYeejCeer, 
Deejesi³ekeWÀêeb®eer J³eJemLee, ÒeeLeefcekeÀ lemes®e Òeew{ efMe#eCee®eer 
mees³e, J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ ÒeefMe#eCe, Pee[eb®eer ueeieJe[ Je kegÀìgbye 
efve³eespeve, Fl³eeoer keÀener cenÊJee®³ee GHe¬eÀceeb®ee ³eele 
meceeJesMe Deens.

	� ³eeefMeJee³e, Mew#eefCekeÀ, JewÐekeÀer³e Je meeceeefpekeÀ #es$eeble keÀe³e& 
keÀjCeeN³ee 267 mebmLeebvee SketÀCe `16,66,000/- FlekeÌ³ee 
osCei³ee DenJeeueJe<eea osC³eele Deeu³ee. 28 HesÀye´gJeejer, 2018 
jespeer SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj YeJeve ³esLes $eÝCeevegyebOe meesnÈ³eele ³ee 
osCei³ee Òeoeve keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.

13.	 meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee
	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee ceefuìmìsì  

keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe De@keÌì 2002 Je yeBkesÀ®³ee 
Heesìefve³eceevegmeej kesÀueer peeles. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Uele keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀebJ³eefleefjkeÌle meesUe meb®eeuekeÀ 
Deensle. ³eeceO³es veeceJeble, Òeefleef<þle DeeefCe DeeefLe&keÀ/yeBkeÀeRie Je 
Flej #es$eeleerue DevegYeJeer Je le%e meb®eeuekeÀeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens. 

	� DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee SketÀCe 
27 meYee Peeu³ee.

	 meb®eeuekeÀebvee keÀpex:
	� yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀesCel³eener meb®eeuekeÀeves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve 

keÀesCel³eener ÒekeÀej®es keÀpe& Iesleuesues veener. ner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer 
iesu³ee DeveskeÀ Je<ee¥®eer mJeeieleen& Je efvekeÀesHe HejbHeje Deens. ³ee®es 
ÒeeJeOeeve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 DeeefCe 63(meer) 
ceO³es keÀjC³eele Deeues  Deens.

14. 	meYeemeo
	� 31 cee®e&, 2018 DeKesjerme DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es HeVeeme efkeÀbJee 

DeefOekeÀ meceYeeie DemeCeeN³ee meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 1,99,616 
FlekeÀer Peeueer. lej veececee$e meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 39,972 
FlekeÀer Deens.
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15.	�JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀe®eer efve³egkeÌleer
	� DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 keÀefjlee JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ 

cnCetve ces. peer. [er. DeeHeìs De@C[ kebÀHeveer, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbìdme, 
peer[erS neTme, Huee@ì veb. 85, jeF&ì Yegmeejer keÀe@ueveer, Heew[ jes[,  
HegCes - 411 038 ³eeb®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eemeeþer ns meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens.

16.	peenerj efveJesove
	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRJejerue efJec³ee®ee 31 cee®e&, 2018 

He³e¥le®ee efÒeefce³ece®ee nHlee ef[Hee@efPeì FvMegjvme De@C[ ¬esÀ[erì  
ie@jbìer keÀe@HeexjsMevekeÀ[s pecee kesÀuesuee Deens DeeefCe meoj 
efÒeefce³eceHeesìer keÀesCeleerner jkeÌkeÀce osCes yeekeÀer veener.

17.	ÞeOoebpeueer
	� DenJeeueJe<ee&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee p³ee meYeemeoeb®es, efveJe=Êe 

keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es Je keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es og:Keo efveOeve Peeues, l³ee 
meJee¥Òeleer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Deeojebpeueer DeHe&Ce keÀjerle Deens. 
l³eeb®³ee kegÀìgbyeer³eeb®³ee og:Keele meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U menYeeieer 
Deens.

18.	ke=Àle%elee
	� meJe& meYeemeo Je Keelesoej ³eebveer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀJej Je meb®eeuekeÀ 

ceb[UeJej oMe&efJeuesu³ee efJeéeeme Je menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U l³eeb®es meowJe $eÝCeer Deens. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 

keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue DeefOekeÀejer Je keÀce&®eejer, keWÀêer³e menkeÀejer 
efveyebOekeÀ – veJeer efouueer, menkeÀej Dee³egkeÌle Je menkeÀejer 
efveyebOekeÀ keÀe³ee&ue³e, HegCes – ceneje<ì^ Je DeeHeu³ee yeBkeÀme&®es 
l³eebveer efouesu³ee ceeie&oMe&ve, Heeefþbyee Je menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U $eÝCeer Deens. lemes®e ceO³eÒeosMe, keÀvee&ìkeÀ, ieesJee, efouueer 
Je iegpejele ³ee jep³eebleerue menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀeb®esner meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U DeeYeej ceeveerle Deensle.

	� DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe& keÀce&®eeN³eebveer yeBkesÀ®eer GÎer<ì HetCe& 
keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee efve<þsves Je meceefHe&le YeeJevesves efouesu³ee 
³eesieoeveeyeÎue lemes®e ûeenkeÀebvee Glke=À<ì mesJee Òeoeve 
kesÀu³eeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U ke=Àle%elee J³ekeÌle keÀjerle Deensle.

	� DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ³esCeeN³ee keÀeUele GÊece Òeieleer keÀªve ³eMee®eer 
DeveskeÀ efMeKejs ieeþsue ns Deeéeemeve meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meJe& 
meYeemeoebvee osT Fef®íles. ner GÎer<ìs ieeþC³eekeÀjerlee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U DeefJejle Òe³elve keÀjsue.

yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves,

ieewlece SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj
DeO³e#e

	 cegbyeF&, 20 peguew, 2018

leUìerHe:
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee mebHetCe& DenJeeue FbûepeerceO³es meesyele efouee Deens. ne HeÀkeÌle iees<eJeeje Deens.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements
1.	� We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited (the Bank) as at 31st 
March 2018, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March 2018, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. The 
returns of all branches audited by us are incorporated in these 
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
2.	� Management is responsible for the preparation of these 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in 
accordance with provisions of the Banking Regulations Act, 
1949, the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 
the guidelines issued by the National Bank for Agricultural 
and Rural Development, the Central Registrar of Cooperative 
Societies, the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the 
Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 (as applicable) 
and accounting principles generally accepted in India so far as 
applicable to Banks. This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.	� Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatements.

4.	� An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5.	� We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
6.	� In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements together with the Notes thereon give the 
information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the 
Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and the Multi State  
Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 and the guidelines issued 
by the National Bank for Agricultural and Rural Development 
(as applicable) and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India 
and the Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies, in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

	 (a)	� In the case of the Balance Sheet, of state of affairs of the 
Bank as at 31st March, 2018;

	 (b)	� In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for 
the year ended on that date; and

	 (c)	� In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements
7.	� The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have 

been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively of the Third 
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi 
State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State  
Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

8.	� As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

	 a)	� We have obtained all the information and explanations, 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found to 
be satisfactory;

	 b)	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and proper returns adequate 
for the purposes of our audit have been received from the 
branches/offices;

	 c)	� The transactions of the Bank which came to our notice 
have been within the powers of the Bank;

	 d)	� The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report, are in 
agreement with the books of account and the returns;

	 e)	� The accounting standards adopted by the Bank are 
consistent with those laid down by accounting principles 
generally accepted in India so far as applicable to Banks;
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	 f)	� In our opinion and according to information and 
explanations given to us, we have not noticed any 
material impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure or in 
the realisation of money due to the Bank.

9.	� As per the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the books of account and other 
records, we have come across the following material instances 
which need to be reported under Rule 27(3) of the Multi State  
Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002:

	 (a)	� transactions which appear to be contrary to the provisions 
of the Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, the 
rules or the bye-laws of the Bank -NIL

	 (b)	� transactions which appear to be contrary to the guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and National Bank for 
Agriculture and Rural Development-NIL

	 (c)	� money belonging to the Bank which appears to be bad 
or doubtful of recovery `559.27 crore (i.e. in respect of 
Advances classified as NPA as per prudential norms by 
RBI `541.12 crore & other assets `18.15 crore) for which 
adequate provision is made by the Bank.

	 (d)	� the loans given by the Bank to the members of the Board 
– NIL

	 (e)	� violation of guidelines, conditions etc., issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India or National Bank for Agriculture 
and Rural Development – NIL

	 (f)	� matters that have been specified by the Central Registrar 
of Cooperative Societies in this regard – NIL 

For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 0105407W

											           sd/-
(P. M. PARULEKAR)

Partner
Membership No. 036362

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018
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Balance Sheet
As at 31st March, 2018

(Amount in `)

 Capital and Liabilities Schedule Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

(1)	 Capital 1 2,36,74,57,280 2,15,22,60,430

(2)	 Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 2 33,00,39,86,326 31,56,12,92,888

(3)	 Deposits & Other Accounts 3 3,50,56,65,84,063 3,37,37,41,86,734

(4)	 Borrowings 4 12,31,66,54,312 7,92,94,60,129

(5)	 Bills for Collection being Bills

	 Receivable as per contra 44,73,87,29,678 31,44,48,37,226

(6)	 Overdue Interest Reserve on Loans & Advances as per contra 93,73,83,158 1,46,44,85,618

(7)	 Interest Payable 56,96,32,062 48,08,44,693

(8)	 Other Liabilities 5 13,02,05,91,615 11,78,85,92,428

(9)	 Profit & Loss 6 2,41,63,13,025 2,34,98,95,462

Total 4,59,93,73,31,519 4,26,54,58,55,608

 Contingent Liabilities: 13 45,28,98,43,453 35,91,13,19,323

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0105407W

		  sd/-
(P. M. PARULEKAR)
Partner
Membership No.036362

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018
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sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. SANDHANE S. N. SAWAIKAR A. A. PANDIT S. K. SAKHALKAR G. E. THAKUR
Managing Director Director Director Vice Chairman Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018

(Amount in `)

Property And Assets Schedule Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

(1)	 Cash 7 15,51,47,80,210 15,15,05,76,779

(2)	 Balances with Other Banks 8 29,10,93,03,158 33,98,82,70,349

(3)	 Money at Call and Short Notice 18,05,59,98,028 20,32,72,17,300

(4)	 Investments 9 95,67,97,41,133 88,72,79,18,565

(5)	 Advances  10 2,34,69,11,28,746 2,15,36,07,13,894

(6)	 Interest Receivable on Loans & Advances as per contra 93,73,83,158 1,46,44,85,618

(7)	 Bills Receivable being Bills for Collection as per contra 44,73,87,29,678 31,44,48,37,226

(8)	 Branch Adjustments 11,29,64,357 51,41,925

(9)	 Fixed Assets 11 8,69,12,11,945 9,01,03,55,533

(10)	 Other Assets  12 12,36,82,19,783 10,99,17,21,886

(11)	 Computer Software  3,78,71,323 7,46,16,532

Total 4,59,93,73,31,519 4,26,54,58,55,608
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(Amount in `)
Expenditure Current Year

31.03.2018
Previous Year

31.03.2017

1)	 Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. 21,83,46,74,961 22,75,04,53,978
2)	 Salaries and Allowances, Bonus, Gratuity, 3,15,48,77,439 3,04,60,87,270
	 Provident Fund Contribution, etc.
3)	 Directors' Sitting Fees 68,17,500 64,27,500
4)	 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc. 1,06,22,58,926 1,01,05,77,760
5)	 Law Charges 36,75,438 46,32,177
6)	 Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges 7,39,79,635 6,49,11,811
7)	 Audit fees (Statutory, Internal and Concurrent Auditors) 4,21,83,634 4,00,26,087
8)	 Depreciation/Amortisation of Assets 28,44,11,954 34,00,36,347
9)	 Printing and Stationery 3,75,26,616 4,57,23,834
10)	 Advertisements 11,28,23,678 13,24,68,937
11)	 Other Expenditure:
	 i)	 Repairs and Maintenance of assets 10,87,43,908 9,47,30,765
	 ii)	 Banker's Indemnity Insurance 61,58,370 1,40,52,439
	 iii)	 Premium paid to DICGC 33,39,52,699 31,20,66,066
	 iv)	 Premium paid to ECGC 1,61,81,954 1,79,05,636
	 v)	 Cheque Processing Charges 1,43,62,603 1,37,03,495
	 vi)	 Leased Line Expenditure 5,21,71,467 6,33,51,327
	 vii)	 Travelling and Conveyance 2,66,47,925 2,55,57,801
	 viii)	 Security Service Charges 25,20,06,930 26,67,06,181
	 ix)	 Amortisation of Investments 31,69,38,979 27,52,88,216
	 x)	 Professional Fees 7,48,14,581 5,17,80,755
	 xi)	 Bank Charges 87,72,655 1,25,09,872
	 xii)	 Digital Banking Expenses 30,66,49,442 28,86,72,489
	 xiii)	 Car Expenses 1,06,72,446 1,15,76,803
	 xiv)	 Housekeeping Charges 2,49,66,763 2,30,99,491
	 xv)	 Sundries 30,87,69,057 29,57,64,310

1,86,18,09,779 1,76,67,65,646
12)	 Provisions:
	 i)	 Bad And Doubtful Debts Reserve 1,94,15,95,188 2,40,06,30,955
	 ii)	 Reserve for Restructured Assets 2,13,77,000 5,93,32,000
	 iii)	 Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 1,65,14,000 8,91,63,258

1,97,94,86,188 2,54,91,26,213
13)	 Income-Tax Expenses:
	 i)	 Current Tax 93,00,00,000 1,33,00,00,000
	 ii)	 Deferred Tax (3,39,79,121) (33,27,66,458)
	 iii)	 Short /(Excess) Provision for Tax of earlier years(Net) 7,49,33,607 (10,89,48,434)

97,09,54,486 88,82,85,108
14)	 Net Profit carried to Balance Sheet 2,40,67,53,463 2,34,05,31,656

Total 33,83,22,33,697 34,98,60,54,324

Profit & Loss Account
For the year ended 31st March, 2018

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0105407W

		  sd/-
(P. M. PARULEKAR)
Partner
Membership No.036362

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018
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(Amount in `)

Income Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

1)	 Interest & Discount 29,59,03,41,298 30,65,86,92,268

2)	� Commission (Including Insurance Commission `7.33 crore, 
P.Y. `5.78 crore)

45,52,27,298 40,27,52,971

3)	 Exchange 33,38,11,325 39,86,81,237

4)	 Profit on Sale of Securities (Net) 1,59,80,53,775 2,28,83,58,476

5)	 Dividend 8,48,874 3,63,368

6)	 Other Receipts:

	 i)	 Processing Fees 43,51,85,723 34,77,06,892

	 ii)	 Service Charges 48,43,83,588 39,49,70,911

	 iii)	 Recovery of Expenses 1,26,04,451 1,34,88,577

	 iv)	 Profit on Sale of Assets(Net) 13,08,243 15,52,384

	 v)	 Digital Banking Income 35,72,33,181 25,87,47,681

	 vi)	 Miscellaneous Income 6,88,90,186 12,73,68,250

1,35,96,05,372 1,14,38,34,695

7)	 Excess Provision of earlier years written back 84,20,576 1,06,09,116

8)	 Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered 9,38,77,179 7,99,07,193

9)	 Excess Provision for Depreciation on Investments written back 7,20,48,000 28,55,000

10)	 Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve Reversed 32,00,00,000 0

Total 33,83,22,33,697 34,98,60,54,324

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. SANDHANE S. N. SAWAIKAR A. A. PANDIT S. K. SAKHALKAR G. E. THAKUR
Managing Director Director Director Vice Chairman Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th April, 2018
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Schedule 1 – Capital
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Authorised Capital: 10,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,00,000
	 100,00,00,000 Shares of `10/- each
	 (Previous year 100,00,00,000 shares )
	 Subscribed Capital: 1,82,30,12,280 1,60,78,15,430
	 18,23,01,228 Shares of `10/- each
	 (Previous year 16,07,81,543 shares of `10/- each)
	 Amount Called up: 1,82,30,12,280 1,60,78,15,430
	 18,23,01,228 Shares of `10/- each
	 (Previous year 16,07,81,543 shares of `10/- each)
	 Of the above held by:
	 a)	 Individuals & others 1,82,30,12,280 1,60,78,15,430
	 b)	 Societies 0 0
ii)	 Preference Share Capital 54,44,45,000 54,44,45,000
	 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of `10/- each
	 (Previous year 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of `10/- each)
	 	 Total 2,36,74,57,280 2,15,22,60,430

Schedule 2 – Reserve Fund & Other Reserves
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Statutory Reserve 6,95,04,84,895 6,31,03,23,732
ii)	 Building Fund 2,52,90,93,933 2,52,90,93,933
iii)	 Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 6,76,51,82,612 6,36,26,09,217
iv)	 Restructured Assets Reserve 13,62,09,000 11,48,32,000
v)	 Investment Fluctuation Reserve 1,68,35,00,710 1,85,35,00,710
vi)	 Contingency Reserve 2,47,53,73,050 2,24,13,19,850
vii)	 Contingent provision against Standard Assets 97,55,25,000 95,90,11,000
viii)	 Members' Welfare Fund 10,73,50,000 9,73,50,000
ix)	 Provision for Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 9,58,03,855 7,57,64,955
x)	 Provision for Staff Welfare 1,26,72,715 1,25,14,465
xi)	 Net Open Foreign Currency Position Reserve 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
xii)	 General Reserve 3,24,46,62,411 2,94,26,55,911
xiii)	 Revaluation Reserve 6,63,93,16,387 6,82,94,63,163
xiv)	 Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of I.Tax Act,1961 1,29,28,00,000 1,12,28,00,000
xv)	 Reserve for Excess Provision on Sale of Financial Assets 3,67,99,852 9,00,53,952
xvi)	 Centenary Fund (Net) 3,92,11,906 0

Total 33,00,39,86,326 31,56,12,92,888

Schedules forming part of Accounts
for the year ended 31st March, 2018
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Schedule 3 – Deposits & Other Accounts

(Amount in `)
Current Year

31.03.2018
Previous Year

31.03.2017

 i)	 Fixed Deposits:
 	 a)	 Individuals & Others 1,87,18,36,33,572 1,88,87,70,52,898
	 b)	 Central Co-op. Banks 50,00,000 50,28,000
	 c)	 Other Societies 55,43,91,96,269 54,00,09,20,304

(i) 2,42,62,78,29,841 2,42,88,30,01,202
ii)	 Savings Bank Deposits:
	 a)	 Individuals & Others 75,99,97,56,955 72,64,94,92,514
	 b)	 Other Societies 4,90,84,10,400 4,30,60,44,603

(ii) 80,90,81,67,355 76,95,55,37,117
iii)	 Current Deposits:
	 a)	 Individuals & Others 25,63,16,74,026 16,36,93,43,080
	 b)	 Central Co-op.Banks 1,14,08,172 67,06,872
	 c)	 Other Societies 1,38,75,04,669 1,15,95,98,463

(iii) 27,03,05,86,867 17,53,56,48,415

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,50,56,65,84,063 3,37,37,41,86,734

Schedule 4 – Borrowings
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 CBLO 5,02,64,31,586 0
ii)	 Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks 49,02,22,726 1,55,93,85,129
iii)	 Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits 6,80,00,00,000 6,37,00,75,000

Total 12,31,66,54,312 7,92,94,60,129

Schedule 5 – Other Liabilities
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Bills Payable 1,31,63,63,169 90,06,82,119
ii)	 Unclaimed Dividend 14,20,36,830 8,84,47,218
iii)	 Suspense 36,16,54,664 27,90,96,584
iv)	 Provision  for  Staff Pension 35,99,77,042 36,34,34,796
v)	 Rebate on Bills Discounted 3,46,38,771 4,20,87,593
vi)	 Credit Balance in Bank Account 68,20,22,218 34,39,67,019
vii)	 Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments 77,04,12,000 84,24,60,000
viii)	 Provision for Taxation 4,79,51,16,193 3,79,30,38,074
ix)	 Other items 4,55,83,70,728 5,13,53,79,025

Total 13,02,05,91,615 11,78,85,92,428
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Schedule 6 – Profit & Loss
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

Profit as per last Balance Sheet (a) 2,34,98,95,462 2,12,03,80,206
Less: Appropriations of profit for the year 2016-17

Reserve Fund 58,51,32,900 52,79,78,900
Dividend 45,73,29,400 21,39,02,000
Dividend on Preference Shares 5,71,66,800 5,47,05,500
Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 2,34,05,300 2,11,19,200
Provision for Staff Welfare 10,00,000 10,00,000
Members' Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Ex-gratia to Employees 27,68,43,000 27,00,00,000
Education fund 2,34,05,300 2,11,19,200
Contingency Reserve 23,40,53,200 21,11,91,600
Investment Fluctuation  Reserve 15,00,00,000 38,00,00,000
Special Reserve 17,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
General  Reserve 30,20,00,000 20,00,00,000
Centenary Fund 5,00,00,000 0

 (b) 2,34,03,35,900 2,11,10,16,400
(a)-(b) 95,59,562 93,63,806

Add: Profit for the year as per Profit & Loss Account 2,40,67,53,463 2,34,05,31,656
Total 2,41,63,13,025 2,34,98,95,462

Schedule 7 – Cash
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Cash In hand (Including Foreign Currency Notes) 1,79,12,85,969 1,64,60,93,712
ii)	 Balance with RBI in Current A/c 13,69,77,25,607 13,47,50,57,607
iii)	 Balance with SBI & SBI Associates in Current A/c 2,08,21,059 2,23,55,159
iv)	 Balance with State Co-operative Banks 51,008 51,008 
v)	 Balance with District Central Co-operative Banks 48,96,567 70,19,294 

Total 15,51,47,80,210 15,15,05,76,779

Schedule 8 – Balance with Other Banks 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	� Current Deposits  
(Including `14.11 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries)

2,36,60,35,859 2,27,72,16,032

ii)	 Fixed  Deposits (including `23.36 crore pledged 
	 for securing funded/non-funded facilities and treasury operations)

26,74,32,67,299 31,71,10,54,317

Total 29,10,93,03,158 33,98,82,70,349
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Schedule 9 – Investments
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

(I)	 i)	 In Central & State Government Securities 72,10,30,29,156 65,81,65,09,674
		  Face Value – `7136.66 crore
		  Market Value – `6944.84 crore
		  (including `1687.45 crore pledged for Treasury operations)
	 ii)	 Shares in Co-operative Institutions 22,63,518 22,63,518
	 iii)	 PSU Bonds 1,71,00,00,000 1,81,00,00,000
	 iv)	 Bonds of All India Financial Institutions 3,50,13,66,900 2,60,07,06,300
	 v)	 Shares of Limited Company 31,04,306 31,04,306
	 vi)	 Units of Mutual Funds 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
	 vii)	 Certificate of Deposit 7,06,06,24,000 8,60,30,90,000
	 viii)	 Commercial Paper 49,72,90,000 0
	 ix)	 Security Receipts 3,73,39,82,000 3,47,44,70,000

(I) 88,62,16,59,880 82,32,01,43,798

(II)	 Reserve Fund Investments:
	 In Central / State Govt. Securities 6,95,07,31,121 6,31,04,23,721
	 Face Value – `700.81 crore
	 Market Value – `679.27 crore

(II) 6,95,07,31,121 6,31,04,23,721
(III)	 Members' Welfare Fund Investments:
	 In Central / State Govt. Securities 10,73,50,132 9,73,51,046
	 Face Value – `10.84 crore
	 Market Value – `11.03 crore

(III) 10,73,50,132 9,73,51,046

Total (I+II+III) 95,67,97,41,133 88,72,79,18,565

Schedule 10 – Advances
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

I)	� Short Term Loans, Cash Credit,  
Overdrafts & Bills Discounted:

	 Of which secured against:
	 a)	 Government & Other approved Securities 20,50,41,723 18,64,96,576
	 b)	 Other Tangible Securities 1,12,69,27,88,744 1,03,90,07,31,544
	 c)	 Personal Advances 1,34,49,09,653 1,23,33,81,375

(I) 1,14,24,27,40,120 1,05,32,06,09,495

	 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 1,10,93,30,02,206 1,01,65,61,23,252
	 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 5,47,64,67,190 5,49,82,27,068
	 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 3,31,12,13,001 2,54,04,73,121

II)	 Medium Term Advances:
	 Of which secured against:
	 a)	 Government & Other approved Securities 3,51,04,012 3,44,12,770
	 b)	 Other Tangible Securities 25,76,22,06,916 25,04,96,39,464
	 c)	 Personal Advances 5,76,78,013 9,14,25,295

(II) 25,85,49,88,941 25,17,54,77,529



Staying rooted. Forging ahead...

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)74

(Amount in `)
Current Year

31.03.2018
Previous Year

31.03.2017

	 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 25,84,36,42,345 25,16,52,62,538
	 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 2,77,49,85,015 3,06,53,66,945
	 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 1,63,22,46,284 1,95,11,93,547

III)	 Long Term Advances:
	 Of which secured against:
	 a)	 Government & Other approved Securities 28,54,608 29,38,578
	 b)	 Other Tangible Securities 94,58,25,99,242 84,85,20,82,160
	 c)	 Personal Advances 79,45,835 96,06,132

(III) 94,59,33,99,685 84,86,46,26,870

	 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 94,17,36,53,489 84,53,54,64,244
	 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 86,34,95,887 96,87,00,297
	 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 46,77,81,071 47,47,62,545

Total (I+II+III) 2,34,69,11,28,746 2,15,36,07,13,894

Schedule 11 – Fixed Assets
(Amount in `)

Current Year 
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

I	 Land:
	 Leasehold Land
	 Cost as on 1.4.2017 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880

(a) 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880
	 Less: Amortisation
			   Amortisation upto last year (40,84,357) (38,77,692)
			   Amortisation for current year (2,06,665) (2,06,665)

(b) (42,91,022) (40,84,357)

Total (a-b) 1,32,70,858 1,34,77,523
II	 Premises (Including freehold land):
	 Cost as on 1.4.2017 9,89,57,81,656 9,90,14,73,175
	 Add : Additions during the year 43,69,450 32,269
	 Less: Sales/Adjustment during the year 0 (57,23,788)

(a) 9,90,01,51,106 9,89,57,81,656
	 Less:	 Depreciation
			  Depreciation upto last year (1,34,02,84,587) (1,09,91,33,403)
			  Depreciation for current year (5,24,80,329) (5,23,71,093)
			  Depreciation on Revalued Amount (19,01,46,774) (19,01,46,774)
			  Depreciation on sales 0 13,66,683

(b) (1,58,29,11,690) (1,34,02,84,587)

Total (a-b) 8,31,72,39,416 8,55,54,97,069
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(Amount in `)
Current Year 

31.03.2018
Previous Year

31.03.2017

III	 Leasehold Improvement:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2017 4,26,97,604 4,99,29,393
	 Add : Additions during the year 10,25,788 33,70,801

4,37,23,392 5,33,00,194
	 Less : Amortisation for current year (98,00,863) (1,06,02,590)

Total 3,39,22,529 4,26,97,604
IV	 Plant & Machinery:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2017 10,48,36,673 12,03,92,935
	 Add: Additions during the year 1,25,56,066 2,78,11,634

11,73,92,739 14,82,04,569
	 Less: Sales/Adjustment (Net) (5,73,027) (3,75,220)

11,68,19,712 14,78,29,349
	 Less : Depreciation for current year (3,42,56,535) (4,29,92,676)

Total 8,25,63,177 10,48,36,673
V	 Furniture & Fixture:
	 Book value as on 1.4.2017 16,01,82,901 19,96,27,157
	 Add: Additions during the year 1,42,37,697 2,73,20,907

17,44,20,598 22,69,48,064
	 Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) (7,33,533) (2,03,178)

17,36,87,065 22,67,44,886
	 Less : Depreciation for current year (5,10,96,029) (6,65,61,985)

Total 12,25,91,036 16,01,82,901

VI	 Computers:
	 Cost as on 1.4.2017 33,31,84,075 24,20,24,634
	 Add: Additions during the year 4,52,39,896 9,60,56,182
	 Less : Sold during the year (66,44,283) (48,96,741)

(a) 37,17,79,688 33,31,84,075
	 Less : Depreciation upto last year (23,17,91,328) (15,13,27,901)
	 Depreciation for current year (6,63,90,921) (8,32,30,330)
	 Depreciation on sales 65,59,661 27,66,903

(b) (29,16,22,588) (23,17,91,328)

Total (a-b) 8,01,57,100 10,13,92,747
VII	 Motor Cars:
	 Cost as on 1.4.2017 8,78,41,932 8,90,61,089
	 Add : Additions during the year 2,52,37,833 50,91,064
	 Less : Sold during the year (1,76,81,812) (63,10,221)

(a) 9,53,97,953 8,78,41,932
	 Less : Depreciation upto last year (5,93,75,398) (5,29,96,993)
	 Depreciation for current year (1,46,40,328) (1,17,14,800)
	 Depreciation on sales 1,49,71,120 53,36,395

(b) (5,90,44,606) (5,93,75,398)

Total (a-b) 3,63,53,347 2,84,66,534
VIII	 Capital Work-In-Progress (Premises) 38,04,482 38,04,482
IX	 Capital Work-In-Progress (Software) 13,10,000 0

Grand Total 
(I to IX)

8,69,12,11,945 9,01,03,55,533
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Schedule 12 – Other Assets
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Deposit for Services 28,95,01,305 28,47,87,195
ii)	 Interest Accrued on Investments 1,94,98,97,843 1,72,99,74,186
iii)	 Rent Receivable 3,78,043 3,57,373
iv)	 Rent on Lockers in Arrears 45,09,275 35,12,192
v)	 Stamps on Hand 24,68,213 21,68,833
vi)	 Prepaid Expenses 5,10,74,011 3,73,06,986
vii)	 Deferred Tax Asset 2,41,89,21,866 2,38,49,42,745
viii)	 Income Tax paid 4,91,76,79,645 4,01,26,33,033
ix)	 Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCIL) 24,95,25,000 49,29,50,000
x)	 Other dues 2,48,42,64,582 2,04,30,89,343

Total 12,36,82,19,783 10,99,17,21,886

Schedule 13 – Contingent Liabilities
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2018

Previous Year
31.03.2017

i)	 Letters  of Credit 9,76,76,23,878 8,22,80,64,870
ii)	 Guarantees 5,49,63,88,938 4,99,41,10,817
iii)	 Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts 29,29,50,72,804 22,08,70,76,369
iv)	 Unclaimed Liabilities under DEAF Scheme 73,07,57,833 60,20,67,267

Total 45,28,98,43,453 35,91,13,19,323
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I.	 Notes 

1)	 Background:
	� Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. was incorporated in 

1918 and provides a complete suite of corporate and retail 
banking products.

2)	 Basis of preparation:
	� The financial statements have been prepared and presented 

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting, unless otherwise stated and comply with generally 
accepted accounting principles, statutory requirements 
prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act,1949 and the 
Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, circulars and 
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time 
to time, the Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India.

3)	 Use of estimates:
	� The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in 
the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Any revision to the accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

II.	 Significant Accounting Policies:

1)	 Accounting Convention:
	� The financial statements are drawn up in accordance with 

the historical cost convention (as modified by revaluation of 
premises) and ongoing concern basis.

2)	 Foreign currency transactions:
	 2.1	� Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are 

accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities 
at the Balance Sheet date are translated at rates notified 
by Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India (FEDAI). 
All profits/losses resulting from year-end revaluations are 
recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

	 2.2	� Outstanding forward exchange contracts and spot 
exchange contracts are revalued at year end exchange 
rates notified by FEDAI. The resulting gains or losses on 
revaluation are included in the Profit and Loss account in 
accordance with RBI/FEDAI guidelines.

	 2.3	� Contingent Liabilities on account of foreign exchange 
contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and 
other obligations denominated in foreign currencies are 
disclosed at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI.

	 2.4	 The Bank has no foreign branches.

3)	 Investments:
	 3.1	 Categorisation of investments:
		�  In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank 

classifies its investment portfolio into the following three 
categories:

		  i)	� ‘Held to Maturity’ – Securities acquired by the Bank 
with the intention to hold till maturity.

		  ii)	� ‘Held for Trading’ – Securities acquired by the Bank 
with the intention to trade.

		  iii)	� ‘Available for Sale’ – Securities which do not fall 
within the above two categories are classified as 
‘Available for Sale’.

	 3.2	 Classification of Investments:
		�  For the purpose of disclosure in the Balance Sheet, 

Investments are classified as required under Banking 
Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI guidelines as follows:–

		�  Government Securities, Other Trustee Securities, Shares 
in co-operative institutions, Shares of Limited companies, 
PSU Bonds, Bonds of All India Financial Institutions, 
Security Receipts and other Investments.

	 3.3	 Valuation of Investments:
		  i)	� ‘Held to Maturity’ – These investments are carried at 

their acquisition cost less amortisation. Any premium 
on acquisition is amortised over the balance period 
to maturity.

		  ii)	� ‘Held for Trading’ – The individual scrip in the HFT 
category is marked to market at monthly interval. The 
net resultant depreciation in each classification (as 
mentioned in Para 3.2 above) is recognised in the 
Profit and Loss Account. Net appreciation, if any, is 
ignored.

		  iii)	� ‘Available for Sale’ – The individual scrip in the AFS 
category is marked to market at the year end. The 
net resultant depreciation in each classification (as 
mentioned in Para 3.2 above) is recognized in the 
Profit and Loss Account. Net appreciation, if any, is 
ignored.

		  iv)	� Market value of Government Securities (excluding 
Treasury Bills) is determined on the basis of the price 
list published by RBI or the prices periodically declared 
by PDAI jointly with FIMMDA/FBIL for valuation at 
year-end. In case of unquoted Government Securities, 
market price or fair value is determined as per the 
rates published by FIMMDA/FBIL.

		  v)	� Market value of other approved securities is 
determined based on the yield curve and spreads 
provided by FIMMDA.

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2018 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2018.
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		  vi)	� Equity shares are valued at cost or the closing quotes 
on a recognised stock exchange, whichever is lower.

		  vii)	� Treasury Bills are valued at carrying cost, net of 
discount amortised over the period to maturity.

		  viii)	� Certificate of Deposits and Commercial Papers are 
valued at carrying cost.

		  ix)	� Units of Mutual Funds are valued at the lower of 
cost and net asset value provided by the respective 
Mutual Fund.

		  x)	� Security Receipts – These are valued at Net Asset Value 
as provided by the Asset Reconstruction Company.

		  xi)	� Broken period interest on debt instruments is 
treated as a revenue item. Brokerage, commission, 
etc. pertaining to investments paid at the time of 
acquisition is charged to revenue.

	 3.4	� Accounting for Repo/ Reverse Repo transactions 
(including transactions under the Liquidity 
Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI)

		�  The securities sold and purchased under Repo/ Reverse 
Repo are accounted as Collateralised Borrowing and 
Lending transactions. However, securities are transferred 
as in the case of normal outright sale/ purchase 
transactions and such movement of securities is reflected 
using the Repo/ Reverse Repo Accounts and contra 
entries. The above entries are reversed on the date of 
maturity. Costs and revenue are accounted as interest 
expenditure/income, as the case may be. Balance in 
Repo account is classified under schedule 4 (Borrowings) 
and balance in Reverse Repo account is classified under 
Money at Call & Short Notice.

4) 	� Provisioning for Advances and Overdue Interest 
Reserve:

	 4.1	� The classification of advances into Standard, Sub-
standard, Doubtful and Loss assets as well as provision 
on non-performing advances has been arrived at in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI from time 
to time. In addition to this, a general provision on standard 
assets is made @0.40% of the outstanding amount on 
a portfolio basis except in the case of direct advances 
to Agricultural and SME sector @ 0.25%, advances to 
Commercial Real Estate @ 1% and Commercial Real 
Estate- Residential House Sector @ 0.75%.

	 4.2	� The overdue interest in respect of non-performing 
advances is provided separately under “Overdue Interest 
Reserve” as per the directives issued by RBI.

5)	 Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
	 5.1	� Leasehold Land, Computers and Motor Cars are stated at 

cost less amortisation/depreciation. Furniture & Fixtures, 
Plant & Machinery and Leasehold improvement are stated 
at written down value.

		�  Premises (including Freehold Land): These are stated at 
the revalued amounts less depreciation.

		�  Cost includes incidental expenses incurred on acquisition 
of assets.

	 5.2	 (i)	� Plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fixtures and Motor 
Cars are depreciated on written down value method 
@30% p.a.

		  (ii)	� Premises (excluding Freehold Land) are depreciated 
on straight line method @ 2.5% p.a.

		  (iii)	� Lease improvement costs are amortised over the 
period of lease.

		  (iv)	� Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of 
lease.

		  (v)	� Computers are depreciated on straight line method 
@33.33% as directed by RBI.

		  (vi)	� Depreciation on revalued portion of Premises is 
adjusted against Revaluation Reserve.

	 5.3	� Depreciation on fixed assets purchased during the year 
is charged for the entire year if the asset is purchased for 
180 days or more; otherwise it is charged at 50% of the 
normal rate. No depreciation is charged on fixed assets 
sold during the year.

	 5.4	� The addition to the Fixed Assets are net of Excise Input 
Credit (100%) as well as GST Input Tax Credit to the 
extent it is availed by the Bank.

6)	 Revenue Recognition (AS 9):
	 6.1	� Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on 

accrual basis.

	 6.2	� Income from non-performing assets is recognised to the 
extent realised, as per the directives issued by RBI.

	 6.3	� Interest on Government Securities, debentures and other 
fixed income securities is recognised on accrual basis. 
Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the 
tenor of the instrument on a straight-line basis.

	 6.4	 Dividend income is accounted on receipt basis.

	 6.5	 Exchange and brokerage are recognised on realisation.

	 6.6	� Income from distribution of insurance products is 
recognised on the basis of business booked.

7)	 Deposit for Services:
	� The Deposit for Services like Telephone, Electricity, etc. paid to 

the concerned authorities is written off as expenditure in the 
year in which the relevant service connection is installed.
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8)	 Employee Benefits (AS 15):
	 8.1	� The liability towards Gratuity, Leave Encashment, Staff 

Pension and unavailed LTC is provided on the basis of 
actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date and 
considered as defined benefit schemes. The actuarial 
valuation is carried out as per projected unit credit 
method.

	 8.2	� The Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund is accounted 
for on the basis of contribution to the scheme.

	 8.3	� The Bank’s gratuity liability is fully covered by Cash 
Accumulation Policy of LIC.

	 8.4	� In respect of leave encashment liability, the Bank has 
obtained Insurance policies with three different insurance 
companies. The shortfall, if any, between projected 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets as on 
31st March is provided for and recognized as expense in 
the Profit and Loss Account.

9)	 Segment Reporting (AS 17):
	� In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Bank has 

adopted Segment Reporting as under:

	 9.1	� SBU- Treasury includes all investment portfolio, profit/loss 
on sale of investments, profit/loss on foreign exchange 
transactions, equities and money market operations. The 
expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on 
funds borrowed from external sources as well as internal 
sources and depreciation/ amortisation of premium on 
Held to Maturity category investments.

	 9.2	� Other Banking Operations include all other operations not 
covered under Treasury operations.

10)	 Related party Disclosures (AS 18):
	� There are no related parties which require a disclosure under 

AS 18 other than the Key Management Personnel. Since Mrs. 
S. M. Sandhane, the Managing Director of the Bank is a single 
party under the category Key Management Personnel, no 
further details need to be disclosed in terms of RBI circular 
dated 29th March, 2003.

11)	 Operating Leases (AS 19):
	� Lease rental obligations in respect of assets taken on operating 

lease are charged to Profit and Loss Account on straight-line 
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs are charged to 
Profit and Loss account.

12)	 Earnings per Share (AS 20):
	� Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit 

or loss for the year by the weighted average number of shares 
(excluding preference shares) outstanding during the year 
calculated on monthly basis.

13)	 Income-Tax (AS 22):
	 13.1	�Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated 

taxable income for the year.

	 13.2	�Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to consideration 
of prudence, on timing difference, representing the 
difference between taxable income and accounting 
income that originated in one period and is capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred Tax 
Assets and Liabilities are measured using tax rates and 
tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the Balance Sheet date.

14)	 Intangible Assets (AS 26):
	� Intangible assets consist of Computer Software acquired / 

self created. The same is amortised equally over the period of 
three years.

15)	 Impairment of Assets (AS 28):
	� Since the Bank has ascertained that there is no material 

impairment of any of its assets, no provision on account of 
impairment of assets is required to be made.

16)	� Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets (AS 29):

 	� A provision is recognised when the Bank has a present 
obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
are not discounted to its present value and are determined 
based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	� When there is a possible or present obligation in respect of 
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made.

	� Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial 
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed 
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic 
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised 
in the period in which the change occurs.

	� Contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which 
will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank 
or any present obligation arising from past event which is not 
recognized since it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of 
the amount of such obligation cannot be made.
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III.	 Notes to Accounts:
�1)	� The Share Capital includes 773574 shares of `10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed to additional shares 

to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and as a result, they are not entitled to their 
membership rights.

2)	� In terms of RBI directives, following additional disclosures are made:

(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

1. Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio 13.60% 14.00%
2. Movement in CRAR

(i)	 Total Capital Funds 2907.14 2802.24
(ii)	 Risk Weighted Assets 21368.30 20020.59

3. Investments:
(i)	 Book Value 9567.97 8872.79
(ii)	 Face Value 9630.98 8759.34
(iii)	 Market Value 9215.68 8800.79

4. Advances against:
(i)	 Real Estate 1074.67 1092.81
(ii)	 Construction Business 70.91 69.44
(iii)	 Housing 3452.02 3189.93

5. Advances against shares & debentures 27.68 22.18
6. Advances to directors, their relatives, companies/firms in which they are interested:

(i)	 Fund based NIL NIL
(ii)	 Non-Fund based NIL NIL

7. Average cost of deposits 6.20% 6.82%
8. NPAs

(i)	 Gross NPAs 872.27 997.77
(ii)	 Net NPAs 213.91 380.03

9. Movement in NPAs
(i)	 Gross NPAs
Opening Balance 997.77 848.62
Add : Additions during the year 222.00 439.63
Less : Reduction during the year 347.50 290.48
Closing Balance 872.27 997.77
(ii)	 Net NPAs
Opening Balance 380.03 363.25
Add : Additions during the year (125.50) 149.15
Less : Reduction during the year (40.62) 132.37
Closing Balance 213.91 380.03

10. Profitability:
(i)	 Interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 7.30 7.98
(ii)	 Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 1.05 1.13
(iii)	 Operating profit as a percentage of working funds (%) 0.83 0.84
(iv)	 Return on average Assets (%) 0.60 0.62
(v)	 Business (Deposits + Advances) per Employee 14.41 13.41
(vi)	 Operating profit per employee 0.08 0.08

 11. Provisions made towards:
(i)	 NPAs 194.27 237.52
(ii)	 Depreciation on investments 0.00 0.00
(iii)	 Standard Assets 1.65 8.92
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(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

12. Movement in Provisions:
(i)	 Towards NPAs
Opening Balance 617.74 485.37
Add : Additions during the year 194.27 237.52
Less : Reduction during the year 153.64 105.14
Closing Balance 658.37 617.74
(ii)	 Towards Depreciation on investments
Opening Balance 84.25 84.53
Add : Additions during the year 0.00 0.00
Less : Reduction during the year 7.21 0.28
Closing Balance 77.04 84.25
(iii)	 Towards Standard Assets
Opening Balance 95.90 86.98
Add : Additions during the year 1.65 8.92
Less : Reduction during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 97.55 95.90

13. (i)	 Foreign currency assets 799.16 932.00
(ii)	 Foreign currency liabilities 247.07 303.87

14. (i)	 Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 33.40 31.21
(ii)	 Arrears in payment of DICGC premium NIL NIL

15. Penalty imposed by RBI NIL NIL
16. Cost of premises 

Original Cost 228.36 227.92
Add : Revaluation 761.66 761.66
Closing Balance 990.02 989.58

3)	 In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions:
(` in crore)

Particulars Minimum
outstanding 

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as 
on 31st March 

2018

Security sold under Repo
i)	 Government Securities 0.00

(NIL)
1330.69
 (927.33)

450.71
(201.64)

0.00
(NIL)

ii) 	 Corporate Debt Securities 0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

Securities purchased under Reverse Repo
i)	 Government Securities 0.00

 (NIL)
1053.91
 (653.57)

67.95
(62.31)

0.00
(NIL)

ii)	 Corporate Debt Securities 0.00
 (NIL)

0.00
 (NIL)

0.00
 (NIL)

0.00
 (NIL)

Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF)
i)	 Government Securities 0.00

(NIL)
150.00
(475.00)

5.90
(53.63)

0.00
(NIL)

ii)	 Corporate Debt Securities 0.00
 (NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

Securities purchased under RBI Repos (LAF)
i)	 Government Securities 0.00

(NIL)
2269.00
(4027.00)

468.59
(726.78)

1588.00
(610.00)

ii)	 Corporate Debt Securities 0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

0.00
(NIL)

Note: i) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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4) 	 Non-SLR Investments:
4.1)	 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments:

 (` in crore)
Sr. No. Particulars Amount Extent of “Below 

Investment 
Grade” 

Securities

Extent of 
“Unrated” 
Securities

Extent of 
“Unlisted” 
Securities

1. PSUs  25.00
(25.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

2. FIs 350.14
 (260.07)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

 0.00
 (0.00)

3. Public Sector Banks 21.00
(21.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

4. Mutual Fund 1.00
(1.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

N.A.
 (N.A)

N.A.
 (N.A)

5. Others 548.53
 (482.85)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

6. Provision held towards depreciation  77.04
 (84.25)

XXX
 (XXX)

XXX
 (XXX)

XXX
 (XXX)

Total 945.67
 (789.92)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.

4.2)	Non-performing Non-SLR investments:
 (` in crore)

Particulars Amount
31.03.2018

Amount
31.03.2017

Opening Balance 0.00 0.00
Additions during the year 0.00 0.00
Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
Total provisions held 0.00 0.00
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5)	 Details of Advances Restructured as on 31st March, 2018 are given below:
(` in crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Housing Loans SME Debt 
Restructuring

CDR Others

I Standard Advances 
Restructured

Number of Borrowers  0
 (0)

1
 (2)

2
 (2)

8
 (13)

Amount Outstanding 0.00
 (0.00)

10.17
(20.14)

45.11
 (47.57)

335.78
(249.82)

Sacrifice (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00
(0.00)

0.68
(0.92)

0.74
 (0.62)

11.27
(6.95)

II Sub Standard 
Advances Restructured

Number of Borrowers 0
(0)

0
(0)

0
(0)

3
(1)

Amount Outstanding 0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

31.34
 (10.24)

Sacrifice (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.54
(0.15)

III Doubtful Advances 
Restructured

Number of Borrowers 0
(0)

4
(5)

1
(3)

2
(1)

Amount Outstanding 0.00
 (0.00)

21.02
(23.22)

 26.55
 (79.16)

21.68
(12.00)

Sacrifice (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00
 (0.00)

0.20
 (0.20)

0.00
 (0.95)

0.19
(0.14)

Total Number of Borrowers 0
 (0)

5
(7)

3
(5)

13 
(15)

Amount Outstanding 0.00
 (0.00)

31.19
(43.36)

71.66
(126.73)

388.80
(272.06)

Sacrifice (Diminution in the  
Fair Value)

0.00
 (0.00)

0.88
 (1.12)

0.74
(1.57)

12.00
 (7.24)

Notes:- Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures

6)	 Employee Benefits- AS 15 (Revised):
6.1	 Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund – `24.44 crore
	 (Previous year- `22.45 crore)

6.2 	Assumptions:
Sr. 
No

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.18 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.17

I Discount rate 7.83% 7.20% 7.45% 7.45%
II Expected return on Plan Assets 7.83% 7.20% -- --
III Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

6.3	 Table showing change in Benefit Obligation:
 		  (` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.18 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.17

Liability at the beginning of the current year 124.77 121.41 36.34 33.16
Interest cost 8.98 9.79 2.71 2.59
Current service cost 5.78 5.37 0.29 0.22
Benefits paid (14.73) (14.09) (2.13) (1.93)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on obligations 7.16 2.29 (1.21) 2.30
Liability at the end of the current year 131.96 124.77 36.00 36.34
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6.4	 Table of Fair Value of Plan Assets:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.18 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.17

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 125.23 121.41 -- --
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.02 9.79 -- --
Contributions 12.96 8.59 -- --
Assets transferred In/ Acquisitions -- -- -- --
Benefits paid (14.67) (14.09) -- --
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on Plan Assets 0.42 (0.47) -- --
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 132.96 125.23 -- --

6.5	 Amount recognised in Balance Sheet:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.18 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.17

Present value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 131.96 124.77 36.00 36.34
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 132.96 125.23 -- --
Funded Status (Surplus/Deficit) 1.00 0.46 36.00 36.34
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet 1.00 0.46 36.00 36.34

6.6	 Expenses recognised in income statement:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.18 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.17

Current service cost 5.78 5.37 0.29 0.22
Interest cost (0.03) -- 2.71 2.59
Expected return on Plan Assets -- -- -- --
Actuarial gains/ (losses) 6.73 2.76 (1.21) 2.30
Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss account 12.48 8.13 1.79 5.11



B
ank O

verview
 1-29

Financial S
tatem

ents and
 O

thers  64-99

85Annual Report 2017-18

S
tatutory R

ep
orts 30-63

7)	 Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segments) AS 17:
(` in crore)

Particulars SBU- Treasury Other Banking 
Business

31st March 2018  
(31st March 2017)

Revenue
Segment Revenue 1,158.61

(1,222.51)
2,224.61
(2,276.48)

3,383.22
 (3,498.99)

Result 179.70
(226.58)

158.07
(96.30)

337.77
 (322.88)

Unallocated Expenses 0.00
(0.00)

Operating Profit 337.77
 (322.88)

Income Tax 97.10
 (88.83)

Net Profit 240.68
 (234.05)

Other Information
Segment Assets 20,146.39

 (18,455.39)
25,113.68
(23,559.44)

45,260.07
 (42,014.83)

Unallocated Assets 733.66
(639.76)

Total Assets 45,993.73
(42,654.59)

Segment Liabilities 5,416.38
 (3,261.88)

37,832.66
(36,910.15)

43,249.05
 (40,172.03)

Unallocated Liabilities 596.75
 (500.41)

Total Liabilities 43,845.80
 ( 40,672.44)

Note:
i)	� These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, different risks and returns attributable to them, 

organisation structure and internal management information system.

ii)	 Types of products & services in each business segment:
	 i)	 SBU-Treasury : Dealing operations in forex, money market & fixed income products.
	 ii)	 Other Banking Operations: Corporate & Retail Banking & Allied services.

iii)	� Secondary Segment information: Bank caters mainly to the needs of Indian customers; hence separate information regarding 
secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment is not given.

iv)	 Segment Liabilities exclude Capital and Reserves other than those specifically identifiable with a segment.

v)	 Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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8)	 Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year:
-	 Not later than one year 46.17 49.76
-	 Later than one year and not later than five years 79.04 102.88
-	 Later than five years 4.72 6.30
Total of minimum lease payments realization in the Profit and Loss account for the year 57.22 54.58
Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-lease NIL NIL
Sub-lease payments realization in the Profit and Loss account for the year NIL NIL

9)	 Major components of Deferred Tax (AS 22):
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Deferred Tax Asset
1 Sec.43B 39.51 42.33
2 Provision for BDDR 236.38 226.13
3 Amortisation of HTM Securities 13.39 17.33
4 Other 6.85 8.51

Sub-Total (A) 296.13 294.30
Deferred Tax Liability

1 Difference in WDV of fixed assets 8.96 10.23
2 Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) 44.09 38.84
3 Others 1.19 6.74

Sub-Total (B) 54.24 55.81
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 241.89 238.49

Note: Deferred Tax Asset has been recognised to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realisation.

10)	 Details of Computer Software –other than internally generated (AS 26):
�a)	� Amortisation rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight line method. (However, if useful life of software is shorter, then proportionate rates 

are used).
 (` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 32.53 27.60
Add: Additions during the year 1.88 4.93
Sub-Total (A) 34.41 32.53
Less : Amortisation made:
Opening Balance of Amortisation 25.07 17.82
Add : Amortisation during the year 5.55 7.25
Sub-Total (B) 30.62 25.07
Net carrying amount as on 31st March (A)-(B) 3.79 7.46

b)	� Amount of commitments (net of advance) for the acquisition of computer software – `0.37 crore  (Previous year- `0.35 crore).
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11)	 �The information in respect of their registration under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 is not received from 
suppliers / service providers by the Bank. Hence, information relating to the cases of delays if any, in payments to such enterprises or 
of interest payments due to such delays could not be given.

12)	 �The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its Directors. The Bank has paid premium of `2,16,785/- on this account.

13)	 Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31.03.2018:

	 a)	 Qualitative Disclosures
		�  Market Risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply because of economic 

changes or other events that impact the financial markets. In other words, Market Risk is calculated for both, adverse movement 
in the price of an individual security owing to factors related to the individual issuer as well as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

		�  Methodology
		�  The Bank follows the Standardised Duration Approach for calculation of Market Risk. The Bank manages the Market Risk in the 

books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement for Market Risk is being maintained on a continuous basis 
i.e. at the close of each business day.

		�  The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is determined as per the 
extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments.

		  Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for
		  1)	 ‘Specific Risk’ charge – for individual issuer related factors.
		  2)	 ‘General Market Risk’ – for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

		  Scope
		  The portfolios covered under the said approach include:
		  1)	 Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category
		  2)	 Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category
		  3)	 Open Foreign Exchange Position Limits

		�  Infrastructure/ MIS & Reporting
		�  The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides detailed guidelines for all operational procedure, 

settlements, valuations and risk controls pertaining to the investments.

		�  A separate Mid-Office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory guidelines and of the 
Banks’ Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

		�  Parameters for risk measurement
		�  Risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as Modified Duration, Net Open Position Limits, Gap Limits, Value- 

at- Risk (VaR).

 	 b) 	 Quantitative Disclosure:
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

The Capital requirements for:
Interest Rate Risk 81.43 72.17
Equity Position Risk 0.06 0.06
Foreign Exchange Risk 3.15 3.15
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14) Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC/RC for Asset Reconstruction:
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

a. No. of accounts 3 2
b. Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 125.32 49.77
c. Aggregate consideration 124.60 55.30
d. Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 0.00 0.00
e. Aggregate gain/loss over net book value (0.72) 5.53

15)	� Disclosure with respect to ‘The Depositor Education and Awareness Fund Scheme, 2014’ (DEAF) as per RBI Circular 
dated 27/05/2014:

(` in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 60.21 43.40
Add : Amounts transferred to DEAF during the period 14.95 17.60
Less : Amount reimbursed by DEAF towards claims for the year 1.21 0.48
Less : Amount yet to be settled by DEAF till 31.03.2018 0.87 0.31
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 73.08 60.21

16)	 Earnings per Share (EPS)
(` in crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Net Profit after Taxation 240.68 234.05
Weighted average No. of Shares 17.17 15.39
EPS (in actuals) 14.02 15.21

17)	 Centenary Fund: 
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2018

Fund created during the year out of appropriation of Net Profit 5.00
Less:- Expenditure on Centenary celebrations during the year 1.08
Closing balance as on 31.03.2018 3.92

18)	� Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the accounts of 
the current year.

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0105407W

		  sd/- 	     sd/- 	    sd/- 	  sd/-
(P. M. PARULEKAR) S. M. SANDHANE S. N. SAWAIKAR A. A. PANDIT
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No.036362

	     sd/- 	  sd/-
Place: Mumbai S. K. SAKHALKAR G. E. THAKUR
Date: 27th April, 2018 Vice Chairman Chairman
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(` in crore)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Net Profit as per P/L account 240.68 234.05
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation on Assets 28.44 34.00
Fixed assets written off/adjustment 0.00 0.01
Amortisation of Investments 31.69 27.53
Provision for Tax 100.50 122.11
Provision for BDDR 194.16 240.06
Provision for Standard Assets 1.65 356.44 8.92 432.63

597.12 666.68
Less : Profit on Sale of Assets 0.13 0.16
Profit on Sale of Securities 159.81 228.83
Dividend received 0.00 0.04
Deferred Tax Asset 3.40 33.27
Excess provision for Depreciation on Investment 7.20  170.54 0.00  262.30

426.58 404.38
Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments (63.09) 294.78
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances (1933.04)  (1,169.96)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets (43.75) 14.80
Increase/(Decrease) in Funds (185.09)  (92.50)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 1319.24 2241.58
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (14.29)  (920.02)  (61.03)  1,227.67
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities before Tax  (493.44)  1,632.05
Income Tax paid (Net)  (90.79)  (71.92)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities after Tax (A)  (584.23)  1,560.13
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (12.28)  (20.69)
Dividend received  - 0.04
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets  0.54 0.97
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B)  (11.74)  (19.68)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital 21.52 12.47
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowing 438.72 47.04
Dividend Paid (46.09)  (25.13)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C)  414.15  34.38
Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (181.82)  1,574.83
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,775.50  2,200.67

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  3,593.68  3,775.50

Cash & Cash Equivalents 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Cash 1551.48 1515.06
Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposit) 236.60 227.72
Money at Call & Short Notice 1805.60 2032.72

 3,593.68  3,775.50

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2018

As per our report of even date attached
For KULKARNI & KHANOLKAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0105407W
		  sd/- 	     sd/- 	    sd/- 	  sd/-
(P. M. PARULEKAR) S. M. SANDHANE S. N. SAWAIKAR A. A. PANDIT
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No.036362

	     sd/- 	  sd/-
Place: Mumbai S. K. SAKHALKAR G. E. THAKUR
Date: 27th April, 2018 Vice Chairman Chairman
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Progress at a Glance (Year 1920-2018)

(` in lakh)
Year No. of  

Members
Paid-up 
Capital

Reserve & 
Other Funds

Deposits Advances Total  
Business No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount

1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80 813.13
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11 2,420.17
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99 2,968.56
Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97,412.18 35,59,404 23,93,951.03 97,364 15,47,005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15,156 27,17,084.05 96,718 17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753 31,49,584.33 95,376 20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903 33,73,741.87 97,092 21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary Year
2018 **1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326 23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
*   Including Interest Reserve
**  Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
#   Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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(` in lakh)
Year Investments Working  

Capital
Net Profit Dividend  

Amount
Dividend  

(%)
No. of  

Branches

1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary Year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70* 17.50* 281

*  Recommended for ordinary shares
# Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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Our Members
No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage

50-51 47,738 23.91
52-250 37,259 18.67
251-1500 62,648 31.38
1501-2500 51,971 26.04
Total 1,99,616 100.00

Our Depositors
No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto		 `1000 14,81,982 35.30
		  `1001 to `5000 5,86,122 13.96
		  `5001 to `10000 2,61,602 6.23
		  `10001 to `20000 2,84,632 6.78
		  `20001 to `30000 2,05,837 4.90
Above	 `30000 13,77,889 32.83
Total 41,98,064 100.00

Our Borrowers
No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto		 `5000 9,171 8.96
		  `5001 to `10000 933 0.91
		  `10001 to `25000 3,395 3.32
Above	 `25000 88,827 86.81
Total 1,02,326 100.00

Advances to Priority Sector
No. of Accounts (` in crore)

Small Scale Industries 511 430.04
Small Businessmen & Traders 10,025 2,864.71
Other Priority Sector 40,357 2,615.97
Total 50,893 5,910.72

Involvement of the Small Man
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

Mumbai
1 Andheri (East) (022) 26822522/23, 26825080
2 Andheri (East), Marol (022) 29202254, 29201705, 29206119
3 Andheri (East), MIDC (022) 28324488, 28324487
4 Andheri (East), Pump House (022) 28349777, 28349779
5 Andheri (East), Saki Naka (022) 28472356, 24671284
6 Andheri (West), Veera Desai Road (022) 26742487, 26742489, 26742269
7 Andheri (West), Barfiwala Raod (022) 26231136, 26284287
8 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala (022) 26367467/68
9 Ballard Estate (022) 24671114/15, 22631691
10 Bandra (East), Bandra Kurla Complex (022) 26599182-85, 26599181
11 Bandra (East), Chetana College, Govt. Colony (022) 26428544, 26432636, 8097055151
12 Bandra (West), National Library (022) 26419249, 26419265
13 Bhandup (West), L.B.S. Marg (022) 25667192, 25667194
14 Borivali (East), Carter Road (022) 28050372, 24671117/18, 28622170
15 Borivali (East), Shimpoli (022) 28014653, 28014634
16 Borivali (West), Chandavarkar Lane (022) 28922725, 28940518, 28940537, 28912520
17 Borivali (West), I C Colony (022) 28921388, 28920699
18 Borivali (West), Sai Baba Nagar (022) 28090029/30
19 Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan (022) 24671265-68
20 Chembur (West), Sion Trombay Road (022) 24671125-27
21 Chembur (West), Tilak Nagar (022) 25275503/04
22 Chembur (East), Collector’s Colony. (022) 25534016
23 Chhatrapati Shivaji Terminus (022) 24671121/22, 22036973
24 Corporate Banking Br, Lower Parel (022) 24821801, 24821841
25 Dadar (East), Dadasaheb Phalke Road (022) 24671144/45, 24106870, 24103344
26 Dadar (East), Hindu Colony (022) 24120460/61
27 Dadar (West), Gadkari Chowk (022) 24374258, 24374293
28 Dadar (West), Madhukendra off. N C Kelkar Road (022) 24671180/81, 24302190
29 Dahisar (East), Maratha Colony (022) 24671273, 28281759
30 Dahisar (West) (022) 28929561
31 Dharavi, R P Nagar (022) 24035627
32 Fort, D N Road (022) 22043005/06, 49149000, 49147972
33 Ghatkopar (East), Opp Ghatkopar Railway Station (022) 25012167
34 Ghatkopar (West), Barvenagar (022) 24671156, 25140646, 25113189
35 Ghatkopar (West), L B S Road (022) 25001334/35
36 Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal Estate (022) 25166663/64
37 Girgaon, S V Sovani Path (022) 24671162-65, 23821240
38 Goregaon (East), Hub Mall (022) 26864150/51
39 Goregaon (East), Nagri Niwara (022) 28401550, 28421440
40 Goregaon (East), Walawalkar Wadi (022) 29275045/46
41 Goregaon (West) (022) 28745611/12, 28720962
42 Goregaon (West), Link Road (022) 28776248, 28774924
43 Jogeshwari (East), Majaswadi (022)28270677, 28204101
44 Juhu, N S Road No.13 (022) 26117538/39, 24671254, 26119121
45 Kalbadevi Branch (022) 22079406/07
46 Kandivali (East), Thakur Complex (022) 28546881, 28546883
47 Kandivali (East), Thakur Village (022) 24671178, 28878883
48 Kandivali (West), Dahanukarwadi (022) 28627002/03
49 Kandivali, GIE – Govt. Indl. Easate (022) 24671175/76, 28677141
50 Kandivli (West), Junction of S V Road & Jamnadas 

Adukia Road
(022) 24671177, 28020457, 28643704

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

51 Kandivli (West), M.G.Road (022) 24671275/76, 28655009, 28084244
52 Kanvivali (West), Charkop (022) 24671124, 28690593, 28696225
53 Khar (West), Pali Hill (022) 26499693, 24671196/97
54 Khar, Linking Road (022) 26487589, 26046141
55 Lower Parel, N M Joshi Marg (022) 24378832, 24379930
56 Mahim, Sitaladevi Temple Road (022) 24453328, 24468864, 24465754
57 Malad (west),Orlem (022) 24671279/80
58 Malad, Link Road (022) 28790631, 28798533
59 Malad, Mamlatdar Wadi (022) 24671183/84, 28808745
60 Masjid Bunder (022) 23411087, 23433058, 23426305
61 Matunga (East), Telang Road (022) 24032796, 24014624, 24026419
62 Mazgaon (022) 23707475/76
63 Mulund (East), L T Road (022) 21636137, 24671277, 21635054
64 Mulund (West), M G Road (022) 24671189/90, 25671790
65 Mulund (West), RRT Road (022) 25903041
66 Mulund (West), Veena Nagar (022) 21643655/56, 24671292
67 Mumbai Central (022) 23012024/25
68 Overseas Marine Lines (022) 49205656, 22096019
69 Parel (West), M D College (022) 24671146, 24188752
70 Powai, Hiranandani (022) 25701726, 25702268
71 Powai, Opp. I.I.T. (022) 25784868, 24671198
72 Prabhadevi, Opp Ravindra Natya Mandir (022) 24223780, 24671200, 24228328
73 Santacruz (East) (022) 26175133/34
74 Santacruz (East), Kalina (022) 26654361/62
75 Santacruz (West), Station Road (022) 26040096, 26040180
76 Sarvoday Nagar, Mulund (West) (022) 25601025, 25901290/91
77 Sion (West), Swami Vallabhadas Road (022) 24083727/ 6353,
78 SME – Nariman Point Vidhan Bhavan Marg (022) 22856215, 43682000, 43682030
79 SME – Vikhroli LBS Marg (022) 42499900, 42499988
80 SME – Vileparle, Subhash Road (022) 42349999/53, 42349988
81 Vidyavihar (West) (022) 25134137/38
82 Vikhroli (East), Behind Vikroli Bus Depot (022) 25741105/06
83 Vikhroli (West), Station Road (022) 24671260, 25780245, 25785770
84 Vile Parle (East) Nehru Road (022) 24671223-25, (022) 26133303, (022) 26106835
85 Vile Parle (West), Besant Road (022) 26147095, 24671293, 26147097
86 Wadala, Antop Hill (022) 24016030, 24671113, 24038069, 24099438
87 Wadala, R A Kidwai Road (022) 24183696, 24671230, 24183432
88 Worli, Dr. A. B. Road (022) 24314265, 24223340, 24671261/62, 24333546

Thane & Palghar District   
89 Ambernath (East) (0251) 2609292, 2609797
90 Arnala Virar (West) (0250) 2588311
91 Badlapur (East) Branch (0251) 6540580-87
92 Bhayander (West) Dr. Ambekar Marg (022) 28186905/907
93 Bhiwandi , Gauri Pada (02522) 230060/61
94 Boisor, Ameya Park (02525) 2694666/278666, 
95 Dombivali (East), Bhagat Singh Road (0251) 2489022, 2493013
96 Dombivali (West), M G Cross Marg (0251) 2489022/2493013, 
97 Kalwa, Station Road (022) 25347456, 24671173/74
98 Kalyan (East), Kolshewadi (0251) 2363862/63
99 Kalyan (West), Shil Road (0251) 2971661/62
100 Kalyan, Khadakpada (0251) 2302208/209
101 Kalyan, Murbad Road (0251) 2200081, 2205037, 2210427

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network
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No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

102 Mira Road, Royal Complex (022) 28551848, 28551851
103 Palghar, Kacheri Road (02525) 250695, 252604, 254966
104 Panchpakhadi, Thane (West) (022) 25348645, 25348646
105 Thane (East), Kopri (022) 25325016/23
106 Thane (West), Brahmand (022) 25841365/66
107 Thane (West), Hiranandani (022)21730758/959
108 Thane (West), Jambhli Naka (022) 24671210/211, (022) 25330370/71, (022) 25346090
109 Thane (West), Kasarvadvali (022) 25976585, 25976884
110 Thane (West), Khopat (022) 25372175/76
111 Thane (West), Naupada (022) 25332754/2677, 24671213
112 Thane (West), Vartak Nagar (022) 25390772, 24671214, 25390772
113 Thane (West), Vijay Nagari (022) 25971603/2242 
114 Thane (West), Wagle Estate (022) 25837767/68
115 Ulhasnagar (0251)2732716/17 
116 Vasai (East), Vasai Nallasopara Link Road (0250) 6906054, 6056055
117 Vasai (West) (0250) 23409344/55
118 Virar (East), Bazar Ward (0250) 2520527, 2526162, 2526667, 2521098
119 Virar (West), Agashi Road (0250) 2505767/962, 6480276

Navi Mumbai
120 Airoli , Sector – 7 (022) 27602655/56
121 APMC (022) 27831160/61
122 CBD Belapur, Sector – 11 (022) 27560083/ 84
123 Kamothe, Sector – 7 (022) 27431571/72
124 Khanda Colony, New Panvel (022) 27453183/84
125 Kharghar, Sector – 7 (022) 27746911/22
126 Koparkhairane, Sector – 20 (022) 27551328/29
127 Nerul (East), Sector – 21 (022) 27712666/67
128 Nerul (West), Sector – 4 (022)27729922/3657
129 Sanpada, Sector – 4 (022) 27755292, 27755381, 27755381
130 Seawoods (022) 27724551, 27714551
131 Turbhe (022) 27842234/35
132 Uran, Karanja Road (022) 27231008/09
133 Vashi, Sector -12 (022) 27667615/16
134 Vashi, Sector -17 (022) 27893188/8195

Pune
135 Akurdi (020) 27662133/2157/2087
136 Aundh (020) 25890332/31, 25886169
137 Baner Road (020) 27292957/58
138 Bavdhan (020) 22951512/2434
139 Bhosari (020) 27112366/67
140 Bhusari Colony, Kothrud (020) 25286002/04
141 Bibwewadi (020) 24231467, 24213217
142 Budhwar Peth (020) 24462131, 24455226
143 Chakan (02135) 249331/30
144 Chinchwad (020) 27351313/1414
145 Dahanukar Colony (020) 25462500/9648
146 Fergusson College Road (020) 25652491/92
147 Fatima Nagar (020) 26861046/0181
148 Ganesh Khind Road (020) 25582249
149 Ganesh Nagar (020) 25435066/77
150 Hadapsar (020) 26999081/4424
151 Hinjewadi (020) 22933567/66
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152 Karve Road (020) 25431780/5937/2056
153 Katraj (020) 24364847/48
154 Kharadi (020) 27014026/27
155 Kondhava (020) 26851073/74
156 Narayan Peth (020) 24465178/205
157 Narhe (020) 24390115/14
158 Pashan (020) 25870092/0492
159 Paud Road (020) 25449122/29
160 Pimple Nilakh (020) 27276000/01
161 Pimple Saugadar (020) 27206600/01
162 Pimpri (020) 27474671/5856/7757
163 Rajguru Nagar (02135) 223377/88
164 Ranjangaon (02138) 650102
165 Sahakar Nagar (020) 24221211/1411
166 Sinhagad Road (020) 24109120/21
167 SME-Pune, Wakdewadi (020) 41422200/09, 24671164/65, 23821240
168 Somwar Peth (020) 26063721, 26134722, 26131368
169 Talegaon (02114) 224004/5
170 Tilak Road (020) 24444257, 24448941, 24440565
171 Undri (020) 26909075/83
172 Vamnicom (020) 66221420
173 Viman Nagar (020) 26630226/27
174 Vishrantwadi (020) 26696172/73
175 Wagholi (020) 65251175
176 Warje (020) 25215154/55

Ahmednagar
177 MIDC (0241) 2777602/03
178 Savedi Road (0241) 2341121/20

Nagpur
179 Chhapru Nagar (0712) 2730266/60
180 Gandhibaug (0712) 2721769, 2722694, 2725157
181 Hingana Road (07104) 237022/26
182 Kalamana Market (0712) 2680325/544
183 Pratap Nagar (0712) 2243260/80
184 Wardha Road (0712) 2252903/04

Akola
185 Akola (0724) 2436611

Aurangabad
186 CIDCO (0240) 2243006/07/020
187 Gajanan Maharaj Temple (0240) 2243012/13
188 Khadkeshwar (0240) 2243000/01/19
189 MGM, Medical College (0240) 2243008/030
190 MIT Hospital (0240) 2243027/009
191 Station Road (0240) 2243011/31/10
192 T V Centre (0240) 2243028/29
193 Waluj (0240) 2243005/21
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Solapur
194 Solapur (0217) 2727225/26

Raigad
195 Alibaug (02141) 225951-53
196 Mahad (02145) 223822/23
197 Panvel, M.C.C.H   (022)27467944/45
198 Panvel, S.N.Road (022)27461161/64
199 Pen (02143) 255584/85
200 Roha (02194) 232352/53
201 Ulwe 9833918247

Jalgaon
202 Baliram Peth (0257) 2233613/14
203 Jalgaon (0257) 2234382/83

Satara
204 Karad (02164) 225505/07
205 Satara (02162) 227355, 227455

Nashik
206 CIDCO (0253) 2390432
207 Gangapur Road (0253) 2314538/39
208 Jail Road (0253) 2416430
209 Mahatma Nagar (0253) 2357461, 2360434
210 Main Road (0253) 2502220/21
211 Musalgaon (02551) 240752
212 Sharanpur (0253) 2581293, 2317677, 2314916

Ratnagiri
213 Chiplun (02355) 257138, 255201
214 Lanja (02351) 230195/96
215 Lavel (02356) 262640
216 Rajapur (02353) 232344/45
217 Ratnagiri (02352) 223690/91

Sindhudurg
218 Devgad (02364) 261828/29
219 Kankavli (02367) 230241/42
220 Kudal (02362) 221150/51
221 Malvan (02365) 252114/45
222 Sawantwadi (02363) 274413/14
223 Vaibhavwadi (02367) 237585/6
224 Vengurla (02366) 262509/10, 262104

Sangli
225 Mahavirnagar (0233) 2624267, 2622106
226 Shastri Chowk (0233) 2332294 
227 Laxmi Market Miraj (0233) 2223138
228 Shivaji Nagar (0233) 2375899/90 
229 Kupwad (0233) 2346878
230 Vita (02347) 276230
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Kolhapur
231 Ichalkarnaji (0230) 2432597
232 Mahapalika (0231) 2644208
233 Mangalwar Peth (0231) 2621319
234 New Shahupuri (0231) 2651753/54 
235 Rajarampuri (0231) 2521681/550, 2527012

Gujarat
Ahmedabad

236 Anand Nagar (079) 26769351/52
237 Bapu Nagar (079) 22777754/55
238 C. G. Road (079) 26401387/88, 26420313
239 Ghatlodia (079) 27402740/41
240 Isanpur (079) 25810004/5
241 Mani Nagar (079) 25461004/5
242 Naranpura (079) 27492958/3026

Vadodara
243 Karelibaug (0265) 2481299/49
244 Fatehganj (0265) 2750586/7
245 Manjalpur (0265) 2643506/7
246 Alkapuri (0265) 2329001

Surat
247 Adajan (0261) 2780168/186
248 Ring Road (0261) 2450083/84
249 Surat (0261) 2552093/94, 2562090, 2552092

Vapi
250 Vapi (0260) 2425663-64

Karnataka
Belgaum

251 Samadevi (0831) 2420433, 2436342
252 Tilakwadi (0831) 2468544/630

Hubli
253 Hubli 0836) 2256015

Bengaluru
254 Banashankari (080) 26763781, 26763815
255 Chamrajpeth (080) 26601213, 26600050
256 Gandhinagar (080) 22341151/2
257 Jayanagar (080) 26532275/6
258 Koramangala (080) 25502275
259 Malleshwaram (080) 23466656/7

Davangere
260 Davangere (08192) 233453

Dharwad
261 Dharwad (0836) 2443396
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Mangalore
262 Bhavanthi Street (0824) 2440636/7
263 Chilimbi (0824) 2452143/4
264 Kodialbail – M. G. Road (0824) 2495671/2

Mysore
265 Mysore (0821) 2542266

Tumkur
266 Tumkur (0816) 2277667

Udupi
267 Udupi (0820) 2526010, 2529010

Goa
268 Bicholim (0832) 2360460
269 Curchorem – Sanvordem (0832) 2654044
270 Mapusa (0832) 2264064/268
271 Margaon (0832) 2732321, 2736114, 2732594
272 Panjim (0832) 2228023, 2425662/210
273 Ponda (0832) 2318556/726
274 Porvorim (0832) 2412502/03
275 SME Panjim (0832) 2437021/31/22
276 Sanquelium (0832) 2365677/8
277 Vasco (0832) 2515170, 2517732, 2515553

Madhya Pradesh
278 Shrivardhan Complex, Indore (0731) 2528791-94/96 
279 Annapurna Road, Indore (0731) 2900040/45

Delhi
280 Connaught Place (011) 23412100
281 Lajpat Nagar (011) 26422100

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network





Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited
(SCHEDULED BANK)

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Registered Office:

Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025.

I certify that I am a registered member of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited. I hereby record my presence at the  

100th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Bank at 4.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 26th September, 2018 at Ravindra Natya 

Mandir, Near Siddhivinayak Temple, Sayani Road, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025.

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the Entrance of the Hall

100th Annual General Meeting  

26th September, 2018

Regd. Folio No:________________

____________________________________

Member’s Name in BLOCK Letters

____________________________________

Member’s Signature





FORM – A

Date:

To,
The Chief Manager,
Share Department, 
Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd, 
Madhushree, 5th Floor, Plot No. 85, 
District Business Centre, Sector 17, 
Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703.

Sir/Madam, 

Re: Annual Report

I furnish here below the required details for receipt of Annual Report for the financial year 2018-19 onwards: 

Name of Shareholder	 : ...................................................................................................................................................................

Address				    : ...................................................................................................................................................................

				      		  ...................................................................................................................................................................

				      		  ...................................................................................................................................................................

Membership No		  : ...................................................................................................................................................................

Mode (Receipt of Report) : Physical/ Electronic

E-mail ID				   : ...................................................................................................................................................................

Mobile No.			   : ...................................................................................................................................................................

Thanking you,

Yours Faithfully, 

(Signature)
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